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Brand South Africa was established in August 2002 to help create a 

positive and compelling brand image for South Africa and to build the 

reputation of the country. Its overall mandate is to build South Africa’s 

nation brand reputation in order to improve the country’s  

global competitiveness.

The primary objective of Brand South Africa is to develop and 

implement a proactive reputation management and brand strategy 

that will create a positive and unified image of South Africa. 

Brand South Africa strives to build pride and patriotism amongst 

South Africans and to promote investment and tourism, through the 

alignment of messaging and the building of a consolidated brand 

image for the country.

ABOUT  
BRAND SOUTH AFRICA



INTERNATIONAL MARKETING AND MOBILISATION
Brand South Africa’s international campaigns focus on the needs of investors in South 

Africa, exporters, and global South Africans. It aims to increase familiarity and knowledge 

of South Africa as a viable, world-class and profitable business destination in targeted 

international trade, investment and tourism markets. These key markets include China, 

India, the United States of America (USA), the United Kingdom (UK) and the European 

Union, United Arab Emirates (UAE), Brazil and Russia.

Targeted advertising campaigns, through broadcast, print and online media as well as 

other traditional marketing techniques, are used to raise awareness of all that South 

Africa has to o�er to the international investor. Brand South Africa also engages with 

the global media, through initiatives such as the Media Club South Africa website and 

inbound and outbound media tours, to improve perceptions about South Africa in the 

key markets.

GLOBAL SOUTH AFRICANS
Global South Africans are South Africans living abroad. Brand South Africa works 

to mobilise the Global South African network behind a programme of investment 

recruitment, skills identification, mentoring, skills transfer, study exchange, and work 

experience initiatives to encourage positive perceptions about South Africa amongst 

target audiences. This is seen as an extension of the reputation management initiatives 

in host countries.

ON THE HOME FRONT
Domestically, Brand South Africa’s aim is to build and sustain national pride and 

patriotism through encouraging active citizenship. This is achieved through the Play 

Your Part programme that seeks to mobilise all South Africans to become brand 

ambassadors, participate in promoting the country, and make a positive contribution to 

socio-economic change.

KEY  
FOCUS



ALIGNMENT OF VALUES
The energy, creativity, enthusiasm, and commitment of Brand South Africa’s employees 

complement the organisation’s values and align with the nation brand values.

Brand South Africa sta� “cooking up a storm” during the Values Programme

“Values are at the very core of human decision making. 
Employees who work in an organisation whose culture 

aligns with their personal values feel liberated.
Brand South Africa employees are able to bring their 

whole selves to work. They not only bring their energy, 
their creativity, and their enthusiasm, but also their 
commitment to their fellow colleagues, stakeholders
and ultimately the success of Brand South Africa.” 



UBUNTU

our spirit of togetherness 
defines us as a people

INNOVATION

the birth of new ideas to make a 
better world

SUSTAINABILITY

the foundation of a future 
we build together

POSSIBILITY

the realisation of all we can be

DIVERSITY

the celebration of our unity

NATION BRAND VALUES



UBUNTU

our spirit of togetherness 
defines us as a people

BRAND SOUTH AFRICA’S VALUES

COMPETITIVENESS

our ability to participate on a global scale

REALNESS

acknowledgement of 
our responsibilities

DETERMINATION

our persevering spirit

HUMILITY

respect for one’s 
place in context



• Brand South Africa collaborated extensively with national and provincial entities 

that market South Africa internationally, which resulted in a greater alignment of 

the ‘look and feel’ of the South African nation brand. 

• Expanded the Global South Africans network in Germany, United Arab Emirates 

(UAE), Australia and China in support of e�orts to improve international reputation 

and positively change perceptions about South Africa amongst these  

target audiences.

• Successfully partnered with various government departments to seed the brand 

positioning and implemented marketing and communications initiatives in support 

of their campaigns, to ensure brand alignment. 

• Published a Special Research Report entitled ‘South Africa - A top developing and 

globally competitive nation’, to improve perceptions about South Africa. 

• Launched the inaugural South African Competitiveness Forum (SACF), a Brand 

South Africa initiative, to collectively assess South Africa’s reputational and 

competitiveness advantages, with all stakeholders.

• Promoted active citizenship and social cohesion through the Play Your Part (PYP) 

campaign, which achieved 34% awareness levels nationally and an increased intent 

to participate.

• Enlisted youth engagement and involvement in the National Development Plan 

(NDP) through initiatives such as the ‘Shape the Future’ youth dialogues.

• Hosted several successful inbound and outbound media tours from key markets, 

BRAND SOUTH AFRICA 
HIGHLIGHTS OF  
2013/2014



which focused on promoting South Africa’s infrastructure, innovation and 

technology, and also assisted in profiling the organisations involved.

• Successfully registered the pay-o� line ‘Inspiring New Ways’ in 36 of the 60  

countries targeted.

• The appointment of four Brand Ambassadors by the Presidency, to support Brand 

South Africa in promoting the nation brand at home and abroad.

• As part of its Africa outreach programme, Brand South Africa finalised and 

approved the Africa strategy that will focus on developing stronger ties with the 

continent and improve South Africa’s reputation in these countries. 

• Hosted a successful media programme at the World Economic Forum (WEF) in 

Davos, in partnership with CNBC Africa, which included a robust media centre, 

a press conference, a thought leadership session and a networking event with 

international guests, as part the strategic engagement programmes.



20 YEAR ACHIEVEMENTS 
OF SOUTH AFRICA 

Twenty years ago a new South Africa was born. A nation that dreamed of a 

non-racial, non-sexist society of equal opportunity. A nation that served all of its 

citizens. It was called the ‘rainbow nation’. As we reflect on the past two decades, 

we are moved by the changes that have been implemented to pave the way 

for a better life for all South Africans. These changes have contributed to the 

development of a globally competitive nation, which we call South Africa.

• Today more people have access to safe drinking water than ever before, placing us 

ahead of the 2015 Millennium Development Goal targets.

• The provision of electricity has ensured a better life for the majority of households, 

with almost 90% of the people having access to electricity.

• Since 1994, more than 12 million people now have a place to call home, through 

the investment of more than R100 billion by the South African government, in 

building new homes.

• University enrolment has almost doubled, increasing from 495 356 students 

(universities, technikons and teachers’ training colleges) in 1994, to 953 373 

students (public universities and universities of technology) in 2012.

• By 2012, women made up 58% of all students enrolled in university programmes. 

• Today, more black students than ever before are enrolled in higher education 

institutions, comprising 81% of all students in 2012, and indicating the changing 

face of higher education institutions.

• Enrolments in Further Education and Training (FET) colleges increased from  

271 900 in 2000 to over 657 690 in 2012.



• South Africa achieved the Millennium Development Goal (MDG) of halving the 

proportion of the population without basic sanitation, well before the target  

of 2015.

• Investment in transport and logistics (41%) remains the largest component of the 

public infrastructure programme, followed by energy (22.2%), and water  

and sanitation (13.2%).  

• Spending on social services such as health, education and social development 

make up 13.7% of the public sector infrastructure expenditure.

• More than 1 500 healthcare facilities have been built and existing facilities have 

been strengthened to ensure that all people can access healthcare within a  

5km radius of their home.

• Over the past 20 years, employment (both formal and informal) has grown by 

around 5.6 million, or by 60%. 

• The number of employed people rose from 9.5 million in 1994 to 15.2 million in 

2013, despite the loss of almost a million jobs from 2008 to 2010 as a result of the 

global downturn.



• A total of 2 760 South African students from rural areas and disadvantaged 

backgrounds have been recruited to study medicine in Cuba. 

• The HIV Counselling and Testing campaign resulted in more than 20.2 million 

South Africans being tested between April 2010 and June 2012, compared with 

only 2 million people being tested annually previously. 

• The number of patients receiving antiretroviral therapy (ART) in South Africa 

increased from 47 500 in 2004 to 1.79 million in 2011. Access to ART in the public 

sector subsequently grew to over 2.4 million patients by the end of June 2013. 

• The Prevention of Mother-to-Child Transmission (of HIV) Programme has resulted 

in transmission rates decreasing from 8.5% in 2008 to 2.7% in 2011. In total, more 

than 100 000 babies were protected from HIV during this period.  



CONTENTS

MINISTER’S FOREWORD  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11

NATION BRAND PERFORMANCE  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .18

AN OVERVIEW OF THE INDICES  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .20

FINDINGS IN THE AFRICAN ENVIRONMENT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .24

BRAND SOUTH AFRICA’S RESEARCH . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .30

SOUTH AFRICAN COMPETITIVENESS FORUM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .32

OVERVIEW OF THE 2013/14 STRATEGY AND  
BUSINESS PLANS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34

TARGET MARKETS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .37

BRAND STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT . . . . . 39

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT AND ENGAGEMENT . . . . . . . . . 45

COUNTRY REPORTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50

ORGANISATIONAL SUSTAINABILITY  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .58

HUMAN RESOURCES STATISTICS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .60

BRAND SOUTH AFRICA STRUCTURE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .63

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .66

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL  . . .67

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .68

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .69

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO 
PARLIAMENT ON BRAND SOUTH AFRICA TRUST . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .72

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .75

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .76

CASH FLOW STATEMENT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .78

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF  
BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .79

ACCOUNTING POLICIES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .80

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .96

 BRAND SOUTH AFRICA TRUST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  . . . . . . . 102

  DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128

PERFORMANCE RESULTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130

PERFORMANCE RESULTS – IMPACT  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130

INTERNATIONAL PRINT COVERAGE  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 132

PERFORMANCE RESULTS OUTCOMES  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133

PERFORMANCE RESULTS  OUTPUTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 137

TACTICAL OPPORTUNITIES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163

RECOGNITION AND MESSAGES OF SUPPORT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 166

ACRONYMS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 167

SOURCES AND DEFINITIONS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 169

Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



“South Africa is a country 
bursting with untapped potential 

and great possibility.” 
ADDRESS TO RECIPIENTS OF THE NELSON MANDELA SCHOLARSHIP, SOUTH AFRICA, AUGUST 2002



As we celebrate 20 years of freedom and democracy, 
Brand South Africa honours the legacy and 

values of Nelson Mandela 
[1918 – 2013]

 

MANDELA
NELSON 
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It is my privilege to present the annual report for Brand South 

Africa detailing their activities from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.  

This year is especially noteworthy as we celebrate 20 years 

of freedom and democracy. We must recognise the many 

achievements we have made in building a competitive nation as 

indeed, there is a great story to tell. 

South Africa has received a tremendous amount of international 

attention during the past year, particularly with the passing of the 

founding father of our democracy President Nelson Mandela. 

As we joined the world to bid farewell to an icon, we were also 

mindful of the increased spotlight on South Africa. Brand South 

Africa worked tirelessly to utilise the various international platforms 

to position the nation in a positive and balanced light, as we 

showcased our country ’s organisation and facilitation capabilities, 

and reinforced our spirit as a nation. 

Brand South Africa sought out opportunities through various local 

and international channels to market South Africa as a competitive 

investment destination and to showcase the country, in support 

of the government’s priorities, to improve our economic outlook, 

create employment and eradicate poverty.  

Importantly, there was a concerted e� ort to bring together the 

various entities tasked with marketing South Africa, to work 

more closely and ensure the e� ective utilisation of resources and 

promotion opportunities. During the year, Brand South Africa 

successfully partnered with various government departments and 

implemented numerous marketing and communications initiatives.

FOREWORD 
MINISTER COLLINS CHABANE

This report details the successes of the various initiatives and 

demonstrates the invaluable role that Brand South Africa continues 

to play in positioning our country as a competitive nation, and a 

viable destination for business, tourism and investment. The Board 

and management team must be commended for their e� orts. 

On behalf of the Presidency, I express our heartfelt gratitude to all 

those who were involved in creating a South African nation brand 

that we can be proud of - our stakeholders, the Board of Trustees, 

all the hard-working sta� , and the public who played their part in 

building the nation brand. 

Our country ’s success relies on the image each and every one of 

us makes public and each of our contributions is important. Let 

us be conscious of our actions and continue the legacy left by 

Tata Mandela, as we strive to achieve the goals and ambitions of 

our National Development Plan.

OHM Collins Chabane, MP

Minister in the Presidency responsible for Performance, Monitoring and 
Evaluation and Administration 
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“South Africa’s 
young democracy is 
exemplary to many 

nations and this gives 
us a unique voice to 
promote our great 

strides in becoming a 
globally competitive 

nation.”
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
CHICHI MAPONYA

CELEBRATING 20 YEARS OF BUILDING A 
COMPETITIVE NATION BRAND

In 2014 South Africa celebrates 20 years of freedom 

and democracy. This is a milestone achievement for 

South Africa as a country, as a people and as a brand.  

It is also underpinned by Brand South Africa’s theme 

for the marketing of the country - ‘20 years of building 

a competitive nation brand’.

Under this theme, we share the story of South Africa 

as a tale of positivity, potential and promise and utilise 

this unique proposition to market the country globally.

During the year under review, we also su�ered a major 

loss with the passing of Tata Nelson Mandela. This 

resulted in much global attention on South Africa, and 

a�orded us the opportunity to promote the positive 

gains of the country, by focusing on Madiba’s legacy. 

Through building South Africa’s nation brand reputation, Brand 

South Africa plays a critical role in supporting government and 

business to attract investment into the country. Brand South Africa 

continuously seeks to identify and promote opportunities that 

allow us to market South Africa both locally and internationally, in 

order to improve South Africa’s global competitiveness and build 

pride and patriotism amongst South Africans.

HIGHLIGHTS
• The successful launch of the inaugural South African 

Competitiveness Forum (SACF) - a Brand South Africa 

initiative, to collectively assess South Africa’s reputational and 

competitive advantages, and challenges with all stakeholders.

• Published a special report entitled ‘South Africa – A top 

developing and globally competitive nation’, to improve 

perceptions about South Africa. 

• Registered the pay-o� line ‘Inspiring New Ways’ in 36 of the 

60 countries targeted.

• The appointment of four Brand Ambassadors by the 

Presidency, to support Brand South Africa in promoting the 

nation brand both at home and abroad.

• Hosted several successful inbound and outbound media 

tours from key markets, which focused on promoting South 

Africa’s infrastructure, innovation and technology. 

• Expanded the Global South Africans network to Germany, 

United Arab Emirates (UAE), Australia and China, in support 

of e�orts to improve our international reputation and 

positively change perceptions about South Africa.

• Brand South Africa hosted a successful media programme at 

the World Economic Forum (WEF) in Davos in partnership with 

CNBC Africa, which included a robust media centre, a press 

conference, a thought leadership session attended by Minister 

Gordhan and a networking event with international guests.

• Finalised and approved the Africa strategy that will see Brand 

South Africa developing stronger ties with the rest of the continent 

and improving South Africa’s reputation in these countries.

INTERNATIONALLY
South Africa’s membership in BRICS (Brazil, Russia, India and 

China) has opened up numerous opportunities for the country 

in areas of trade, investment and tourism. Brand South Africa has 

strategically positioned itself to take advantage of the growing 

interest and developing relationships with the BRICS nations. This 

has a�orded us an opportunity to market South Africa to these 

new audiences. 

Internationally, we supported stakeholder engagements that 

included International Trade Initiatives, several inbound and 

outbound media tours, and also flighted our ‘Inspiring New 

Ways’ television commercial across the world to bolster positive 

perceptions and strengthen the nation brand’s reputation. 

As part of our Africa outreach programme, our Africa strategy was 

finalised and approved by the Board. In addition, our successful 

partnership with Brand Ghana presented an opportunity to 

implement a programme to promote stronger ties with Ghana 

through the successful hosting of round table discussions with 

the Ghanaian Minister of Trade and Industry. Going forward, we 

will work on expanding our network in Africa and enhance our 

branding e�orts to promote South Africa – and South African 

businesses - on the continent. 

3



DOMESTICALLY
The 5th democratic elections in 2014 will mark 20 years of 

post-apartheid democracy. This important milestone presents 

an opportunity to solidify and further enhance our country ’s 

reputation, as we promote a political environment that is free, fair 

and open to all parties. To this end, Brand South Africa’s ‘Protect 

Our Democracy’ campaign focused on the youth and encouraged 

active citizenship as part of its extended outreach programme.

Brand South Africa’s initiatives have always been inclusive of all 

South Africans in driving unity and promoting the nation brand to 

the world as this engenders pride and patriotism amongst South 

Africans. The team has worked tirelessly throughout the year to 

reinforce partnerships with stakeholders in all spheres; from 

government to business to civil society (with particular emphasis 

on the youth), to promote brand alignment and reputation 

management of the country.

Our focus on partnerships was also reinforced through our 

support of the 2nd Annual South African Premier Business Awards, 

in partnership with Proudly South African and The Department of 

Trade and Industry (the dti).  Our partnership with the Department 

of Mineral Resources (DMR) at the 2014 Mining Indaba, served 

to strengthen and deepen the alignment and integration of 

messaging on South Africa.

THE FUTURE 
Brand South Africa continually strives to create an aligned national 

identity that showcases South Africa’s potential. Our strategic plan 

outlines the roadmap for Brand South Africa to increase South 

Africa’s competitiveness and build on positive perceptions and 

reputation. We will continue to strengthen relationships with key 

stakeholders and encourage South Africans to play their part in 

marketing the country as a destination for tourism, business and 

investment.

Internationally, we will continue to focus our e� orts on building 

positive perceptions and increasing informed awareness of South 

Africa as a business destination in key markets to ensure South 

Africa’s global competitiveness.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board of Trustees, my sincere appreciation goes 

to: President Jacob Zuma for his continued support of Brand 

South Africa; Deputy President Kgalema Motlanthe; Minister in 

the Presidency, Minister Collins Chabane; and his Deputy Minister, 

Obed Bapela, for their relentless guidance and valuable insights.  

Special mention must be made of the Minister’s e� orts in driving 

greater cooperation between the various entities tasked with 

marketing South Africa, both domestically and abroad.

To our programme partners, Old Mutual, Ernst & Young and 

Standard Bank, I express our heartfelt appreciation for their 

invaluable and continued support.

To my fellow Board members, the CEO and the entire 

Brand South Africa team, I thank you all for your commitment and 

the passion you have displayed in serving your country.

To every South African citizen who continues to play 

their part, Brand South Africa encourages each 

of you to fl y the South African fl ag and to 

promote our country as a great nation 

that continues to inspire the world.

Chichi Maponya 

Chairman: 
Board of Trustees 
Brand South Africa

Chichi Maponya 
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Twenty years ago, the nation embarked on a journey of freedom 

and democracy, leading to what we now refer to as ‘a South Africa 

for all’. As a nation we have come a long way since 1994 and there 

is much to be celebrated as achievements. There is, however, still 

a lot of work to be done in building a compelling and positive 

nation brand that positions South Africa as an attractive business, 

tourist and investment destination.

Brand South Africa’s mandate is to build South Africa’s nation 

brand reputation in order to improve its global competitiveness. 

As an organisation, we strive to strengthen and deepen our 

stakeholder and partner alignment and integration, through the 

implementation of various brand and reputation management 

strategies in both international and domestic markets. 

The year under review was signifi cant for Brand South Africa as 

we focused on promoting the National Development Plan (NDP), 

celebrating 20 years of freedom and democracy, positioning the 

South African brand, building a competitive nation and driving 

active citizenship through our domestic mobilisation campaign, 

Play Your Part.

DOMESTIC MOBILISATION
It has been a dynamic year for the nation brand locally, as we 

strengthened our e� orts to build pride and patriotism amongst 

South Africans and contribute to social cohesion and nation 

brand ambassadorship, through our Play Your Part programme.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
MILLER M MATOLA

Brand South Africa was actively involved in several strategic 

initiatives that strengthened the nation brand reputation, through 

building pride and patriotism and mobilising citizen participation. 

In implementing the Play Your Part (PYP) programme, Brand South 

Africa partnered with the SABC and utilised various radio platforms 

to increase its reach to even more South Africans. 

The PYP programme was also extended to schools, Faith Based 

Organisations, the Department of Transport’s ‘Arrive Alive’ 

campaign, the One Young World initiative and the Transnet Freight 

Rail Career Expo. Through these programmes, Brand South Africa 

was able to contribute to a deeper sense of pride and patriotism 

amongst South African youth and other civil society stakeholders. 

Pride and commitment levels amongst South Africans once again 

remained high during the past year, averaging at 90%. 

Our robust media programme continued to support our strategy 

in improving perceptions about South Africa amongst target 

audiences. The year saw several successful inbound and outbound 

media tours being hosted for journalists from key markets, which 

provided an opportunity to showcase South Africa’s immense 

potential. Key focus areas included the promotion of South Africa’s 

infrastructure through the Strategic Infrastructure Projects (SIPs); 

fi nancial services and innovation as a key driver of development and 

competitiveness; South Africa’s cultural and artistic prospects; and 

nuclear health and technology in South Africa’s competitiveness 

and innovative space.
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Tra�c to Brand South Africa’s Media Club South Africa website 

rose to record levels by March 2014, with unique users increasing 

by 41%. This can be attributed to the site’s extensive coverage of 

the National Elections; 20 years of freedom; South Africa’s criminal 

justice system related to the Oscar Pistorius trial and impartial 

profiles of the key players in the trial; as well as reporting on 

democracy and human rights in support of Human Rights Day.

As our nation mourned the passing of the former President Nelson 

Mandela and the entire world watched, Brand South Africa worked 

together with all stakeholders to manage the nation brand. Our 

collaboration with GCIS, the Presidency and the Nelson Mandela 

Foundation in various communication programmes, focused on 

positioning the nation in a positive light as we showcased our 

country ’s organisation and facilitation capabilities. In addition, 

Brand South Africa introduced a number of communication 

initiatives, particularly with the electronic, digital and print media, 

to ensure that international markets were kept informed of 

arrangements and messages on a daily basis during this period.

STRATEGIC ENGAGEMENTS
The inaugural South African Competitiveness Forum (SACF) 

provided a key platform for engagement with significant 

stakeholders on issues that impact both positively and negatively 

on the nation brand’s reputation and competitiveness. This dialogue 

enabled stakeholders to collaborate with Brand South Africa in 

identifying interventions that would improve the country ’s reputation.  

As part of its strategic engagements, Brand South Africa is also 

proud to have hosted the inaugural Chairman’s Forum that focused 

on Captains of the mining industry and utilised this platform to 

highlight the implications of the ongoing unrest in the mining 

sector on the image of South Africa. 

Dialogue sessions with government, business, youth and faith-

based organisations allowed Brand South Africa an opportunity 

to articulate and contextualise South African policies impacting 

on factors of competitiveness, and to collaborate on initiatives to 

improve brand competitiveness. 

Our stakeholder outreach programme continued to grow 

through the launch of ‘Freedom Fridays’ in partnership with 

Lead South Africa, Proudly South African and the Government 

Communications and Information System (GCIS); our continued 

support of the Department of Trade and Industry ’s (the dti) Trade 

and Investment Initiatives in various markets; and our partnership 

with the Department of Mineral Resources (DMR), the Department 

of Science and Technology (DST) as well as other State Owned 

Enterprises (SOEs) in arranging the first South Africa Pavilion and 

Investor workshop at the Mining Indaba, which was well attended 

by delegates. These strategic partnerships resulted in increased 

brand and messaging alignment with government departments 

and provided an opportunity to mobilise South Africans to 

promote active citizenship in line with our mandate.
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“Africa is seen both 
as an investment 

destination of choice 
and as a region 

marked by greater 
prosperity and 

development, which 
we need to 
leverage.”

7



INTERNATIONAL INITIATIVES
Brand South Africa’s programme to position South Africa 

favourably on a global scale was heightened in 2013 through the 

preparation of marketing material and key messaging for various 

high profile incoming and outgoing state visits that resulted in 

positive perceptions of the nation brand. 

In paving the way for improved international relations, Brand 

South Africa was able to leverage its outreach programme to 

the diplomatic corps by steering the agenda of a competitive 

nation brand. This included thought leadership seminars, round 

table discussions and an accelerated e�ort to reach out to the 

Global South Africans network. As part of expanding the Global 

South Africans network, Brand South Africa hosted a successful 

stakeholder engagement session with South Africans living in 

Sydney and Melbourne.

To further leverage strategic relationships to strengthen its brand 

strategy delivery in defined local, regional and international markets 

and with key stakeholders, the nation brand was promoted as a 

destination for investment at the World Economic Forum (WEF) in 

Africa, China and Davos. A significant improvement to the media 

and stakeholder engagement programme at the WEF in Davos was 

the introduction of “live chats” with business delegates by the Mail 

and Guardian publication. 

Brand South Africa also made use of tactical platforms such as the 

Mercedes-Benz New York Fashion Week, the One Young World 

Conference, the Royal Premiere of the film ‘Long Walk to Freedom’, 

and the Rising Stars event that celebrates South Africa’s youth 

achievers, to garner positive perceptions and create an interest in 

the country ’s potential as a nation. 

MOVING INTO AFRICA
Another accomplishment was the finalisation and approval of 

our Africa strategy, which will see Brand South Africa developing 

stronger ties with the rest of the continent. Africa is seen both as 

an investment destination of choice and as a region marked by 

greater prosperity and development, and this opportunity needs 

to be strategically leveraged. Implementing the Africa strategy 

will have a positive impact on South Africa’s reputation in these 

countries, as well as globally. Relationship-building interactions 

continued with Ghana and Nigeria, and moving forward we will 

continue to expand our Africa reach.

COMPETITIVENESS RANKINGS
The country ’s performance on major indices, as tracked by  

Brand South Africa, indicated that our country ’s reputation 

has remained stable. South Africa’s overall ranking dropped by 

one position to 53rd out of 148 economies in the WEF Global 

Competitiveness Report 2013/14, signalling the concerns over the 

labour market instabilities, as well as the fairly subdued economic 

performance, as expressed in GDP terms. 

Notably, South Africa performed well in terms of innovation, 

improving with three positions to 39th out of 148 economies. 

Countries that are able to push the boundaries of innovation will 

ultimately lead the way in changing the paradigm of developed 

versus developing countries. In addition, the City and Nation 

Brand Indices showed stability in overall reputation this year.  

The results for Project Thrive (the International Investor Perceptions 

Survey) deduced that although familiarity is high, there is a greater 

opportunity to increase awareness around investment and doing 

business with South Africa. Important lessons from this research 

included that the country ’s infrastructure is a key attractiveness 

feature for international investors. This was also confirmed in the 

WEF Competitiveness Report, wherein South Africa was ranked 

15th in the world for Quality of Air Transport Infrastructure. 

The Goldman Sachs ‘South Africa at 20’ report provided much of 

the analytical framework and content for evaluating the country ’s 

achievements and set the scene for the NDP to progress to the 

next level in 2014. More importantly, it also sent a strong signal of 

a stable South Africa worldwide.  

These research findings not only reflect our progress in creating 

positive perceptions and maintaining a stable reputation as a 

country, but are also important benchmark tools to rate South 

Africa’s competitiveness performance and influence our strategy 

as Brand South Africa in the future. 
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ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Brand South Africa continues to strive to build a high performance 

organisation and improvements during the year included skills 

development training to improve sta�  competencies; the awarding 

of three new employee bursaries; the introduction of the SmartHR 

Performance Management System and the implementation of the 

Talent Management programme.

Notably, the employee retention initiatives, such as the hosting 

of the successful inaugural Employee Brand Loyalty Awards 

Programme (EBLAP) will address the ongoing challenge of 

human resources in the organisation, and will ensure a sustainable 

organisation that will enable and supports the delivery of its 

mandate.

The organisation remains steadfast in building a solid team that is 

dedicated and committed to the work of Brand South Africa.

LOOKING AHEAD

Brand South Africa will continue to focus on improving perceptions 

and building a strong brand image both at home and abroad, and 

calls on all South Africans to promote the country.

Domestically our e� orts will include supporting the NDP goals 

through an intensifi ed communication programme, implementing 

active citizen participation campaigns, strengthening stakeholder 

relations and alignment with key provincial and national 

government departments.

The organisation will continue to tell South Africa’s evolving 

story through the seeding of its positioning, ‘Inspiring New Ways’, 

and strengthen its integrated marketing campaign to focus on 

‘20 years of building a competitive nation’, on television, print, 

radio and digital platforms. The Play Your Part programmes will be 

intensifi ed to build pride and patriotism, as well as to encourage 

active citizenship. A critical enabler will be a greater focus on the 

use of our digital media platforms.

Internationally, Brand South Africa will focus on communicating 

the implementation of the NDP in South Africa, to improve 

awareness and brand image in key markets. Brand South Africa will 

expand its Global South Africans outreach programme with a view 

to positively positioning South Africa as an inspiring destination 

for business and continue to expose international media to South 

Africa’s immense opportunities.

THANKS AND APPRECIATION
The 2013/14 fi nancial year will be marked as a defi ning and 

historical year for the country, as South Africans continued to 

create their own history. 

As an organisation, the Brand South Africa team worked with 

commitment and dedication to market our country during this 

year and my gratitude goes to all who were involved in creating an 

environment conducive to performance and success. As we refl ect 

on the achievements of the country over the past two decades, 

we will continue to celebrate the nation brand with the theme 

‘20 years of building a competitive nation’.

We look forward to an inspired brand journey with all South 

Africans as we strive towards achieving Vision 2030. 

Miller M Matola

Chief Executive O�  cer:
Brand South Africa 

Miller M Matola
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“By working together 
towards the same goal – 
the positive positioning 
of South Africa as an 

investment destination 
of choice – South Africa 
has been able to take its 
rightful place among the 
most respected players in 

the world economy.”
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Infl uential fi gures in South African government, business and civil society serve on the Board of Brand South Africa.

Charlotte “Chichi” Maponya  - Chairman

Happy Ntshingila 
Deputy Chairman

Mninawe Silinga

Rick Menell

Miller M Matola 
 Chief Executive O�  cer 

Brand South Africa

Moss Leoka

Ryland Fisher

Ajay GuptaMzimkulu Malunga

Sandile Zungu

* Sindisiwe Mabaso-Koyana Resigned 12 April 2013

Dr Cassius Lubisi

Paula Fray

Stavros Nicolaou

Clayson Monyela

Phumelele Nzimande

Thebeetsile Ikalafeng

Connie Molusi Phumla Williams

Timothy Scholtz

Dr Danny Jordaan Pumla Ncapayi

Wayne Morris

Deon Huysamer

Ralph Mupita Zwelibanzi Mntambo

Geo�  Rothschild

Ramasela Magoele
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Brand South Africa is a schedule 3A public entity that is registered as a Trust in terms of the Trust 

Property Control Act 57 of 1988 and subscribes to the Protocols on Governance in the Public Sector. 

The Executive Authority is the Minister for Performance, Monitoring and Evaluation and Administration, 

in the Presidency, Minister Collins Chabane. The Board of Trustees and Executive Management are 

committed to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability as advocated by the King III Code on  

Corporate Governance.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
During the year under review, the organisation conducted its risk management reviews and reporting. 

Compliance assessments were conducted in terms of the National Treasury Regulations (2005 as 

amended), the Public Finance Management Act (1999 as amended) and the Trust Property Control Act 57 

of 1988. 

There were no breaches of governance procedures recorded during the 2013/2014 financial year. 

Trustees have a duty to disclose their interests in any of the items that are on the agenda at Board 

meetings, and there were no conflicts of interest recorded during the year under review. 

The annual Board evaluations as per the King III Report on Corporate Governance were not conducted 

due to the Board being newly appointed. These will be undertaken in the new financial year. As per the 

Board Charter, the Trustees were not remunerated for their services.

CODE OF ETHICS
Brand South Africa is committed to maintaining high standards of business integrity and ethics 

across all its activities. The Board of Trustees approved a Code of Ethics policy that epitomises good 

governance in terms of the management of conflict of interest, employment equity, cost containment, 

assets, management and employee relations. The Code of Ethics provides direction on the minimum 

standards to be followed or expected from the Board, the employees, the suppliers and all persons who 

come into contact with the organisation.

The Board is committed to sound corporate governance and issues of good governance will continue 

to receive the attention of the Board, its Sub-Committees as well as the Executive Management team, 

during the year ahead.                                                                                                                                                         

APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEES AND BOARD COMPOSITION
All Trustees are appointed by the President of the Republic of South Africa for a term of three years.  

The Trust Deed provides for the Board to comprise of no less than 20 Trustees, with a maximum 

of 30 Trustees. During the period under review, Brand South Africa had 28 Trustees, of which 27 

were Non-Executive Board members except for the Chief Executive O�cer (CEO). Ms. Sindisiwe  

Mabaso-Koyana resigned as a Trustee on 12 April 2013, and this reduced the number of Board  

members to 27 Trustees.

The O�ces of the Chairman and the CEO are separate and there is a clear division of responsibilities 

between the roles. The O�ce of the Chairman is occupied by the Non-Executive Trustee,  

Ms. Chichi Maponya, who is primarily responsible for the strategic leadership of the Board. The CEO 

is supported by an Executive Management Committee (EXCO), comprising the executive management 

team, and is responsible for the operational management of the organisation. EXCO is responsible for 

implementing the decisions of the Board in pursuit of Brand South Africa’s mandate and objectives.

BOARD SECRETARIAT FUNCTION
The Board Secretariat is responsible for ensuring the proper administration of Board proceedings and 

in providing support and guidance to the Board on matters relating to governance, compliance and 

ethics. This includes the preparation and circulation of Board papers and minutes of meetings, and in 

ensuring that feedback is provided to the Board and its sub-committees. 

The Board Secretariat also performs certain statutory duties in terms of the Trust Property Control Act 

No. 57 of 1988 and other regulatory requirements. The Chairman and all Trustees have unrestricted 

access to the services of the Board Secretariat.
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BOARD POWERS AND PROCEDURES
The Board has adopted a Board Charter, which provides a concise overview of:

• The demarcation of the roles, functions, responsibilities and powers of the Board, the Executive 

Authority, the individual Trustees, the Committees and the employees of the Trust.

• Matters reserved for final decision-making or pre-approval by the Board.

• The policies and practices of the Board for such matters as corporate governance, declarations of 

conflicts of interest, Board meeting documentation and procedures, and the induction, training 

and evaluation of Trustees and members of Board committees. 

Within the powers conferred upon the Board by the Trust Deed, the Board has determined its main 

function and responsibility as adding significant value to Brand South Africa by:

• Retaining full and e�ective control of the organisation.

• Determining the strategy and strategic objectives of the Trust.

• Determining and setting the tone of the company’s values, including principles of ethical  

business practice.

• Bringing independent, informed and e�ective judgement to bear on material decisions of the 

Trust, including policies and approval of the Trust budget.

• Satisfying itself that Brand South Africa is governed e�ectively in accordance with best corporate 

governance practice, including risk management and internal control systems. 

BOARD MEETINGS
The Board met four times during the 2013/14 financial year as per the scheduled meetings and also 

convened one special meeting to discuss the Organisational Design report. All of the scheduled Board 

meetings were held at Brand South Africa’s o�ce in Houghton and a special meeting was held at 

Gallagher Estate, in Johannesburg.

Board Members at Brand South Africa O�ces in Houghton.
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BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

NAME SURNAME TITLE 29/05
2013

29/07
2013

29/10
2013

18/02
2014

Chichi Maponya (Chairman) Ms. √ √ √ √
Miller Matola (Brand South Africa CEO) Mr. √ √ √ √
Ajay Gupta Mr. √ X √ √
Cassius Lubisi Dr. X √ X X
Clayson Monyela Mr. X X √ √
Connie Molusi Mr. √ √ √ √
Danny Jordaan Dr. X X √ √
Deon Huysamer Mr. √ √ √ √
Geo� Rothschild Mr. √ √ √ √
Happy Ntshingila Mr. X √ √ √
Mninawe Silinga Mr. X X X X
Moss Leoka Mr. √ X √ √
Mzimkulu Malunga Mr. √ X √ X
Paula Fray Ms. √ √ X Y
Phumelele Nzimande Ms. √ X √ X
Phumla Williams Ms. X √ X X
Pumla Ncapayi Ms. X √ X √
Ralph Mupita Mr. X X X X
Ramasela  Magoele Ms. X X √ X
Rick Menell Mr. √ √ X X
Ryland Fisher Mr. √ √ √ √
Sandile Zungu Mr. X √ X X
Sindisiwe Mabaso-Koyana Ms. Resigned 12/04/2013 - - -
Stavros Nicolaou Mr. √ √ √ √
Thebeetsile Ikalafeng Mr X √ √ √
Timothy Scholtz Mr. X X X X
Wayne Morris Mr. √ √ √ √
Zwelibanzi Mntambo Mr. √ √ X X

BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES
In terms of the provisions in the Board Charter, the Board is 

mandated to form sub-committees as is necessary to carry out its 

duties. The Committees play an important role in the maintenance 

of high standards of governance and in achieving increased 

e�ectiveness within the organisation in line with King III code. The 

terms of reference for all the sub-committees were presented and 

approved by the Board.

The Board sub-committees are: 

• Audit and Risk Committee (ARCO)

• Human Resources and Remuneration and Social and Ethics 

Committee (HR/REMSECO)

• Marketing Committee (MARCO) 

All Board sub-committees comprise of Trustees, except ARCO 

which also includes Independent members. Members of the 

Executive Management attend only by invitation. 

All sub-committees are empowered to obtain external or 

independent professional advice to carry out their duties. 

Sub-committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Trustee.

14Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted the terms of reference that have been approved by the 

Board and deals primarily with membership, structure, authority and duties. The responsibility of the 

Audit and Risk Committee includes but is not limited to:

• Ensuring the integrity, reliability and accuracy of the accounting and financial reporting systems.

• Evaluating the adequacy and e�ectiveness of internal audit and risk management.

• Maintaining transparent and appropriate relationships with the respective firms of  

external auditors.

• Reviewing the scope, quality and cost of the statutory audit and the independence and objectivity 

of the auditors.

• Ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities, 

especially the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).

• Overseeing compliance with Codes of Corporate Practice and Conduct and Ethics. 

At the Board of Trustees meeting held on 18 February 2014 the Chairman of the Audit and Risk 

Committee, Ms. Ramasela Magoele, was replaced by Mr. Geo� Rothschild. This committee was further 

strengthened by the appointment of Mr. Wayne Morris. 

The Audit and Risk Committee held four meetings during the year under review, as well as one special 

meeting to approve the annual financial statements.

MEMBERS MEETING DATES

NAME SURNAME TITLE 15/07 
2013

31/01 
2014

12/02 
2014

05/03 
2014

25/03  
2014

Geo� Rothschild (Chairman) Mr. √ √
Connie Molusi Mr. √ X √ X X
Deon Huysamer Mr. √ √ √ √ √
Glen Zulu Ms. X √ √
Khumoetsile Gaesale Ms. √ √
Luyanda Mangquku Mr. √ √ √ √
Mninawe Silinga Ms. √ X X X X
Ramasela  Magoela Ms. √ √ X X X
Sindisiwe Mabaso-Koyana Ms. - - - - -
Wayne Morris Mr. √ √

• Ms. Sindisiwe Mabaso-Koyana resigned on the 12 April 2013.

• Mr. Luyanda Mangquku, an Independent Member, was appointed in October 2013.

• Mr. Geo� Rothschild was appointed as Chairman on 18 February 2014.

• Mr. Wayne Morris was appointed as a Committee Member on 18 February 2014. 

• Ms. Khumoetsile Gaesale joined the Committee in the place of Ms. Glen Zulu, as the 

representative from The Presidency, from 05 March 2014.

• Ms. Ramasela Magoela resigned as Chairperson on 18 February 2014. 

• Mr. Deon Huysamer was appointed as Deputy Chairman on 18 February 2014. 
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HUMAN RESOURCES, REMUNERATION AND  
SOCIAL ETHICS COMMITTEE
The Human Resources, Remuneration and Social Ethics Committees’ terms of reference, as approved

by the Board, deals with membership, structure, authority and duties. The responsibility of this 

committee includes making recommendations to the Board on:

• All policy matters that a�ect the employer/employee relationship.

• All policy matters dealing with remuneration, recruitment, selection, appointment and 

remuneration of Executives.

• All policy matters that a�ect the mental, social and physical well-being of employees, ethics and 

the environment.

• The human resources strategy and organisational structure. 

The Human Resources, Remuneration and Social Ethics Committee held four meetings  

during the period under review.

MEMBERS MEETING DATES

NAME SURNAME TITLE
11/04
2013

11/07
2013

10/10
2013

06/02
2014

Mzimkulu Malunga (Chairman) Mr. √ √ √ √

Geofrey Mphaphuli Mr. X √ √ X

Moss Leoka Mr. √ √ √ X

Paula Fray Ms. √ √ √ √

Phumelele Nzimande Ms. X √ √

Phumla Williams Ms. X X X

Ryland Fisher Mr. √ √ √ √

• Ms. Phumelele Nzimande and Ms. Phumla Williams were appointed as Committee Members  

on 29 May 2013.

• Mr. Geofrey Mphaphuli is the representative from The Presidency.
Simon Anholt – addressing the Brand South Africa Board at its  
May 2013 Strategic Planning session
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MEMBERS MEETING DATES

NAME SURNAME TITLE
12/04
2013

18/07
2013

28/10
2013

18/02
2014

Thebeetsile Ikalafeng (Chairman) Mr. √ √ √ √

Anande Nothling Ms. √ X √ X

Clayson Monyela Mr. X X √ √

Danny Jordaan Dr. X √ √ √

Deon Huysamer Mr. √ √ √ √

Geo�rey Rothschild Mr. √ √ √ √

Happy Ntshingila Mr. √ √ √ √

Phumla Williams Ms. X X X X

Pumla Ncapayi Ms. X X X √

Rick Menell Mr. X √ X X

Stavros Nicolaou Mr. X X √ √

Timothy Scholtz Mr. √ X √ √

Wayne Morris Mr. √ √ √ √

• Ms. Anande Nothling is the representative from The Presidency.

MARKETING COMMITTEE
The Marketing Committee is responsible for advancing the mandate of Brand South Africa, through 

overseeing the development and implementation of e�ective marketing and communications 

strategies. Its mandate includes:

• Reviewing the marketing policy and protocols, and to recommend same to the  

Board for approval.

• O�ering expert advice and feedback on Brand South Africa’s marketing and  

communications activities and resources.

• Identifying areas of marketing and communications weaknesses and recommending  

remedial actions.

• Acting as a resource to advise management on serious communications issues.

• Reviewing and recommending corporate profile policies and issues related to  

Brand South Africa’s branding. 

During the reporting year, the Marketing Committee held four meetings.
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NATION BRAND  
PERFORMANCE 

platforms, namely, the Chairman’s Forum; the South African 

Competitiveness Forum; Research Reference Groups; and 

Thought Leader meetings.

• Content generation for Public Relations and  

Communications activities.

• Support to stakeholder platforms and programmes.

• Briefings to government, business and civil society 

stakeholders on the nation brand performance and reputation. 

• Tracking of the country performance in selected indices over 

time to monitor and evaluate the nation brand performance. 

• Hosting of Research Reference Groups and the planning and 

execution of the South African Competitiveness Forum.

• Supplying proof points for country messaging. 

THE VALUE OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN 
NATION BRAND
A nation brand is essentially a composite construct that aims to 

present a coherent country image and message to domestic and 

international audiences. Research studies devoted to identifying 

the reputational standings of nations, or nation brands, typically 

measure the reputation of a nation on elements such as Investment, 

Governance, People, Culture, Tourism, and Exports. 

From the list of attributes tested through the reputation studies, it 

is evident that the reputation of a nation depends on much more 

than government activity, policy, or leadership. A nation brand 

encompasses all the attributes, strengths and innovations a nation 

has to o�er to the world in all its spheres of activity (business, arts, 

This section reflects on the performance of the  

nation brand during the 2013/14 financial year and 

presents key findings from research that Brand South 

Africa conducted to understand the performance 

of the nation brand in terms of competitiveness, 

reputation, and domestic trends that impact on the 

performance of the brand.

Brand South Africa’s research strategy focuses on the tracking of 

a wide variety of competitiveness, reputation, and related global 

studies and indices. The goal of Brand South Africa’s research is to 

monitor and evaluate the overall country performance in a highly 

competitive and uncertain global economy, as well as to conduct 

research in the domestic environment to track, understand and 

respond to trends and issues that impact on domestic perceptions. 

To further deliver on research insights, Brand South Africa convened 

Research Reference Groups that reflected on and provided Brand 

South Africa with expert input and advice on current issues of concern.

Research and knowledge management is critical for the 

organisation to deliver on its strategic and annual performance 

plans. The research strategy for the 2013/14 period delivered 

research insights to internal and external stakeholders through the 

development and delivery of:

• Background discussion documents for Thought Leader sessions.

• Internal strategic and environment analysis documents.

• Briefing documents for special Brand South Africa 

tourism, science and innovation, infrastructure, manufacturing, 

and governance, to name but a few). 

During the 2013/14 period the South African nation brand 

improved its rating and its overall value significantly, as rated by 

BrandFinance®. The total value of the brand increased with 22% 

during this period and this also had an impact on the rating, which 

moved from A (2012) to A+ (2013). 

2012 2013

South Africa brand value USD 222bn USD 270bn

South Africa brand rating A A+

Given the fact that a nation brand’s reputation is influenced 

by a range of stakeholders, and an array of hard and soft 

attributes, research at Brand South Africa is underpinned by the 

understanding that the action of branding our nation is a collective 

e�ort of government, business and civil society. The Research 

unit developed an analysis of primary research, external indices, 

and reputation studies that helped to inform communications 

and marketing strategies, stakeholder engagements, and thought 

leader sessions.  

Brand South Africa’s mandate also requires that the organisation 

understands domestic trends, perceptions, and factors that impact 

on pride and commitment of South Africans to the nation, and the 

nation brand. These research insights also help the organisation 

to understand and respond to a dynamic and evolving national 

identity, through its Play Your Part programme and other 

stakeholder engagements within the country. 
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During the year under review, Brand South Africa’s research 

programme focused on the following key research indices:

• WEF Africa Competitiveness Report

• Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development 

South Africa Economic Report

• Project Thrive – International Investor Perceptions Survey

• Index of Economic Freedom

• Ibrahim Index of African Governance

• Nation Brand Index

• City Brand Index

• National Perceptions Audit 

In addition, Brand South Africa commissioned research on Brand 

Alignment and Compliance, by government stakeholders that 

market destination or South African place brand o�erings abroad; 

and also researched the South African Diaspora. These two studies 

provided valuable operational insights into the need for the further 

development of an integrated and coordinated nation brand 

positioning globally. 

During the 2013/14 period Brand South Africa’s research unit 

also embarked on a few new projects for the organisation. These 

included: 

• The publication of a Special Research Report entitled ‘South 

Africa - A top developing and globally competitive nation’, 

to promote South Africa as an investment destination, which 

was shared widely and well received by key stakeholders.

• The launch of the inaugural South African Competitiveness 

Forum (SACF) - a Brand South Africa initiative, to collectively 

assess South Africa’s reputational and competitive advantages, 

and challenges with all stakeholders. 

 

The Institute for Management Development’s (IMD) Global 

Competitiveness Yearbook indicates that there are some unique 

features that make the South African nation brand attractive. 

When compared to other reputation indices (such as the Nation 

Brand Index, as well as Brand South Africa’s International Investor 

Perceptions Survey), common attractiveness features include:

• Infrastructure – the IMD indicates that reliable infrastructure 

is an important attractiveness feature – this corresponds 

with findings in Brand South Africa’s International Investor 

Perceptions Survey that indicates investors have a positive 

perception of the country ’s infrastructure.

• People – in the IMD open and positive attitudes are an 

attractive feature of South Africa, while in the Nation Brand 

Index the country typically fares well in terms of positive 

perceptions of both the country ’s People and Culture. 

• A dynamic economy – in Brand South Africa’s International 

Investor Perceptions Survey, the country is also associated 

with a ‘growing economy’ with opportunities for investment. 

• Financing and corporate governance – in the World 

Economic Forum’s Global Competitiveness Report, South 

Africa performs particularly well in terms of access to 

financing and corporate governance frameworks.
Special Research Report - ‘South Africa - a top developing and globally competitive nation’.
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AN OVERVIEW   
OF THE INDICES 

WORLD ECONOMIC FORUM – AFRICA 
COMPETITIVENESS REPORT 2013 
The World Economic Forum Global Competitiveness Index (WEF 

GCI) was developed on the basis of Michael Porter’s analysis of 

national competitiveness and is based on an opinion survey and 

hard data sourced by each country. The Index scores countries on 

a total of 131 variables that are grouped under 12 pillars. 

The WEF GCI, together with other recognised indices such as the 

Institute for Management Development Global Competitiveness 

Yearbook, informs Brand South Africa’s understanding of the 

country ’s competitiveness. 

The World Economic Forum released the 2013 Africa 

Competitiveness Report (ACR) to coincide with the WEF Africa 

meeting in Cape Town, and at a time when international interest 

in Africa was surging, due to the continent being seen both as 

an investment destination of choice and as a region marked by 

greater prosperity and development. 

According to the WEF, Africa’s economic outlook has changed 

dramatically in the past two decades, and whilst the continent 

is increasingly associated with impressive economic growth, it 

is necessary to improve living standards for all Africans, as has 

happened in other regions with similar growth performance,  

such as Asia. 

South Africa’s performance 2010 - 2013

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Overall rank Institutions Infrastructure
Macro-

economic 
environment

Health and 
primary 

education

Higher 
education 

and training

Goods and 
market 

e�ciency

Labour 
market 

e�ciency

Financial 
market 

development

Technical 
readiness

Market size
Business 

sophistication
Innovation

2010 54 47 63 43 124 75 40 97 9 76 25 38 44

2011 50 46 62 55 131 73 32 95 4 76 25 38 41

2012 52 43 63 69 132 84 32 113 3 62 25 38 42

2013 53 41 66 95 135 89 28 116 3 62 25 35 39

Fig. 1: World Economic Forum - Africa Competitiveness Report 2013 

“… e�orts are  
still needed for African 
economies to diversify 

and enhance their 
competitiveness so that 

they can absorb the  
10 million new entrants 

to the labour force  
every year.”
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HIGHLIGHTS
• South Africa’s overall ranking dropped with one position 

to 53rd out of 148 economies, challenging the nation to 

improve in the pillars that have seen a decline.

• The country saw improvements in four of the 12 pillars, 

namely: Institutions; Goods and market e�ciency; Business 

sophistication; and Innovation.

• In five of the 12 pillars the country saw a decline in ranking, 

namely: Infrastructure; Macro-economic environment; Health 

and primary education; Higher education and training and 

Labour market e�ciency.

• Three pillars remained the same, namely: Financial market 

development; Technological readiness and Market size.

• The above results indicate that South Africa improved its 

position, or remained stable in rankings on seven of the  

12 pillars of competitiveness measured.

The report also indicated that in comparison to 2012, the global 

economic environment had a positive outlook, however although 

small signs of improvements can be observed, “…policymakers must 

avoid complacency and press ahead with the structural reforms and 

critical investments required to ensure that their countries can provide 

a prosperous environment and employment for their citizens.” 

In order to create opportunities for economic growth, policymakers 

are urged to identify and strengthen transformative forces in 

national economies. In particular, the WEF indicates that a nation’s 

ability to create “…new value-added products, processes, and business 

models through innovation” will lead to a questioning of the 

traditional ‘Developed’ versus ‘Developing’ economy dichotomy. 

Countries that are able to push the boundaries of innovation will 

ultimately lead the way in changing the paradigm of developed 

versus developing countries.

In this context, it is important to note that South Africa has been 

making steady progress in the Innovation pillar; improving with 

three positions to 39 out of 148 this year.

ORGANISATION FOR ECONOMIC  
CO-OPERATION AND DEVELOPMENT (OECD) 
– SOUTH AFRICA ECONOMIC REPORT
The OECD - South Africa Economic Report indicates that 

South Africa is advancing; however, is failing to fully achieve its  

considerable potential. 

Key points highlighted include:

• Per capita incomes in the country are growing; public services 

are expanding; health indicators are improving; crime rates 

are falling; and demographic trends are favourable. These 

findings provide a measure of confidence in the country ’s 

ability to deliver more significant interventions to deal with 

service delivery and health care. The latter is important in 

the context of the National Health Insurance Plan and the 

National Development Plan.

• Public finances are in better shape than those of many OECD 

countries. The financial system is healthy and core inflation is 

stable and within the Central Bank’s target zone. 

• Unemployment is singled out as a negative issue, as an 

extremely high proportion of the population is out of work, 

as has been the case for most of the past three decades. 

• Income inequality remains extremely high. 

• South Africa’s educational outcomes are poor, and on average 

hugely uneven. 

• Social frustration with public service delivery failures and 

corruption is growing. 

• It also warns that a high current account deficit represents a 

point of macroeconomic vulnerability for South Africa. 

PROJECT THRIVE – INTERNATIONAL 
INVESTOR PERCEPTIONS SURVEY
The results of Project Thrive, Brand South Africa’s International 

Investor Perceptions Survey, deduced that although familiarity 

with South Africa among global investors is high, there is a greater 

opportunity to increase awareness around investment and doing 

business with South Africa. An important learning from this 

research is that the country ’s infrastructure is a key attractiveness 

feature for international investors. 
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Some high-level fi ndings from this year’s International Investor 

Perceptions Survey indicate that:

• 87% of respondents have heard of South Africa recently 

from any source.

• There is a 61% overall familiarity with South Africa among 

the sample. 

• 32% of the respondents are currently investing, or doing 

business with South Africa. 

The research also asked respondents to indicate which three 

countries are the best to do business in, or with, and South Africa 

came 4th in this category with the top three being China, India 

and Brazil. 

The fi ndings of the research also indicate that the following 

economic sectors are associated with South Africa:

• Mining and quarrying – 64%

• Agriculture – 46%

• Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism – 44%

• Manufacturing – 36%

• Construction – 29%

• Wholesale and retail – 28%

• Transport – 23%

• Electricity, gas and water supply – 20%

• Finance, insurance and real estate – 17%

• Post and telecommunications – 14%

Mining and quarrying 64

46

44

36

29

28

23

20

17

14

13

3

7

53

37

49

29

29

36

22

18

24

15

12

1

8

Agriculture, hunting, forestry and fi shing

Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism

Manufacturing

Construction

Wholesale and retail trade

Transport, storage and communication

Electricity, gas and water supply

Financial, insurance, real estate and business

Post and telecommunications

Community, social and personal services

Other

Don’t know

Fig. 2: Economic sectors associated with the South Africa economy - Project Thrive

2013 (n=839) 2012 (n=534)
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The top three sectors associated with South Africa are Mining 

and quarrying at 64% (up by 10% on 2012); Agriculture, hunting, 

forestry and fi shing at 46% and Hospitality, hotels, restaurants, 

and tourism at 44%. 

The marked increase in the manufacturing sector should also be 

noted, with 36% of respondents associating this sector with South 

Africa. The latter is an important element of the larger South African 

brand value proposition, and much more work can be done to 

profi le and communicate South African manufacturing globally. 

Respondents indicated the main attractiveness features of 

South Africa as: 

• Infrastructure

• A growing economy 

• Low cost of doing business

 

Fig. 3: Familiarity with South Africa remains stable - Project Thrive

Fig. 4: Awareness of key South African Policy initiatives - Project Thrive

China
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Korea (South)

Russia
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THE RESEARCH SHOWS A RELATIVELY HIGH LEVEL OF AWARENESS 
OF KEY SOUTH AFRICAN POLICY INITIATIVES

Positive Awareness Total Awareness

Black economic empowerment 45

48

42

47

43

36

36

58

55

55

55

51

49

44

Trade policies

Labour policies

Investor protection policies

Tax incentive in manufacturing

Nationalisation debate

Square Kilometre Array (SKA) bid

FAMILIARITY WITH SOUTH AFRICA

On the opposite end of the scale, the main concerns international 

businesses have about doing business in South Africa are: 

• Crime 

• Corruption 

• General security/safety concerns
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The African continent was the world’s second-fastest 

growing region in 2013. For more than a decade the 

continent’s growth averaged at more than 5%, while the 

demographic profi le of the continent positions it as a 

robust growth market for the foreseeable future. 

In terms of acquaintance with South Africa, respondents from 

three key African markets indicated, in response to the question 

on their level of acquaintance in three categories (I know very little 

about South Africa; I know enough about South Africa; and I know 

a lot about South Africa), that:

• In Nigeria - 36% know enough, 18% know a lot, and 46% 

know very little about South Africa

• In Kenya – 72% know enough, 11% know a lot and 17% know 

very little about South Africa

• In Ghana – only 2% know a lot, 22% know enough, and 76% 

know very little about South Africa

It is interesting to note the marked di� erences between Kenya, 

Nigeria and Ghana in terms of the economic sectors associated 

with South Africa, as manufacturing constitutes a high percentage 

of South Africa’s trade with peer African countries.

The top three sector associations with South Africa are:

• In Ghana 

•  Mining and quarrying

•  Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism

• Agriculture

• In Kenya 

•  Manufacturing

• Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism

• Mining and quarrying

• In Nigeria 

• Mining and quarrying

• Manufacturing

• Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism

From the research, it is evident that e� orts have to be increased to 

raise levels of familiarity with South Africa’s diversifi ed economy in 

African markets. 

INDEX OF ECONOMIC FREEDOM 2013
The Heritage Foundation annually publishes the Index of Economic 

Freedom report which measures the economic freedom of 177 

countries. High-level fi ndings regarding global economic freedom 

indicate that since the advent of the global fi nancial crisis (2008), 

economic freedom on a global scale has been dwindling. 

The report notes, “…on a worldwide basis, the advance of economic 

freedom has ground to a halt. Since peaking in 2008, when the 

average economic freedom score reached 60.2 on the Index 0–100 

scale, global economic freedom has failed to advance, and this year’s 

average score of 59.6 is no better than the score achieved a full 

decade ago in 2003.”

The only criterion wherein South Africa made an improvement 

on is with ‘Monetary freedom’, which increased from 75 in 2012 

to 75.8 in 2013.

SOUTH AFRICA ECONOMIC FREEDOM INDEX

Index year Overall score Property rights Freedom from 
corruption Fiscal freedom Government 

spending Business freedom Monetary freedom Labour freedom Trade freedom Investment 
freedom Financial freedom

2013 61.8 50 41 70.5 69.2 74.7 55.6 75.8 76.3 45 60

2012 62.7 50 45 70.7 71.9 75.8 57.3 75 76.3 45 60

2011 62.7 50 47 69.6 77.5 72.3 56.7 71.9 77.2 45 60

2010 62.8 50 49 69.1 76.8 73 59 70.2 76 45 60

2009 63.8 50 51 68.9 77.6 74.6 56.8 74.3 74.8 50 60

Fig. 5: South Africa Economic Freedom Index

FINDINGS IN THE 
AFRICAN ENVIRONMENT 
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Fig. 6: Ibrahim Index of African Governance 2013

IBRAHIM INDEX OF AFRICAN GOVERNANCE 2013 
Since its inception in 2007 the Ibrahim Index of African Governance (IIAG) has become a respected and 

much referenced Index that focuses on the development of governance across the continent. South 

Africa’s performance in the IIAG 2013 indicates that the country still ranks fifth overall. 

Other key findings from the IIAG 2013 indicate that South Africa: 

• scores 71.3 (out of 100), higher than the African average (51.6)

• has improved by +0.6 since 2000

• ranks 3rd (out of 12) in the Southern African region

• scores higher than the regional average for Southern Africa (59.2)

• ranks its highest in the category Participation and Human Rights (3rd out of 52)

• ranks its lowest in the category Safety and Rule of Law (7th out of 52)

• ranks its highest in the sub-category Public Management (1st out of 52) and ranks its lowest in the 

sub-category Personal Safety (41st out of 52). 

South Africa is one of eight countries to have remained consistently in the IIAG’s top ten since 2000. 

Other countries in the top ten include: Botswana, Cape Verde, Ghana, Mauritius, Namibia, Seychelles 

and Tunisia.

This year, South Africa’s performance in Participation and Human Rights declined. This category of 

the IIAG measures the protection and promotion of human rights, civil and political participation,  

and gender issues.

The country performance table below indicates improvements and declining rankings:

South Africa’s  
category and  
sub-category scores

2013 Rank 
(/52)

2012 Rank 
(/52)

Change in 
Rank since 

2000

Score (100 = 
highest)

Change in 
Score since 

2000

Overall 5 5 -1 71.3 +0.6

Safety and Rule of Law 7 7 -1 69.8 -3.2

Rule of Law 3 3 +1 88.2 -2.0

Accountability 5 5 -2 65.2 -7.5

Personal Safety 41 41 +1 30.6 -8.3

National Security 8 8 +7 95.0 +5.0

Participation and 
Human Rights

3 3 -2 73.1 -4.6

Participation 8 5 -7 73.0 -18.1

Rights 6 6 -2 68.8 -8.6

Gender 4 2 +1 77.5 +12.9

Sustainable Economic 
Opportunity

5 8 -1 65.1 +5.8

Public Management 1 1 +1 76.9 +2.8

Business Environment 5 6 +1 70.4 +7.2

Infrastructure 7 12 0 54.1 +3.1

Rural Sector 21 22 +6 58.9 +10.0

Human Development 6 7 -2 77.4 +4.4

Welfare 3 4 +1 77.8 -0.5

Education 7 5 -4 71.4 -1.9

Health 10 16 0 82.9 +15.6
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ANHOLT-GFK ROPER NATION BRAND INDEX (NBI) 
The Anholt-GfK Roper Nation Brand Index (NBI) tracks the perceptions of 50 nations, among the general 

public, on six key dimensions, namely: People, Culture, Tourism, Governance, Export, and Investment 

and Immigration. The 2013 annual survey had a total sample size of approximately 20 000 adults over 

the age of 18 years. Brand South Africa used the study as a benchmark to understand the perceptions 

of the general public within each of the nations, and to devise the appropriate communication strategy 

per market. 

CULTURE AND 
HERITAGE

Level of satisfaction with 
country ’s products 

and services

INVESTMENT AND 
IMMIGRATION

Investment potential and 
attractiveness to 

outsiders

GOVERNANCE
Competency, fair 

governance, human 
rights, international 

contribution
EXPORTS

Commercial and cultural 
products and sporting 

prowess

PEOPLE
Skills and openness

TOURISM
Potential attractiveness and 

economic contribution

Fig 7:The Anholt-GfK Roper Nation Brand Hexagon

The 2013 results table below indicates that South Africa’s overall reputation remained stable. This 

marked the third consecutive year that South Africa ranked 36th of the 50 nations included in the study.

South Africa  (2012-2013) Anholt 2012 2013

Overall rank 36 36

Ranking by pillar

Rank
Score 

Di� erence 
(2011-2012)

Rank
Score 

Di� erence 
(2012-2013)

Exports 37 -1.33 37 -0.13

Governance 40 -1.44 40 0.08

Culture 28 -3.36 27 0.08

People 31 -3.32 34 -0.64

Tourism 34 -2.32 34 -0.12

Immigration and Investment 38 -3.85 38 0.01

Fig. 8: Anholt-GfK Roper Nation Brand Index (NBI) 2013

* Score di� erences are indicative of positive and negative changes.

South Africa is one of the strongest performers in the Middle East and African groups, with a ranking 

of 36th for the second year and holding a steady total NBISM score over this period. Although South 

Africa is ranked in the third bottom tier among the 50 nations, the nation has remained consistent in its 

ranking, which is indicative of a stable reputation.  

Three of the NBISM dimensions, Governance, Culture and Investment/Immigration, have seen little to 

no change and remained positively consistent. Additionally, Exports and Tourism have declined by 

-0.13 and -0.12 respectively, and this change is suggestive of little to no change. The only change within 

the South African NBISM score is in the People dimension, declining by -0.64 points. This is considered a 

medium change, which is signifi cant of how panel nations view the citizens of South Africa. 
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CITY BRAND INDEX 
As part of its research programme, Brand South Africa subscribes to the City Brand Index, and submits 

for the survey of three South African cities, namely: Cape Town, Durban and Johannesburg. The City 

Brand Index (CBI) research report is released every two years and includes a total of 50 cities in the 

study. The research is based on perceptions of the 50 cities and is conducted with Anholt-GfK Roper in 

a core panel of 10 countries.

For the 2013 study, approximately 5 000 adults, over the age of 18, were interviewed in the 10 core 

panel countries.

CITY BRAND INDEX – SOUTH AFRICAN CITY RANKINGS 2011 AND 2013

City 2013 2011 

Johannesburg 44 45

Cape Town 42 43

Durban 47 47

Fig. 9: City Brand Index – South African City Rankings 2011 and 2013 

The results of the 2013 CBISM indicate that all South African cities increased their overall CBISM scores, 

compared to 2011. All three cities have improved their scores in the majority of the 10 panel countries. 

Scores were up noticeably in India, which already has a favourable view of South African cities. 

Americans were also more positive towards the South African cities this year, giving them higher scores, 

particularly on ‘Potential’. Importantly, there are improvements in South Korea, which started out with 

a negative view of the South African cities.

Johannesburg made significant improvement in the 2013 CBI with the report stating, “Johannesburg has 

seen the second largest CBISM score increase across all 50 measured cities this year, increasing its score by 

1.24 points and passing Mexico City for 44th place. While South Africa’s largest city still ranks in the bottom-

tier on the CBISM 2013, it has shown impressive momentum.”

It further states, “Although the South African cities face clear reputation challenges, they are becoming 

increasingly competitive – having all increased their overall CBISM scores. Moreover, they all have select 

advantages over each of their competitors, Rio de Janeiro, Beijing and Mumbai.”

Johannesburg overtaking Mexico City in the CBISM is a significant indicator of improved perceptions 

about the city. Nation brand pioneer, Simon Anholt, indicates that for many years the two cities 

had the dubious ‘honour’ of being described as dangerous and violent, and states, “…it now 

seems as if Johannesburg might be moving out of this reputational territory.” “One of the reasons 

for Mexico City’s score decline in the CBI relates to high-profile drug cartel violence and the apparent  

inability of the Mexican government to 

control the scourge.”

 “South Africa should seize this opportunity of 

momentum in its cities’ images, and do more to 

enhance its international standing in coming 

years: but this must mean more actions,  

not more messages.”

Johannesburg may be turning a corner in 

terms of international perceptions, however 

clear decisive action to deal with underlying 

social crime and related problems is the 

only way for the city to further improve  

international perceptions. 

“South Africa  
should seize this 

opportunity of momentum 
in its cities’ images, and 
do more to enhance its 

international standing in 
coming years: but this must 

mean more actions, not 
more messages.”

27



NATIONAL PERCEPTIONS AUDIT 2013 

Brand South Africa worked with Kuper Research to analyse the 2013 National 

Perceptions Audit (NPA) data for information regarding South African citizens’ 

views on democracy. South Africans went to the polls for the fi rst democratic elections on 27 April 

1994 and it is interesting to note that 20 years later the NPA indicates that South Africans have high and 

increasing confi dence in institutions such as the Judiciary and Constitutional Court, two key institutions 

that underpin our democratic dispensation. 

 

Fig. 10: National Perceptions Audit 2013 of South Africa

While confi dence in key democratic institutions is important for the future of democracy in 

South Africa, another important measure of progress in the country since 1994 is respect for diversity 

and an appreciation for the fact that South Africans need each other to grow and prosper.

Results from the NPA 2013 support this notion and indicate that there is a desire for South Africa 

to be a non-racial society:

• 89% of the population feel that black and white South Africans need each other to survive.

• 84% of the population feel that white people born in South African are Africans too.

• In the NPA 2012, 44% of respondents felt that white South Africans should still feel guilty because 

of apartheid, however, this fi gure decreased to 36% in the NPA 2013.

• 87% of the population senses a culture of Ubuntu in South Africa.

I am comfortable with people 
of the same class / status / 
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Fig. 11: South Africa’s desire to be a non-racial society
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Findings from the NPA 2013 are positive on the overall confi dence 

in democracy and key democratic institutions. South Africans do 

perceive that they have benefi tted from democracy, however, some 

groups of the population feel less positive about the personal 

benefi t they may have derived from the democratic dispensation. 

It is interesting to note that 60% of the Indian population feel that 

they have benefi tted ‘a little’ from democracy, compared to 52% 

of the black population who feel that they have benefi tted ‘a lot’. 

A major concern among South Africans is the growing inequality 

among classes; the 2013 NPA fi ndings indicate that the gap 

between the rich and the poor is just going to get bigger. In the 

NPA 2008, 49% strongly agreed with this statement, and by 2013 

this fi gure increased to 53%.

 

Fig. 12: Inequality among classes

In terms of South Africans’ perceptions on corruption in 

government, there is a disconcerting trend emerging from the NPA 

2013 data, indicating that citizens feel that corruption has become 

so widespread that little can be done to control such behaviour. 

This poses a major reputational challenge to the nation brand.

Feel the government is moving away 
from the democratic principles that 

they have fought so hard to implement 
to a large / some extent

Government or state o�  cial found 
guilty of corruption or crime should 

never be allowed to hold o�  ce again.

Are worried (strong / on the whole) 
about the lack of strong opposition in 

parliament

I would like politicians’ personal 
fi nances and dealings to be monitored.

There is some pessimism to a large 
extent in the future of the country 
due to lack of accountability in the 

government (73%) or a lack of skills / 
capacity (73%)

Corruption levels are so high in South 
Africa that I have no hope of 

stopping it.

73%

84%

66%

90%

73%

70%

Believe strongly on the whole that our democratic foundations are strong and will endure

67%

Fig. 13: Perceptions on benefi ting from democracy

Fig. 14: Corruption perceptions

53%
2013

49%
2008
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Brand South Africa also received the results from the two major research projects 

it had commissioned, namely: the Brand Alignment and Compliance Study and the 

South African Diaspora Research Study.  

BRAND ALIGNMENT AND COMPLIANCE STUDY 
The Brand Alignment and Compliance Study provided a comprehensive review of the presence and 

application of the Corporate Identity (CI) when South Africa is communicated internationally. The 

overall fi nding of this study indicated that there is a 58% compliance level to Brand South Africa’s nation 

brand CI, and whilst in most instances there is a high degree of compliance, Brand South Africa has to 

focus more on messaging alignment. 

BRAND SOUTH AFRICA’S 
RESEARCH 

SOUTH AFRICAN DIASPORA RESEARCH STUDY 
The South African Diaspora Research Study was commissioned to identify opinions and perceptions of 

Global South Africans, to identify countries where they are residing, and to identify their willingness to 

be active ambassadors for the nation brand. 

The South African Diaspora study indicated several strong positive associations with the country as is 

illustrated in the fi gure below:

Strongly agree Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly Disagree

Has a strong focus on sports - 

Is one of the World’s best tourist destinations -

Has a great culture -

South African people are innovative thinkers -

Produces and exports some of the World’s best products -

South African people are highly skilled -

Is an attractive investment destination -

Contributes positively to the World -

Is an appealing country to emigrate to -

Has good human rights record -

Has a competent and fair government -

38% 39% 15% 7%

38% 35% 16% 7% 4%

30% 31% 22% 12% 5%

26% 33% 24% 14% 

22% 35% 24% 16% 

12% 27% 29% 23% 8%

7% 8% 23% 31% 30%

6% 13% 32% 34% 14%

5% 9% 15% 33% 38%

9% 25% 38% 26%

11% 21% 66%

 Fig 15. Global South Africans’ associations with South Africa

Results presentation from survey done among the South African diaspora
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Deputy President Kgalema Motlanthe at the inaugural SACF 2013
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SOUTH AFRICAN 
COMPETITIVENESS FORUM

The South African Competitiveness Forum (SACF) is 

a Brand South Africa initiative that brings together 

business, government and civil society to reflect 

on and advise on the key competitiveness, and 

reputational strengths and challenges of the  

nation brand. 

Brand South Africa’s research unit prepared a Special Research 

and Outcome Report on the full spectrum of activities that fed 

into and ultimately made the SACF a resounding success. Through 

this initiative Brand South Africa called on all South Africans to 

play their part and engage in collaborative e�orts to build a strong 

national reputation, based on a globally competitive economy. 

OUTCOME REPORT BACK

1. Forum Working Group and Session Reports with specific 
recommendations and implementable action steps to  
enhance competitiveness.

This outcome has been achieved – detailed session reports and 
recommendations are included in the Special Research and  
Outcome Report.

2. Ministerial Debriefing and final Analytical Report presentation to 
Ministry of Performance Monitoring and Evaluation.

Comprehensive SACF Outcome Report presented to the Minister in the 
Presidency for Performance Monitoring and Evaluation in December 2013.

3. Initiate work and solicit input on the development of a South African 
unique competitiveness index.

Several inputs regarding this were received during regional consultations as 
well as at the Forum. Brand South Africa plans to host a special Research 
Reference Group in 2014 to bring stakeholders that have already given 
specific input together to initiate the concept design/framework proposal.

4. Extract inputs and proof-points for messaging on South Africa’s 
reputation and competitiveness.

Brand South Africa’s SACF delivered tremendous insight, information, 
and possible cases for incorporation in country messaging. Specific 
country messaging recommendations were included in breakaway session 
reports. During the 2014/15 period Brand South Africa will engage with 
stakeholders in specific country messaging workshops.

Fig 16: SACF Outcomes Box - four outcomes which Brand South Africa expect to achieve with SACF

In preparation for the SACF, Brand South Africa hosted a series 

of Research Reference Groups in Gauteng, Western Cape,  

Eastern Cape, and KwaZulu-Natal to consult with regional 

stakeholders and gather their input into the programme.

Delegates at the inaugural SACF 2013

SACF event collateral
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In addition to the four outcomes Brand South Africa set out to achieve, the deliberations by the delegates at the SACF meeting produced 

the following additional six agreed outcomes: 

OUTCOME ACTION TAKEN

1. Establishment of an Implementation Task Team to address the  
execution deficit.

First meeting of the Task Team was held in March 2014.
Work is ongoing.

2. Set up a one-stop shop to drive, consolidate and position South Africa 
as an attractive destination for investment and business.

Work is ongoing through Brand South Africa’s partnership with the 
Gauteng Growth and Development Agency.

3. Consolidate country messaging to enable better coherence and a 
unified voice to position South Africa.

Based on input received from stakeholders and the SACF meeting 
of 5 November, Brand South Africa has initiated a series of country 
messaging workshops with stakeholders from government, business, 
and civil society to address this outcome. Work is ongoing.

4. Intensify and fast-track roll-out of energy infrastructure so that delivery 
can meet demand for future growth as outlined in the NDP.

Work with stakeholders and Task Team to design country messaging 
on infrastructure roll-out plans, as well as green and renewable energy 
initiatives in South Africa.

5. Leverage institutional capacity, skills and knowledge to drive 
competitiveness.

SACF Task Team to advise.

6. Strengthen and amplify current initiatives to deliver quality education. SACF Task Team to advise. Brand South Africa is engaging extensively 
with Youth organisations and the Departments of Basic and Higher 
Education, to identify successes in the education space that will 
improve competitiveness and the reputation of South Africa. 
Work is ongoing to inform the SACF 2014 programme.

Fig 17 : SACF delegates additional agreed outcomes

Brand South Africa continues to work on planning for the SACF 2014 and designed a stakeholder engagement programme that focused 

on the outcomes of the SACF 2013 to build up to the next forum. Reference groups will focus on labour, youth and the development of a 

unique South African competitiveness or country performance index.

OVERALL NATION BRAND PERFORMANCE 
A review of the year from a nation brand reputation perspective 

reveals that the perceptions of South African citizens of the 

economic performance of the country has been impacting 

negatively on perceptions of government, and to a limited extent 

the nation brand’s prospects. 

The research indicates that South Africa needs to strengthen its 

e�orts in increasing its competitiveness globally. Of concern is 

the drop in South Africa’s overall ranking by one position to 53rd 

out of 148 economies in the WEF Global Competitiveness Report 

2013/14, signalling the labour market instabilities. This will require 

a collective e�ort from government, business and civil society  

to improve its ranking.

Internationally, the work of Brand South Africa is on track; however, 

more awareness needs to be focused on the African continent.

The research programme continues to yield invaluable insights for 

purposes of nation reputation building and will continue to inform 

the work of Brand South Africa going forward. It also reflects the 

progress in creating positive perceptions and maintaining a stable 

reputation as a country. These are significant benchmark tools to 

rate South Africa’s competitiveness performance and to influence 

our strategy as Brand South Africa in the future.
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OVERVIEW OF THE 2013/14  
STRATEGY AND BUSINESS PLANS

BRAND SOUTH AFRICA’S MANDATE  
IN CONTEXT
Brand South Africa’s work is derived from South Africa’s national 

objectives of GDP growth, job creation, poverty reduction and 

social cohesion as is informed by the Constitution, the Medium 

Term Strategic Framework, the National Development Plan  

(Vision 2030), and South Africa’s International Relations Strategy. 

Brand South Africa is not a sector-specific marketing agency. 

It is responsible for integrated marketing, communication and 

reputation management, to position South Africa globally, and to 

encourage increased pride and patriotism locally. 

As an umbrella organisation, it is the custodian of the nation 

brand. However, in the discharge of its mandate, the organisation 

operates as part of a network of agencies and departments, whose 

role is ultimately to market and promote various aspects of South 

Africa, either domestically or abroad.

VISION
To have South Africa acknowledged as a top 20 nation brand and 

a top 30 nation in the WEF Global Competitiveness Index by 2020.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
Brand South Africa seeks to inspire and unify civil society, business, 

government and the media to build the reputation of South Africa, 

and to contribute to the country ’s global competitiveness, in order 

to preserve the future for our children.

By working with and through stakeholders to build a positive 

image of the country, Brand South Africa aims to achieve the 

following outcomes:

• Brand alignment by stakeholders

• Increased pride and patriotism amongst South Africans 

• Positive perceptions about South Africa amongst  

target audiences

• Articulated and contextualised South African policy

• A sustainable organisation. 

Brand South Africa aims to achieve these outcomes by undertaking 

the following strategies: 

• Brand strategy development and management 

• Reputation management

• Brand knowledge management and  

performance management

• Strengthening and deepening stakeholder and  

partner alignment and integration

• Organisational development

• Prudent financial management and control. 

By pursuing the strategies outlined and implementing the attendant 

programmes e�ectively, Brand South Africa will contribute to the 

broader impact on the country ’s reputation, and more specifically 

to the following areas: 

• Increased international competitiveness

• Improved international and domestic reputation 

• Increased social cohesion. 

The work of Brand South Africa is reflected through its  

three core programmes:

• Brand Strategy Development and Management 

• Reputation Management 

• Administration. 
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OVERVIEW OF BRAND SOUTH AFRICA’S MANDATE

Increased international 
competitiveness

Improved international 
reputation

Improved media 
reputation

NATIONAL 

PRIORITIES

GDP growth, job creation, poverty alleviation, social cohesion, National Vision 
for South Africa - Vision 2030

INTERNATIONAL 

MANDATE

To build South Africa’s Nation Brand reputation in order to improve South Africa’s 
global competitiveness 

VISION
South Africa acknowledged as a Top 20 Nation Brand and a 
Top 30 Nation in WEF Global Competitiveness Index 2020

DOMESTIC 

MANDATE

Build pride and patriotism amongst South Africans and contribute to social cohesion and 
nation brand ambassadorship

DESIRED IMPACT

SACF delegate’s pledge towards vision 2030

SACF breakaway session
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EXTERNAL FOCUS INTERNAL OPERATIONS

DESIRED OUTCOME AND STRATEGY

To build South Africa’s nation brand reputation in order to improve South Africa’s global competitiveness
Brand South Africa’s 
MANDATE relative 
to South Africa’s 
needs.... 

It aims to fulfi l 
this mandate 
by achieving 
the following 
OUTCOMES

...by undertaking 
the following 6 
STRATEGIES

Brand alignment by 
stakeholders

1
Increased pride and 

patriotism amongst South 
Africans

2
Positive perceptions about 

South Africa amongst target 
audiences

3
Articulated and 

contextualised South African 
policy

4
A sustainable organisation

5

Brand strategy 
development and 

management

1

Reputation 
management

2

Brand knowledge 
management 

and performance 
management 

3

Strengthening 
and deepening 
stakeholder and 

partner alignment 
and integration

4

Organisational 
development 

5

Prudent fi nancial 
management and 

control

6
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TARGET 
MARKETS

KEY TARGET 
MARKETS

Brand South Africa’s choice and priorty of target markets is 

informed by, amongst others, the following elements: 

• The long-term market potential

• South Africa’s ability to compete e�ectively in the market

• The scope and nature of market access

• The country ’s importance relative to others as a source  

of investment

• The interest of the South African private sector in that market.  

Brand South Africa has developed a model that maps out the 

priority of markets based on the importance of each market to 

its major stakeholder groups and the current reputation of South 

Africa within each of these markets.

By exploring the importance of each market to its major 

stakeholder groups, Brand South Africa is able to determine the 

importance set by the Department of International Relations and 

Co-operation (DIRCO) from an economic diplomacy, political, 

as well as a national interest perspective. Consideration is also 

given to the dti’s market prioritisation, for purposes of trade  

and investment. 

The overlap and objectives set by each of these stakeholders 

determines the ranking in the Brand South Africa model. In 

addition, by reviewing the current reputation of South Africa 

within each of these markets, Brand South Africa is able to identify 

where South Africa’s reputational risks reside.  

This model provides the organisation with direction in terms of the 

type of initiatives and support required in each market as it sets out 

four segmented groups based on importance, namely: Priority, Key 

(traditional), Tactical and Peripheral. Countries are identified within 

these groups according to current awareness and perception 

levels, to determine their reputational risk. 

Included within the priority markets are the peer markets in which 

South Africa intends to grow trade and investment relations.  

These include Turkey, Chile, Indonesia and Singapore.  
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KEY TARGET 
MARKETS

UNITED STATES

GERMANY

NETHERLANDS

SPAIN

UK

CHINA

SINGAPORE

INDONESIA

CHILE

SOUTH KOREA

JAPAN

EGYPT

NIGERIA

ANGOLA ZAMBIA

ZIMBABWE

DRC

KENYA

INDIA
UAE

SAUDI 
ARABIA

RUSSIA

BRAZIL ZAMBIA

ZIMBABWEZIMBABWE
BOTSWANA

FRANCE
TURKEY
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BRAND STRATEGY  
DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT

Brand South Africa’s role is to create a positive and 

unified image of South Africa; one that builds pride, 

promotes investment and tourism, and helps develop 

new enterprises and create jobs. To achieve this, it 

needs to develop a nation brand for South Africa, 

ensure consistency of the nation brand identity, and 

promote an understanding of the country’s image in 

both international and domestic markets. 

The brand strategy focuses on four key priorities:

• Raising awareness internationally of all that South Africa has 

to o�er as a competitive business destination.

• Working with and through stakeholders to promote and 

support strategic programmes that enhance South Africa’s 

image and perceptions.

• Mobilising influential South Africans as well as members of 

the media locally and internationally.

• Boosting local pride and patriotism through the Play Your 

Part programme. 

BRAND MANAGEMENT AND ALIGNMENT 
Seeding the positioning ‘Inspiring New Ways’

Brand South Africa’s communications and marketing e�orts 

focused on seeding the country positioning of ‘Inspiring New 

Ways’ to ensure brand alignment and further entrench the brand 

amongst the various target audiences.

Key initiatives included the flighting of the Brand South Africa 

television commercial that was specifically adapted for days of 

significance, namely: Freedom Friday and Youth Day; as well as 

the flighting of the ‘Inspiring New Ways’ television commercial 

on SABC, CNN International and eNCA television channels. 

These campaigns, together with broadcast, print, online media, 

and other traditional marketing techniques, were used to raise 

awareness of South Africa’s o�erings to the international investor.

Alignment of the ‘look and feel’

To further support the brand alignment e�orts, Brand South Africa 

commissioned research on a Brand Alignment and Compliance 

Study, which provided the following recommendations:

• Review of Corporate Identity (CI) roadmap, to include tone, 

personality, consistency and font types and sizes.

• Leverage the CI to include campaigns, namely the  

Play Your Part campaign.

• Link the CI to the Brand toolkit development. 

In addition, the study reflected that 58% brand alignment was 

realised and the results also provided a baseline for compliance 

around brand messaging and alignment. 

DOMESTIC MOBILISATION AND  
ACTIVE CITIZENSHIP
Domestically, Brand South Africa’s aim is to build and sustain 

national pride and patriotism through active citizenship. This was 

achieved through a number of key initiatives, which achieved 

overwhelming support from stakeholders and active participation 

from target audiences.

Play your Part Programme

The e�orts to popularise the Play Your Part (PYP) programme, 

which is aimed at involving stakeholders and the broader public 

to make a concerted e�ort in the marketing of South Africa, was 

implemented through a series of round tables, media inserts 

and roadshows. This was extended throughout the country and 

messaging themes were informed by the National Development 

Plan, the 20 years of democracy achievements and success stories 

and the Madiba legacy. 

This was also embedded through the Play Your Part Day dialogues 

with schools and faith-based organisations, as well as a PYP 

programme in support of Freedom and Youth months celebrations, 

which was executed through the revised tag-on message on the 

existing ‘Inspiring New Ways’ television commercial and further 

supported by an on-line campaign (Facebook; Twitter and  

www.southafrica.info) resulting in 26 355 followers on Facebook. 

Brand South Africa continued to profile South African citizens and 

stakeholders that are playing their part in the country, with the 
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goal of inspiring a culture of active citizenship and nation building, 

and featured guests included representatives from business, civil 

society and government. 

This programme was also extended to a number of key platforms, 

namely the Schools Club programme; the FBO engagements; the 

Department of Transport’s ‘Arrive Alive’ campaign; the One Young 

World programme and the Transnet Freight Rail Career Expo.

MEDIA RELATIONS  
The year under review provided Brand South Africa with a wide 

range of opportunities to develop relationships with journalists in 

target markets to support e�orts of nation branding and reputation 

management. Key messages to potential investors, trade partners 

and tourists included the celebration of 20 years of democracy, 

and from a nation brand perspective, 20 years of competitive 

nation building. 

The robust communications programme focused on publishing 

content on all Brand South Africa’s communication platforms, as 

well as through editorial media platforms, to continue to raise 

awareness of South Africa and encourage citizen participation in 

promoting South Africa.

Play Your Part Outreach Programme

Director: Stakeholder Relations, Iggy Sathekge, speaks at the Brothers for Life Men’s Outreach, 
Newtown 16 April 2013.

A number of successful media partnerships were entered into with 

the Times Media Group, CNN International and CNBC Africa to 

positively position South Africa. In addition, the partnership with 

Goldman Sachs provided an opportunity to host international 

media dialogues in the United Kingdom (UK), China and at  

WEF Davos on the ‘South Africa at 20’ report.
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MEDIA TOURS  
Media tours form an integral part of reputation management as 

they o�er Brand South Africa an opportunity to showcase the 

nation’s progress and potential to opinion leaders and media from 

the countries involved in the tours. During the year, Brand South 

Africa hosted several media tours, namely:

• A bloggers tour to South Africa, comprising journalists from 

the UK, USA and China, to showcase innovation across 

various sectors including the sciences, academia, arts and 

culture, and design and tourism. 

• USA Hollywood film executives on a location scouting tour 

of South Africa presented an opportunity for Brand South 

Africa to work together with the National Film and Video 

Foundation (NFVF) to profile the best that South Africa has to 

o�er in the cultural and artistic space.

• A journalist from the BRICS countries, who focused largely on 

South African’s infrastructure and the Strategic Infrastructure 

Projects (SIPs). 

• An infrastructure media tour targeting journalists from 

Nigeria, Zimbabwe, Namibia and South Africa, which 

was supported by Trade and Investment KZN, Nissan, the 

Automotive Industrial Development Centre (AIDC) and the 

City of Joburg’s Bus Rapid Transport System.

• In addition, Brand South Africa sponsored a journalist from 

an independent newspaper stable in South Africa to Australia, 

to enable coverage of the Brand South Africa Global South 

Africans outreach programme in Australia.

• A local media tour was also hosted to showcase the financial 

services and nuclear, health and technology in South 

Africa’s competitiveness and innovation space. The tour was 

designed to profile the country ’s innovation as a key driver of 

development and competitiveness.

 

African Infrastructure Media Tour - Delegation and stakeholders interacting with  
Brand South Africa’s CEO on commencement of the media tour

African Infrastructure Media Tour - Delegation at Trade and Investment House in KZN
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PROACTIVE MARKETS REACTIVE MARKETS TACTICAL MARKETS

SOUTH 
AFRICA

GERMANY BRAZIL CHINA RUSSIA INDIA UAE EGYPT NIGERIA KENYA JAPAN FRANCE SPAIN UK USA ANGOLA ZAMBIA ZIMBABWE DRC
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April 31 760 38 31 68 87 286 12 26 24 181 201 82 87 16 14 260 274 395 171 22 15 527 713 3 4 498 686 385 434 72 91 146 106 351 533 18 67

May 4 174 27 36 74 49 384 33 26 20 194 201 103 79 12 27 223 295 378 157 20 39 687 766 2 0 524 623 409 512 94 108 99 149 651 559 22 28

June 20 132 21 55 119 74 32 32 29 18 164 190 68 60 10 15 164 367 385 166 26 32 433 1567 2 7 467 790 334 876 100 90 76 158 668 437 30 23

July 75 157 42 45 102 32 24 56 26 32 155 218 71 59 15 18 173 243 332 143 7 26 727 1043 1 2 550 596 446 807 180 80 81 132 722 480 22 14

Aug 55 299 58 28 77 37 38 16 21 15 156 153 64 13 10 2 181 334 437 100 12 14 1020 656 1 4 872 465 654 504 139 73 119 105 598 300 18 29

Sept 16 165 30 28 77 55 17 27 27 21 138 220 118 52 15 26 192 268 339 84 11 26 969 777 3 8 662 561 645 521 126 33 116 60 669 255 22 18

Oct 1 68 28 27 98 50 19 13 14 33 179 201 83 41 18 24 216 342 371 118 21 16 1127 679 6 5 603 545 533 414 143 34 109 78 414 272 21 24

Nov 2 53 24 36 74 50 23 14 21 17 155 199 42 58 19 8 199 336 223 113 19 47 675 649 2 8 611 643 405 421 104 39 79 58 461 290 41 29

Dec 1 8 28 75 108 149 18 14 19 22 190 462 81 140 13 21 232 539 228 237 6 33 876 1814 2 35 620 1744 549 1762 128 120 80 151 485 360 35 19

Jan 2 117 36 30 107 41 23 31 13 28 162 185 77 43 13 14 281 352 254 116 19 24 810 720 6 1 563 663 464 506 163 59 102 83 486 265 23 19

Feb 4 725 42 31 40 60 13 18 15 19 165 213 89 74 9 20 327 259 268 131 9 48 710 776 1 2 752 636 610 474 77 70 97 98 468 202 68 14

Mar 5 35 51 21 53 28 59 19 60 7 262 183 117 35 16 9 273 347 301 106 16 14 1178 718 0 1 675 668 648 585 17 56 70 82 477 182 43 26

Total 216 2693 425 443 997 712 936 285 297 256 2101 2626 995 741 166 198 2721 3956 3911 1642 188 334 9739 10878 29 77 7397 8620 6082 7816 1343 853 1174 1260 6953 4135 363 310

COMPARATIVE MEDIA COVERAGE 2012/2013 - 2013/2014
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DIGITAL MEDIA
Brand South Africa’s digital media platforms enjoyed a successful year, 

which included many technical and design enhancements across the 

digital properties, a new site and increased audiences across all platforms.

The major technical project for the year was the redesign of the 

four primary websites: 

• www.southafrica.info 

• www.mediaclubsouthafrica.com

• www.playyourpart.co.za 

• www.brandsouthafrica.com

This project included:

• A technical update of each site to make the site more 

accessible to mobile devices, to remove the necessity of a 

dedicated mobile site, and to make publishing more e�  cient. 

• A redesign of all the sites to include a single consolidated 

design across all the sites. 

• Close integration of all the sites, so that content may be 

shared more e�  ciently across the four sites, and for tra�  c to 

be shared from www.southafrica.info to the other, smaller sites. 

The redesigned sites went live on the 1st of November 2013.

This was achieved without any disruption of the sites’ 

day-to-day operations. In addition, it had the immediate and 

noticeable e� ect of boosting tra�  c to the Media Club South Africa 

and the Play Your Part websites, as historically, December and January 

have been the quietest periods on the websites.
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Fig. 18: Page views on www.mediaclubsouthafrica.com, www.brandsouthafrica.com and 
www.playourpart.co.za.
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Media Tour - Delegation at the National Research Foundation iThemba Lab in Cape Town

Media Tour - Delegation at Robben Island
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Global South Africans – The launch of the Global South Africans  

website supported Brand South Africa’s e� orts in reaching South 

Africans living abroad. The site uses content from the other Brand 

South Africa sites, as well as content specifi cally commissioned for 

a global audience and users can quickly drill down to their region, 

to view upcoming events and articles of particular interest to their 

region, or submit their own news and events. The current regions 

catered for include: North America, UK and Europe, China and 

Asia, the Middle East and Australia and New Zealand.  

Mobile applications - During the year in review, four mobile 

applications were published, namely: South Africa Story, 

Possibility, Madiba Moments and 20 Years of Freedom. A notable 

application was the Madiba Moments, which was a tribute to 

the former President Nelson Mandela and was published on 

6th December 2013, as South Africa awoke to the news that the 

father of the nation had passed away. The tribute told the story of 

Mandela’s life through use of imagery.

Social Media - The social media platforms continued to grow 

at rates above industry norms throughout the year. In particular, 

the engagement on Facebook increased, and Twitter became 

increasingly useful in telling the South African story. These 

platforms o� er immediacy and a wide reach, and are used by 

Brand South Africa to inform and contextualise live events. An 

example of this was during the State of the Nation Address (SONA) 

in February, when the President’s speech was tweeted as it was 

being delivered, and this enabled the publishing of an infographic 

online, immediately after the speech was delivered and in print 

the following day. 

Digital content by numbers

5 124 578 
74 058

2 397
737

unique users visited 
southafrica.info

twitter followers 
across all accounts

mobile application 
downloads

articles 
published

Sinem Bilen-Onabanjo  -http://fabmagazineonline.com and John Allen - http://allafrica.com/
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STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT 
AND ENGAGEMENT

Brand South Africa works with government, business, 

civil society and the media to achieve its mandate 

of building and promoting the nation brand. It is a 

combined e�ort of all the role players that results in the 

country’s competitiveness and reputation improvements.

In line with the business strategy, stakeholder engagements were 

undertaken to reach out to business stakeholders, government 

and civil society through key initiatives that included round 

tables, partnership projects and dialogue, for the purpose of 

sharing South Africa’s narrative, providing information about the 

country ’s o�ering, as well as to popularise the NDP through the  

Play Your Part programme.

These initiatives enable Brand South Africa to develop a positive 

reputation for South Africa through a strong partnership with the 

stakeholders involved, to improve perceptions about the country.

GOVERNMENT PROGRAMME
Successful government partnership programmes include:

• Brand South Africa partnered with the Department of 

Transport for the Easter and December ‘Arrive Alive’ 

campaigns, through the development of an online marketing 

campaign to promote road safety.

• A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was signed with 

the Economic Development Department for the design and 

execution of an integrated communications and marketing 

campaign for the Presidential Infrastructure Coordinating 

Committee programme, which focuses on building 

awareness around the work done through the Infrastructure 

Build Programme and its impact on the lives of people. This 

partnership is directly related to Brand South Africa’s mandate 

to popularise the NDP.

• Through an existing partnership with the dti, Brand South 

Africa received support for its domestic activities, which 

included the joint hosting of engagement sessions with 

Foreign Trade O�cers as well the African Diplomatic Corps 

based in South Africa, to promote the nation brand. 

• Together with the dti and Proudly South African, Brand South 

Africa hosted the Second Annual Premier Business Awards, 

which honours successful enterprises in di�erent sectors 

and categories of business. Brand South Africa also lent its 

support to the dti on various International Trade Initiatives 

(ITIs) through the development of marketing collateral and 

communication messaging support.

• Successful collaboration was also achieved between  

Brand South Africa, the Department of Minerals Resources 

(DMR), the Department of Science and Technology (DST), 

the dti, and several State Owned Entities (SOEs) in staging a 

South Africa Pavilion at the Mining Indaba to ensure a greater 

convergence of messaging of South Africa to key local and 

international stakeholders. The programme also included 

a successful Investor Workshop, which achieved high 

participation levels from delegates.

• As part of its stakeholder outreach programme, partnerships 

also included Lead South Africa, GCIS, Proudly South African 

and the Department of Arts and Culture in the launch of the 

‘Freedom Friday’ campaign. 
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CIVIL SOCIETY PROGRAMME 
The civil society programme was aimed at popularising the NDP 

through a range of critical stakeholders. The programme with 

Faith Based Organisations (FBOs) in the Free State, Western Cape 

and KwaZulu-Natal provinces focused on the role that FBOs 

can play in public policy and advocacy, building social capital 

through empowering communities, youth development and 

empowerment. Discussions focused on initiatives and activities 

currently being implemented by FBOs, their current contribution 

towards the realisation of the NDP and the challenges and 

opportunities, based on their past experiences.  

Brand South Africa hosted a men’s dialogue in partnership with 

Brothers for Life, which focused on active citizenship and the 

role of men in curbing gender-based violence. This event was 

supported by the Deputy President, Mr. Kgalema Motlanthe, who 

delivered the keynote address and was broadcast on SABC-TV.

Brand South Africa partnered with the National Planning 

Commission in the execution of NDP dialogues with youth. 

Highlights of the youth programme include:

• A programme to popularise the NDP through the coaching 

of school learners in four provinces on the importance of  

active citizenship.

• A partnership with One Young World and the City of Joburg 

in hosting the 2013 One Young World Summit, which gathers 

together the brightest young people from around the world, and 

empowers them to make lasting connections that will create 

positive change in their lives and the lives of other people. 

• The hosting of two BRICS workshops in Cape Town and in 

Johannesburg that targeted youth; also in partnership with 

One Young World. 

• A partnership with the Global Dignity Group, Shanduka 

Adopt a School Foundation and Africa Empowered in the 

execution of a Schools Club programme, aimed at instilling 

active citizenry amongst the youth. The programme reached 

21 schools and 13 School Clubs were formed through the 

initiative of learners in each school.   

WEF Africa in Nigeria

Delegates to the 2013 One Young World Summit
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BUSINESS OUTREACH PROGRAMME
Brand South Africa continues to develop and maintain strategic 

partnerships with stakeholders, allowing it to reiterate its stance 

as a competitive nation, and provide support to businesses who 

serve South Africa in the di�erent industries. Highlights of the 

business programme include:

• A series of NDP dialogue sessions in partnership with 

business stakeholders to review the role that business can 

play in implementing the NDP. These dialogues were held in 

the Eastern Cape in partnership with the Nelson Mandela Bay 

Chamber; in Gauteng with the Black Business Council and in 

KwaZulu-Natal with Trade and Investment KZN.

• A Career Expo Day in Diepsloot, with Transnet Freight Rail 

and the local Methodist Church, reached over 500 school 

children and unemployed youth. 

• Hosted a stakeholder outreach activity in Limpopo, in 

partnership with Sanlam to create awareness around the 

work of Brand South Africa as well as the Play your  

Part programme. 

• Brand South Africa hosted a dialogue session on the Ibrahim 

Index for African Governance with targeted stakeholders and 

media, in support of the Mo Ibrahim Foundation.

• A thought leadership round table in collaboration with 

Africa 360 on the African Union’s 50th anniversary. The panel 

included representatives from the African Development Bank 

and the NEPAD Business Foundation.  

 

INTERNATIONAL FOCUS 
Brand South Africa’s international campaigns focused on the 

needs of investors in South Africa, exporters, and Global South 

Africans. For investors, Brand South Africa aims to increase 

familiarity and knowledge of South Africa as a viable, world-class 

and profitable business destination in targeted international trade, 

investment and tourism markets. Strategies are aligned with the dti, 

the Department of International Relations and Cooperation, and 

South African Tourism. Targeted countries include: China, India, 

the USA, the UK and European Union, UAE, Brazil and Russia.

Targeted advertising campaigns, through broadcast, print and 

online media, and other traditional marketing are also used 

to raise awareness of all that South Africa has to o�er to the  

international investor.

WORLD ECONOMIC FORUM
WEF Davos 

The WEF Davos 2014 took place under the theme ‘The Reshaping 

of the World: Consequences for Society, Politics and Business’. 

Brand South Africa executed a comprehensive media and 

stakeholder programme for WEF Davos 2014, which included 

media partnerships with eNCA, CNN, CNBC Africa and TIME; 

the development of key messages; the hosting of a ‘Thought 

Leadership’ breakfast; and a stakeholder reception at Davos with 

the aim of promoting South Africa to this international audience.

WEF Africa 

Brand South Africa also hosted a successful media programme 

and the o�cial Welcome Reception for WEF Africa in partnership 

with the World Economic Forum and this platform was used 

to articulate South Africa’s value proposition as a globally 

competitive business destination.

The media programme included a media centre, a press 

conference for all journalists in attendance, as well as ‘live cross-

over’ interviews with CNBC that profiled influential South Africans.  

The WEF Africa programme was followed by a post-WEF Africa 

discussion that was co-hosted by Brand South Africa and Frontiers 

Advisory. The Africa Frontiers Forum focused on the World 

Economic Forum’s Africa Summit and its “Meaning for Youth and 

the Unemployment Challenge” and key messaging from WEF 

Africa was amplified through this thought leadership platform.
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STATE VISITS AND TRADE MISSIONS
Outbound State visits present an opportunity to market South 

Africa in the visited country, in order to reach a wider pool of 

stakeholders and focus on the narrative of South Africa’s brand 

promise. 

During the period under review, Brand South Africa participated 

in three State Visits (Senegal, DRC and Ghana) and used the 

opportunity to articulate and contextualise South African policies 

with regards to its competitiveness. 

Brand South Africa also supported the Presidency with media 

programmes for its State programmes in key platforms that included 

WEF Africa, Nigeria and the USA State visit; as well as participated 

as a member of the Communications Task Team together with the 

dti, DIRCO and GCIS, to manage communications relating to the 

o�cial visit of the USA President to South Africa. 

This committee now meets regularly and has assisted in ensuring 

message alignment between government entities, as well as speedy 

responses to issues relating to South Africa. It is also reflective of 

the progress made towards greater alignment and collaboration 

by the various government departments.

GLOBAL SOUTH AFRICANS PROGRAMME
Global South Africans are influential, well-placed South Africans 

living abroad and Brand South Africa’s aim is to mobilise the 

Global South African network behind a programme of investment, 

recruitment, skills identification, mentoring, skills transfer and 

study exchange and work experience initiatives. This is seen as an 

extension of the marketing initiatives in the host countries.

As part of expanding the Global South Africans network,  

Brand South Africa, accompanied by Minister Chabane, hosted 

successful stakeholder engagement sessions with South Africans 

in Sydney and Melbourne as part of the launch of the Australia  

GSA Chapter as well as in the UAE. 

WEF Africa

WEF Africa
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Miller M Matola addressing the WEF Davos  
Thought Leadership breakfast
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COUNTRY  
REPORTS

To build the nation brand and improve South Africa’s 

global competitiveness, Brand South Africa requires 

an active presence in each of its key markets to enable 

it to deliver on its strategies.  The Brand South Africa 

team, together with its country managers in the UK, 

USA, and Asia, ensures that South Africa is promoted 

internationally in key markets, as a business, tourist 

and investment destination.

Through extensive stakeholder engagement and the 

implementation of key initiatives, Brand South Africa 

was able to generate awareness of South Africa’s 

o�erings: improve perceptions and promote the 

country’s competitiveness.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (USA)
In the year under review, Brand South Africa made significant 

progress to promote positive awareness of South Africa’s 

competitiveness in the USA and to improve its understanding of 

South Africa’s trade and investment opportunities. 

Brand South Africa successfully managed an investor roadshow 

for the Finance Minister, Pravin Gordhan, in New York, Chicago 

and Washington, ahead of the International Monetary Fund/

World Bank Spring Meetings in April. In partnership with the 

Embassy, a business symposium and investor dinner was hosted, 

at which Science and Technology Minister, Derek Hanekom, led a 

discussion on investment opportunities, as well as other areas in 

which South Africa is an innovation leader.

To celebrate Freedom Day, Brand South Africa, in conjunction 

with the Consulate in New York, arranged a full day exhibit of 

South African products, investment opportunities and tourism 

promotion at the Washington’s Annual Passport DC event, drawing 

approximately 3 000 visitors and delivering a message aimed at 

solidifying South Africa as a business destination for investors. 

A strong message of hope, capacity and opportunity was presented 

at the Education Africa-Brand South Africa Awards Gala in New 

York, which attracted high-powered and high net worth individuals. 

Brand South Africa Trustee, Geo�rey Rothschild, together with the 

University of Free State Rector, Jonathan Jansen, Pamodzi Holdings 

CEO, Ndaba Ntsele and Africa.com founder, Teresa Clarke, were all 

honoured for their contributions to South Africa. 

The cast of Umoja outside the White House promoting the show in Washington, D.C.
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USA’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 35th out of 50 countries on the 

Nation Brand Index.

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (28) and People (27) the highest.

• South Africa’s Governance (38); Immigration and Investment 

(36) and Tourism (35) rank the lowest.

• Most familiar with Cape Town, ranking at 35th out of 50 

cities around the world, while Johannesburg and Durban 

receive a ranking of 39th and 46th respectively according to 

the City Brand Index.

• Associates South Africa with Mining and Quarrying; 

Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism; and Agriculture, 

hunting, forestry and fishing.

• Concerned by Corruption; Crime/crime rate; and Local 

labour force when considering doing business with South 

Africa.

• Attracted by growing market/economic potential; Demand 

for product/services; and Sta�ng/labour force when 

considering doing business with South Africa.

In Minneapolis and Charlotte, Global South Africans (GSAs) 

were a�orded the opportunity to engage with the South African 

Ambassador to the USA on issues relating to South Africa, at a 

gathering of 35 GSAs working at the World Bank, the International 

Monetary Fund and the International Finance Corporation. 

In support of a variety of South African industries, Brand South 

Africa arranged for South African wine importers to be represented 

at the Washington International Wine and Food Festival; arranged 

for South African wine to be served at the inauguration of the 

National Press Club’s new President, further cementing key media 

relationships; and promoted South African wine in Whole Food 

Markets stores with Wines of South Africa.

Brand South Africa also leveraged fashion designer David Tlale’s 

participation at the New York Fashion Week by partnering with 

the dti and the New York Consulate General in hosting media 

and fashion buyers at the event, to promote the South African  

fashion industry.

Other tactical opportunities that Brand South Africa supported 

included the Goldman Sachs ‘South Africa at 20’ report and the 

USA release of the Nelson Mandela film ‘Long Walk to Freedom’. 

With the passing of South Africa’s first democratic statesman, 

Nelson Mandela, Brand South Africa managed all media 

relations, social media activity and all marketing collateral needs 

of the Consulate, as well as arranged a memorial service at the 

Washington National Cathedral, which was attended by dignitaries 

and private stakeholders.

Launching House of Mandela wine in the US with Tukwini and Makaziwe Mandela

David Tlale, Nana Meriwether and Simon Barber at New York Fashion Week
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UNITED KINGDOM (UK)
The year brought business and civil society closer together, through 

Brand South Africa’s e�orts in opening channels for improved 

promotion of South Africa as a competitive destination in the UK.

Brand South Africa hosted a full week’s engagement programme 

for Finance Minister, Pravin Gordhan, and KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) 

Premier, Zweli Mkhize, which included six investor round tables 

with key business and government figures, as well as engagement 

with investors, media, GSAs and renowned think tanks, which was 

used to promote South Africa as a business destination and to 

articulate policy and progress. 

On Freedom Day, Brand South Africa contributed to the 

celebrations at South Africa House by sponsoring and organising 

the performance of three of South Africa’s leading UK-based 

musicians – Njabulo Madlala, Joyce Mohologae and Luyanda Jezile. 

The Brand South Africa stall at the Homecoming Revolution event 

at the London Expo 2014 in Olympia attracted approximately 700 

visitors and led to 40 new recruits for the Global South African 

network. There was also significant social media tweeting and 

re-tweeting of Yusuf Abramjee’s speech at the conference, which 

urged expats to assist in creating a better country. 

The launch of the much-anticipated Nelson Mandela film, 

‘Long Walk to Freedom’, was leveraged as an opportunity to tell 

South Africa’s story. The heightened media interest also led to 

an opportunity with renowned filmmaker, Tony Hollingsworth, 

UK’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 35th out of 50 countries on the  

Nation Brand Index.

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (22) the highest.

• South Africa’s Governance (41) and Exports (41) ranks  

the lowest.

• Most familiar with Cape Town, ranking at 37th out of 50 

cities around the world, while Johannesburg and Durban 

receive a ranking of 44th and 42nd respectively according to 

the City Brand Index.

• Associates South Africa with Mining and Quarrying; 

Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism; and Agriculture, 

hunting, forestry and fishing.

• Concerned by Corruption; Security/safety; and Limited/no 

market for product when considering doing business with 

South Africa.

• Attracted by Low costs; Growing market/economic potential; 

and Climate when considering doing business with  

South Africa.

to produce a feature documentary, ‘One Humanity, One Justice’, 

which will support the 20-year anniversary celebrations of South 

Africa and will further project positive perceptions of South Africa.

 Freedom Day 2013 in the UK 

Delegates at a business round table with Minister Pravin Gordhan and  
Premier Zweli Mkhize (KZN), 2013
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CHINA 
As the powerhouse of Asia, China presents numerous opportunities 

for South Africa and, given the importance of the region, Brand 

South Africa’s Board appointed a Country Manager for Asia in 

September 2013, to strengthen South Africa’s competitiveness 

and appeal to investors and businesses throughout the 

Chinese market.

Progress in this market included facilitating a Department of Trade 

and Industry programme and participating in the China International 

Fair for Investment and Trade and in the South Africa Expo. Brand 

South Africa also successfully assisted the Shanghai Consulate with 

business media coverage, media content distribution and press 

interviews for the media launch event of ‘2014 Year of South Africa 

in China’.

The Global South Africans programme was also initiated in China. 

A verifi able database of 100 GSAs exists and a targeted programme 

in China has the potential to show South Africa’s value proposition 

to these stakeholders and actively promote the country in telling 

the South African story by leveraging on the South African 

representation throughout China.

In addition, Goldman Sachs’ presented the ‘South Africa at 20’ 

report to Chinese policy makers, SOEs, GSAs, banks and scholars, 

which provided an analytical background and context for the NDP, 

the SONA and the Budget, whilst signalling a stable South Africa.

The shared BRICS values were communicated and sectoral 

perceptions in trade and FDI were managed in China.

Brand South Africa successfully highlighted the political stability, 

regulatory framework, contribution to global governance, as well as 

social stability and e� orts to fi ght crime. In addition, South African 

policy was e� ectively articulated and contextualised in China.

CHINA’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 32nd out of 50 countries on the Nation 

Brand Index.

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (27) and People (29) the highest.

• South Africa’s Investment and Immigration (39) and Exports 

(35) rank the lowest.

• Most familiar with Cape Town, ranking the city 35th out of 

50 cities around the world, while Johannesburg and Durban 

receive a ranking of 41st and 47th respectively from China 

according to the City Brand Index.

• Associates South Africa with Mining and Quarrying; 

Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism; and 

Manufacturing.

• Concerned by Corruption; Security/safety; and Social 

instability when considering doing business with South Africa.

• Attracted by Size of market; Market potential; and 

developed/ developing when considering doing business 

with South Africa.

Supporting Simonsig market entry in China

Nelson Mandela Memorial in partnership with Global South Africans in China
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Minister Collins Chabane and Chichi Maponya at the Global South Africans Round Table in the UAE

Ambassador Mpetjane Kgaugelo Lekgoro addressing Global South Africans at the UAE Round Table

GHANA
The Africa and Middle East Regional Manager was appointed 

and a new Africa Strategy was developed and approved by the  

Brand South Africa Board, which will serve to focus and support 

the organisation’s e�orts on the continent.

Brand South Africa, together with Brand Ghana, hosted a business 

round table discussion, which included the participation of 

the Ghanaian Minister of Trade and Industry and the Chief 

Executive O�cer of MTN in Ghana, to promote South Africa and  

build relations.

Going forward, Brand South Africa will increase its focus on the 

African continent and create positive perceptions about South 

Africa as a destination for business. 

NIGERIA
Brand South Africa hosted a panel discussion and networking 

platform at the WEF Global Outlook Agenda meeting in Lagos, 

Nigeria. Through a partnership with CNBC Africa, Brand South 

Africa was a�orded the opportunity to engage with influential 

Economic Country and West Africa States (ECOWAS) o�cials, 

business leaders and civil society stakeholders to positively 

position South Africa. 

In addition, two dialogue sessions were hosted with the 

Africa Diplomatic Corps stationed in South Africa, with the 

aim of positively positioning South Africa amongst targeted  

African countries.   

Nigeria forms part of Brand South Africa’s structured engagement 

programmes and working with and through these stakeholders 

will deliver on the brand competitiveness and reputation of  

South Africa.

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES (UAE)
The Brand South Africa programme in the UAE was supported 

through a partnership with the South African Embassy and 

Consulate and Business Council in the UAE. Through this 

partnership, Brand South Africa was able to host a dialogue session 

on the South African Infrastructure Build Programme with Global 

South Africans in the UAE. 

In addition, with the support of the South African mission in 

the UAE, as well as the local South African Business Chamber,  

Brand South Africa hosted a GSA round table discussion, which 

was attended by Minister Chabane. This initiative was supported 

by a successful media programme that included interviews on 

both radio and print media.

Brand South Africa continued its e�orts in the UAE to build and 

reinforce awareness of business and trade opportunities in South 

Africa. Work still needs to be amplified in communicating the 

shared values and ensuring collaborations and alignment via the 

existing trade relationships. 
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BRAZIL’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 31st out of 50 countries on the  

Nation Brand Index.

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (23), Tourism (28) and People 

(26) the highest.

• South Africa’s Investment and Immigration (39) and 

Government (41) rank the lowest.

• Most familiar with Johannesburg, ranking the city 39th out 

of 50 cities around the world, while Cape Town and Durban 

receive a ranking of 40th and 45th respectively according to 

the City Brand Index.

• Associates South Africa with Construction; Hospitality, hotels, 

restaurants and tourism; Post and Communications.

• Concerned by Financial instability, Social instability and 

Logistics/distribution when considering doing business with 

South Africa.

• Attracted by Infrastructure; New market/business 

opportunity; and Demand for product/services when 

considering doing business with South Africa.

GERMANY 
Brand South Africa strives to have a positive presence in Germany 

as it is one of Europe’s major financial powerhouses, and worked 

to ensure an extensive media programme that would increase 

South Africa’s coverage in Germany’s national media. 

The announcement of Mercedes-Benz increasing their operations 

in the local market served to solidify South Africa’s standing as 

an investment destination in Germany. Brand South Africa also 

reached out to South Africans living in Germany through the 

launch of the Global South Africans initiative, which served to 

mobilise support and promotion of South Africa. 

Other initiatives included a media focus on ‘Women in Business’, 

which showcased leading female figures in both the private sector 

and government and e�ectively managed perceptions of societal 

issues. It also highlighted social stability and e�orts to fight crime 

through the media programme. 

These events, together with the coverage of the German South 

African Film Co-productions, accrued media coverage to the value 

of $1.7 million.

Brand South Africa’s programme in Germany was successful in 

generating awareness of South Africa as a business destination and 

trade partner; positioning South Africa as a leader in innovation 

and technology; and in promoting the country ’s competitiveness. 

BRAZIL 
As one of the partner nations in BRICS, relations between  

South Africa and Brazil remain strong, with South Africa frequently 

and positively showcased in Brazil. Brand South Africa participated 

in an infrastructure media tour, which gained publicity through 

various media channels, including print and radio. 

In hosting a media programme that focused on business, 

governance, healthcare and technology, Brand South Africa was 

able to successfully communicate the shared BRICS values, and 

demonstrate South Africa’s leadership in hosting global events. In 

addition, an increased understanding of business opportunities 

in South Africa, as well as increased positive perception on 

the country ’s governance issues, was achieved through the  

media programme.  

Brand South Africa supported International Trade Initiatives 

(ITIs) in Sao Paulo and marketed South Africa as a popular 

tourist destination. Brand South Africa was also able to o�er 

thought leadership at the handing over of the hosting of the  

FIFA World CupTM to Brazil. 

Through these events, Brand South Africa was able to demonstrate 

South Africa’s emerging market leadership on key global governance 

issues and e�ectively articulate and contextualise South African 

policy. Engagement progressed with the Embassy and bi-monthly 

meetings are now in place to further strengthen the relationship. 

Overall, South Africa received media coverage valued at  

$3 million in Brazil.

55



GERMANY’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 29th out of 50 countries on the  

Nation Brand Index.

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (21) and People (24) the highest.

• South Africa’s Governance (35) and Exports (34) ranks  

the lowest.

• Most familiar with Cape Town, ranking at 33rd out of 50 

cities around the world, while Johannesburg and Durban 

receive a ranking of 43rd and 40th respectively according to 

the City Brand Index.

• Associates South Africa with Manufacturing; Hospitality, 

hotels, restaurants and tourism; and Agriculture, hunting, 

forestry and fishing.

• Concerned by Crime/Crime rate; Corruption; and Currency/

exchange rate when considering doing business with South Africa.

• Attracted by New market/business opportunity; Growing 

market/economic potential; and low costs when considering 

doing business with South Africa.

INDIA 
To promote South Africa as a business destination and to promote 

bilateral trade between India and South Africa, Brand South Africa 

hosted round tables at the South African Embassy in Mumbai, 

which received extensive local media coverage as well as in foreign 

publications.

Publicity was also generated from local media on the Freedom Day 

event hosted by the Consulate General in India, and the Mandela 

Day celebrations further intensified the growing interest in South 

Africa. Coupled with the South Africa India Film and Television 

Awards in South Africa, as well as South African Business Entering 

Media Event, this generated widespread positive news for the 

country in India.

Understanding of business opportunities in South Africa 

was boosted in India and the shared BRICS values were also 

communicated, together with the promotion and awareness of 

South Africa’s competitiveness. Discussions were also extended 

to include governance on key issues such as labour, political 

instability, unemployment and healthcare. 

Through these initiatives, Brand South Africa successfully articulated 

and contextualised South Africa’s policies, and demonstrated the 

country ’s market leadership on key governance issues. 

INDIA’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 21st out of 50 countries on the  

Nation Brand Index.

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (13) and Tourism (19) the highest.

• South Africa’s Investment and Immigration (25) and Exports 

(25) rank the lowest.

• Most familiar with Johannesburg, ranking the city 22nd out 

of 50 cities around the world, while Cape Town and Durban 

receive a ranking of 25th and 36th respectively according to 

the City Brand Index. 

• Associates South Africa with Manufacturing; Agriculture, 

hunting, forestry and fishing; and Mining and Quarrying. 

• Concerned by Crime/Crime rate; Corruption; and Poor 

Infrastructure when considering doing business with  

South Africa.

• Attracted by Good business environment/atmosphere; 

Growing market/economic potential; and new market/

business opportunities when considering doing business with 

South Africa.
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RUSSIA 
South Africa’s inclusion in BRICS has resulted in positive 

perceptions for the country in Russia and this was improved by 

positive reporting from partner nations. 

Participation at various trade events in Moscow included a 

media programme and content development for World Food 

Moscow 2013 that resulted in extensive media coverage on the  

South Africa/Russia relations, as well as the economic situation in 

South Africa. In addition, an infrastructure media tour promoted 

the systems and processes that South Africa has in place to acquire 

foreign investment.

Building on South Africa’s BRICS partnership, Brand South Africa 

was able to gain media coverage in various mediums in Russia, with 

several thought leadership pieces published, and also attracted 

corporate leaders, fund managers and investors to engage in the 

annual business round tables.

Brand South Africa managed to articulate South Africa’s 

policy and promote the country as a business destination by 

increasing awareness and reporting of its business environment. 

Through its activities and initiatives in Russia, Brand South 

Africa communicated the shared BRICS values, demonstrated 

South Africa’s leadership in hosting global events, and positively  

shaped perceptions. 

Engagement will continue with the Russian Embassy to ensure 

closer collaboration and support of South Africa. 

RUSSIA’S PERCEPTIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA
• Ranks South Africa 43rd out of 50 countries on the  

Nation Brand Index

• Ranks South Africa’s Culture (38), and Exports (39)  

the highest.

• South Africa’s Investment and Immigration (42), Government 

(42), Tourism (45) and People (44) rank the lowest.

• Ranks all three cities the lowest with familiarity, Johannesburg 

ranking at 44th out of 50 cities around the world, while 

Cape Town and Durban receive a ranking of 46th and 50th 

respectively according to the City Brand Index.

• Associates South Africa with Mining and Quarrying; 

Hospitality, hotels, restaurants and tourism; and Agriculture, 

hunting, forestry and fishing.

• Concerned by Physical distance; lack of knowledge of 

country; and Crime/Crime rate when considering doing 

business with South Africa.

• Attracted by Developed/developing country; favourable tax 

incentives; and Good distribution when considering doing 

business with South Africa.
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ORGANISATIONAL  
SUSTAINABILITY 

Brand South Africa continues to build a high performance administration that supports the organisation 

in achieving its mandate. This is delivered through a robust Corporate Services programme, which 

comprises the Human Resources (HR), Planning, Information Technology (IT) and Legal functions. 

Improvements during the year included formal and accredited training interventions that 

focused on skills development training to improve staff competencies; the awarding of three new 

bursaries; the introduction of the SmartHR automated Performance Management System and the  

Talent Management programme.

Notably, the employee retention initiatives and the hosting of the successful inaugural Employee Brand 

Loyalty Awards Programme (EBLAP) will address the ongoing challenge of retention of key human 

resources so that Brand South Africa can build a sustainable organisation to support the delivery  

of its mandate. 

Brand South Africa’s overall business performance was positive and above the 80% threshold set by the 

Board and the functions contributed to the efficient running of the day-to-day business. In addition, an 

HR and IT audit was conducted during the period under review, in an effort to continuously improve 

effectiveness, assess internal control deficiencies, ensure integrity of the systems, as well as overall 

compliance, with the aim of achieving an unqualified audit at the end of the financial year. 

Brand South Africa concluded the Business Continuity Programme, developing all Recovery Plans, 

Policy, Procedures and Business Impact Assessments. Business Continuity workshops were conducted 

with all divisions, as well as a separate session with the Heads of Departments (HODs) to develop the Business 

Continuity Management (BCM) strategy.

Brand South Africa Values Programme
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HUMAN RESOURCES
To improve operational efficiencies and to build a strong and 

competent workforce, Human Resources implemented a number 

of improvements during the year. These included:

• Formal and accredited training interventions that focused on 

skills development to improve staff competencies in line with 

the Workplace Skills Plan.

• Awarding of three new employee bursaries to support their 

various study programmes.

• Completion of a remuneration parity exercise to address staff 

retention. A decision was taken to place this project on hold 

subject to the approval of the new organisational structure.

• The appointment of the new Country Manager in Asia as part 

of the strategy to extend the programme to key markets

• Implemented the SmartHR electronic Performance 

Management System to increase operational efficiencies and 

time saving in the organisation’s reporting system. 

• Developed a Talent Management Implementation Plan, 

which is in discussion with SmartHR to automate.

• Developed an optimised Organisational Structure, which was 

submitted to the Board for approval and will subsequently be 

implemented in the new financial year. This new structure will 

allow for greater span of control and more alignment in core 

areas of work.

• Particular focus was paid on recognising staff through the 

launch of the Employee Brand Loyalty Awards Programme; a 

successful values programme to embed the corporate values 

and culture of Brand South Africa amongst its employees and 

to reward and recognise performance excellence. 

Brand South Africa hosted a successful Employee Wellness Day, 

which focused on coping with stress and healthy living. In addition, 

the fun Heritage Day Celebrations rallied the team together to 

recognise cultural differences and the convergence of cultures.

Corporate Social Investment initiatives were implemented through 

the Employee Volunteering Programme, which once again 

focused on the Ebenezer Hannah Home for the Destitute. This 

year the programme included suppliers, and every staff member 

was encouraged to support three children at the home, through 

purchasing a gift for each child.

In addition, Brand South Africa awarded two study bursaries to the 

top two matriculants at the Lekoa Shandu High School, to further 

their studies in the communications and marketing field, and also 

sponsored the Vega Brand Challenge 2014/15.

Staff attrition still remains a key challenge for the organisation 

and despite efforts geared towards reducing attrition levels in the 

organisation, there were 11 staff resignations in the 2013/2014 

financial year. Efforts to reduce staff attrition will continue to be a 

key focus area in the new financial year.

Employee Brand Loyalty Awards Programme

Employee Brand Loyalty Awards Programme
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HUMAN RESOURCES 
STATISTICS

TOTAL BLACK % COLOURED % INDIAN % WHITE % TOTAL

Top Management 3 9% 1 3% 0 0% 0 0% 4

Senior Management 9 28% 0 0% 1 3% 2 9% 12

Professionally qualified and experienced  Specialists and Mid management 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1 3% 1

Middle Management 3 1 0 4

Semi-Skilled and discretionary decision-making 6 19% 1 3% 0 0% 1 3% 8

Unskilled and defined decision-making 2 6% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 2

People with disabilities 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1 3% 1

TOTAL 23 72% 3 9% 1 3% 5 16% 31

FEMALE

Top Management 2 6% 1 3% 0 0% 0 0% 3

Senior Management 6 19% 0 0% 1 3% 0 0% 7

Professionally qualified and experienced  Specialists and Mid management 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0

Middle Management 2 6% 1 3% 0 0% 0 0% 3

Semi-Skilled and discretionary decision-making 6 19% 1 3% 0 0% 1 3% 8

Unskilled and defined decision-making 1 3% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1

People with disabilities 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1 3% 1

Sub-total: Female 17 53% 3 9% 1 3% 1 3% 22

MALE

Top Management 1 3% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1

Senior Management 3 9% 0 0% 0 0% 2 9% 5

Professionally qualified and experienced  Specialists and Mid management 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1 3% 1

Middle Management 1 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1

Semi-Skilled and discretionary decision-making 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0

Unskilled and defined decision-making 1 3% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1

People with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total: Male 6 19% 0 0% 0 0% 3 13% 9

TOTAL PDI 72% 9% 3% 16%

Disabled 0 0 0 1 0

GRAND TOTAL: M+F 23 3 1 5 31
Percentage 72% 9% 3% 16% 100%

Black

White

Indian

Coloured

for the year ended 31 March 2014
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)
A core emphasis of Information Technology (IT) for the year under 

review was to ensure a stabilised IT governance environment 

through the review and alignment of the IT Governance 

Framework to that of the Public Service Corporate Governance of 

Information and Communication Technology Policy Framework 

(CGICTPF). A draft Master Systems Plan was also completed and 

submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee (ARCO) for approval 

and employees were trained on all IT policies. 

In addition, IT successfully implemented the cabling of the new 

wing of office space at the Brand South Africa offices in Houghton, 

as well as purchasing additional bandwidth to increase the internet 

performance. To further optisimise organisational performance, the 

lease of upgraded and modernised photocopiers was negotiated, 

which has resulted in significant time- and cost-savings for the 

organisation.

IT will continue to ensure the effective management of the 

IT infrastructure, architecture, and day-to-day IT security, 

administration and maintenance, to ensure optimal performance 

of the organisation.

Brand South Africa Heritage Day Celebrations Brand South Africa Heritage Day Celebrations

Brand South Africa Values Programme, March 2014

Brand South Africa Values Programme, March 2014Brand South Africa Team Building, May 2013

Brand South Africa Values Programme, March 2014
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LEGAL
The legal team supported the organisation in ensuring a legally compliant 

organisation and during the year in review, made steady progress to 

achieve its targets. Key performance area achievements include:

• The implementation of a sound Contract Management System.

• The registrations of the payoff  line ‘Inspiring New Ways’ in 

36 countries to ensure that the Brand South Africa owns the 

proprietary in these countries and protects its intellectual 

property.

• The South African Competitiveness Forum (SACF) is in the 

process of being registered in the name of Brand South Africa. 

• The appointment of a legal company to manage all 

trademarks for the organisation.

• A  formal request was sent to the Minister of Finance to grant 

permission to register Brand South Africa as a Public Benefi t 

Organisation in order to enable the organisation to pass on 

tax incentives to potential funders/donors. 

• Brand South Africa had three litigious matters, which it is 

defending, with a potential legal liability of R556,903.19.

 ‘Inspiring New Ways’ trademark certifi cates

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Overall there was an improvement in the fi nancial management 

during the 2013/2014 reporting year, which resulted in a good 

fi nancial standing of Brand South Africa.

The allocated and approved tranche transfers from The Presidency, 

together with the retained accumulated surpluses from prior 

years, were completely expended during this fi nancial year. As at 

31 March 2014, Brand South Africa disclosed an accumulated 

defi cit of R4,723m, which was primarily as a result of foreign 

exchange losses. The accounts receivable grew substantially, due 

to the increased number of related parties’ transactions during 

the year under review. This is also disclosed in detail in Note 26 

under the Annual Financial Statements. In addition, there were 

several signifi cant fi nancial interventions that positively impacted 

on Brand South Africa’s fi nancial standing:

• Major contracts that ended during the last quarter of the year 

resulted in the initiation of numerous tender processes to 

appoint new service providers.

• The implementation of various training interventions on

National Treasury ’s supply chain management processes, to 

ensure an improvement in compliance as per the prescripts 

of the PFMA.

• Compliance risk management plans were developed, 

including the PFMA, the Occupational Health and Safety 

Plans, and Business Continuity Plans.

“A nation is not defi ned by its borders or 
the boundaries of its land mass. Rather, a 
nation is defi ned by adverse people who 

have been unifi ed by a cause and a value 
system and who are committed to a vision 
for the type of society they wish to live in 

and give to the future generations to come.” 
Fela Durotoye

In the short term, the following initiatives have been implemented:

• The appointment of a service provider to assist in developing 

a funding model that will ensure a sustainable organisation.

• The appointment of a professional fundraiser to ensure 

funding support for additional programmes. 

In the new fi nancial year, Brand South Africa will commence a  

process to review and increase its baseline, in order to ensure 

that suffi  cient fi nancial resources are available to carry out its 

intensifi ed mandate.

 MOVING FORWARD
The organisation remains steadfast in building a high performance 

team that is dedicated and committed to Brand South Africa 

and to South Africa. The team remains committed to building a 

competent organisation that will ensure administrative support in 

the delivery of the business strategy.
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THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL 

The Trustees are required by the Public Finance Management 

Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records 

and are responsible for the content and integrity of the fi nancial 

statements and related fi nancial information included in this 

report. It is the responsibility of the Trustees to ensure that the 

fi nancial statements fairly present the state of a� airs of 

Brand South Africa as at the end of the fi nancial year and the 

results of its operations and cash fl ows for the period then ended. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 

opinion on the fi nancial statements and were given unrestricted 

access to all fi nancial records and related data.

The fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 

including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by 

the Accounting Standards Board.

The fi nancial statements are based upon appropriate accounting 

policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and 

prudent judgements and estimates.

The Trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for 

the system of internal fi nancial control established by 

Brand South Africa and place considerable importance on 

maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the 

Trustees to meet these responsibilities, the accounting authority 

sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk 

of error or defi cit in a cost-e� ective manner. The standards 

include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly 

defi ned framework, e� ective accounting procedures and 

adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level 

of risk. These controls are monitored throughout Brand South 

Africa and all employees are required to maintain the highest 

ethical standards in ensuring Brand South Africa’s business is 

conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is 

above reproach. The focus of risk management in Brand South 

Africa is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 

known forms of risk across Brand South Africa. While operating 

risk cannot be fully eliminated, Brand South Africa endeavours to 

minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, 

systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 

predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and 

explanations given by management, that the system of internal 

control provides reasonable assurance that the fi nancial records 

may be relied on for the preparation of the fi nancial statements. 

However, any system of internal fi nancial control can provide 

only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material 

misstatement or defi cit.

The Trustees have reviewed Brand South Africa’s cash fl ow 

forecast for the year to 31 March 2015 and, in the light of this 

review and the current fi nancial position, they are satisfi ed that 

Brand South Africa has or has access to adequate resources to 

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Brand South Africa is wholly dependent on the Presidency for 

continued funding of operations. The fi nancial statements are 

prepared on the basis that Brand South Africa is a going concern 

and that the Presidency has neither the intention nor the need to 

liquidate or curtail materially the scale of Brand South Africa.

Although the accounting authority is primarily responsible for the 

fi nancial a� airs of Brand South Africa, it is supported by Brand 

South Africa’s external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing 

and reporting on Brand South Africa’s fi nancial statements.

The fi nancial statements have been examined by Brand South 

Africa’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 72.

The fi nancial statements set out on pages 75 to 128, which have 

been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by 

the accounting authority on 31 July 2014 and were signed on its 

behalf by:

__________________

Chichi Maponya

Chairman Board of Trustees

__________________ 

Miller M Matola

Chief Executive O�  cer

__________________ __________________ 
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REPORT OF THE
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
for the year ended 31 March 2014

We are pleased to present our report for the fi nancial year ended 

31 March 2014.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
AND ATTENDANCE
The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder 

and should meet four times per annum as per its approved terms 

of reference. During the current year, 5 meetings were held.

NAME OF MEMBER 
NUMBER OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED

Ms. R Magoele (Chairman - resigned 18/02/2014) 2

Ms. S Mabaso-Koyana  (resigned on 12/04/2013) 0

Ms. M Silinga 1

Ms. G Zulu (The Presidency - resigned on 12/02/2014) 2

Mr. D Huysamer 5

Mr. C Molusi 2

Mr. L Mangquku 4

Mr. G Rothschild (Chairman - appointed on 18/02/2014) 2

Mr. W Morris (appointed on 18/02/2014) 2

Ms. K Gaesale (The Presidency - appointed on 05/03/2014) 2

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
RESPONSIBILITY
The audit and risk committee reports that it has complied with 

its responsibilities arising from section 55(1)(a) of the PFMA and 

Treasury Regulation 27.1.

The audit committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate 

formal terms of reference as its audit and risk committee charter, 

has regulated its a� airs in compliance with this charter and has 

discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The system of internal controls applied by Brand South Africa 

over fi nancial and risk management is e� ective, e�  cient and 

transparent. In line with the PFMA and the King III Report on 

Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the 

audit committee and management with assurance that the internal 

controls are appropriate and e� ective. This is achieved by means 

of the risk management process, as well as the identifi cation of 

corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls 

and processes. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, 

the Audit Report on the fi nancial statements, and the management 

report of the Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted that no 

matters were reported that indicate any material defi ciencies 

in the system of internal control or any deviations there from. 

Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control 

over fi nancial reporting for the period under review was e�  cient 

and e� ective.

The audit and risk committee is satisfi ed with the content 

and quality of quarterly reports prepared and issued by the 

management of Brand South Africa during the year under review.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audit and risk committee:

• reviewed and discussed the unaudited fi nancial statements to 

be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General 

and the; 

• reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management 

report and management’s response thereto;

• reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;

• reviewed the entities’ compliance with legal and 

regulatory provisions;

• reviewed signifi cant adjustments resulting from the audit.

INTERNAL AUDIT
The audit and risk committee is satisfi ed that the internal audit 

function was operating e� ectively and that it has addressed the 

risks pertinent to Brand South Africa and its audits.

__________________

Geo�  Rothschild

Audit and Risk Committee Chairman

Date: 31 July 2014

__________________

Geo�  Rothschild
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REPORT OF THE  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
for the year ended 31 March 2014

The Trustees submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2014.

1.  REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
Main business and operations

The primary object of the Trust is to develop and implement 

proactive and co-ordinated marketing, communications and 

reputation management strategies for South Africa. The ultimate 

aim is to make a contribution towards economic growth, job 

creation, poverty alleviation and social cohesion by encouraging 

local and foreign investment, tourism and trade through the 

promotion of Brand South Africa.

In line with the object of the Trust, its mandate is to build South 

Africa’s nation brand reputation in order to improve South 

Africa’s global competitiveness. This would be achieved through  

the following:

• Develop and articulate a national South African brand 

identity that will advance South Africa’s long-term positive 

reputation and global competitiveness.

• Seek to build and develop individual and institutional 

alignment to and support for the brand in South Africa, and 

pride and patriotism amongst South Africans.

• Seek to build awareness and the image of the brand in  

other countries.

• Seek the involvement and co-operation amongst various 

government departments, public entities, the private sector, 

the non-governmental sector and civil society in achieving 

this objective.

• Do whatever the Board considers necessary to achieve the 

primary objective of the Trust.

• Brand South Africa seeks the co-operation of government 

departments, public entities, the private sector and the  

non-governmental sector. 

The Brand South Africa’s Board of Trustees was appointed by 

the President with the recommendation of the Minister in 

the Presidency responsible for Performance Monitoring and 

Evaluation, Minister Collins Chabane. The Minister is the Executive 

Authority and the Board of Trustees is the Accounting Authority of 

Brand South Africa. Brand South Africa is funded by the Presidency.

The operating results and state of a�airs of the entity are fully set 

out in the attached financial statements and do not in our opinion 

require any further comment.

2.  GOING CONCERN
The audited annual financial statements have been prepared on 

the basis of the accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 

The Board of Trustees is of the opinion that Brand South Africa 

has adequate resources to continue with operations in the next 

financial year and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 

liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in 

the course of business.

3.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Trustees is aware of the following circumstances 

arising since the end of the financial year, to the date of this report, 

that require further disclosure in the annual financial statements.

• There is an investigation currently underway to validate prior 

year irregular expenditure.

• Reporting lines will be changed to the Communications 

Ministry as the Executive Authority going forward. 

4.  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE
General

The Board of Trustees retains full control of Brand South Africa’s 

plans and strategy and acknowledges its responsibilities to strategy, 

compliance with internal policies, external laws and regulations, 

e�ective risk management and performance measurement, 

transparency and e�ective communication both internally and 

externally. The Board of Trustees is a unitary structure comprising 

non-executive board members, all of whom are independent 

except for the Chief Executive O�cer.

The Board of Trustees is committed to the prevailing King Report 

on Corporate Governance for South Africa and complies with the 

Protocol on Corporate Governance for State enterprises, the Public 

Finance Management Act and the Treasury Regulations (2005 as 

amended). There are various Board sub-committees that have 

been established to assist the Board in e�ectively and e�ciently 
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executing its mandate. To assist the organisation to comply with 

these obligations, a Memorandum of Agreement was entered into 

between the Executive Authority and Brand South Africa.

The Audit and Risk Committee Charter was updated to reflect 

King III principles. As part of the regulatory framework of the 

Memorandum of Agreement, a number of complementary and 

supporting documents were revised to enhance governance, 

namely the Delegation of Authority, Strategic and Business Plans, 

Auditor General’s Plan, Internal Audit Strategic Plan, Quarterly 

Management Reports, Board Charter, Board Committee Charters, 

Internal Audit Charter, PFMA and Corporate Governance Checklist, 

and Conflict of Interest Policy. In addition, a Materiality and 

Significance Framework was approved in the financial year under 

review. Through this process stakeholders may derive assurance 

that Brand South Africa is being adequately managed.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman is a non-executive and independent director (as 

defined by King III). The Board and its committees held meetings 

and performed their fiduciary responsibilities in line with the 

PFMA. The Board of Trustees, under the ultimate responsibility of 

the Chairman, created su�cient space to maintain a continuous 

overview of organisational e�ectiveness, organisational e�ciency, 

Board performance and Board conformance.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive O�cer are separate, 

with responsibilities divided between them, so that no individual 

has unlimited powers of discretion. The Chief Executive O�cer 

attends meetings of the Board, Marketing Committee, Human 

Resources, Remuneration and Ethics Committee and the Audit 

and Risk Committee of Brand South Africa and reports on the 

activities of Brand South Africa. The Chief Executive O�cer is 

responsible for ensuring that strategies and decisions of the Board 

are implemented through the daily business activities.

Audit and Risk Committee

For the period under review, the Chairman of the Audit and Risk 

Committee was Ms Ramasela Magoele, who was succeeded by 

Mr Geo� Rothschild on the 18th of February 2014. The committee 

met 5 times during the financial year to review matters necessary 

to fulfil its role.

5. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND 
PROCEDURES

To meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable 

financial information, Brand South Africa maintains financial 

and operational systems of internal control. These controls are 

designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

concluded in accordance with management’s authority and 

the assets are adequately safeguarded against material loss of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposal. These transactions are 

properly authorised and recorded.

The Audit and Risk Committee and the Board held all their 

scheduled meetings for the year. All documents that were tabled 

for approval were approved and implemented by the management 

team. There were no material deficiencies identified in the internal 

controls in this financial year.

6.  RISK MANAGEMENT
A risk management workshop was held in January 2014, in which 

new strategic risks were identified and their inherent risk and 

residual risk ratings assessed. These risks were the responsibility of 

the management, while the Board was accountable for ensuring 

that management had an e�ective risk management system in 

place to mitigate the risk exposure. The Risk Management Plan was 

used to implement the Internal Audit Plan and the Strategic Plan.

7.  COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND 
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The commitments, contingencies and legal proceedings of 

Brand South Africa are attached in the notes 24 and 25 to the  

financial statements.

8.  FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL AND 
IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

During the period under review, Brand South Africa incurred 

wasteful expenditure as defined in the Public Finance Management 

Act (Act 1 of 1999) of R73 544. These expenditure details are 

reflected in notes 32 and 33 of these financial statements.
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9.  FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Brand South Africa received funds allocated in line with 

the Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF). The 

baseline funding from the Presidency was R157 934 000 

(2013: R148 779 000) resulting in an increase of 6%. An additional 

amount above the baseline of R2 500 000 (2013: R6 000 000) 

was received from The Presidency for CHAN (2013: AFCON) 

campaign increasing the total transfers received to R160 434 000 

(2013: R154 779 000).

Total other income for the year 2014 was R34 085 630 

(2013: R5 948 555) excluding interest earned from the call account, 

this amount is made up of partnership income with related parties.

The quarterly management reports were submitted to The 

Presidency before funds were transferred to Brand South Africa 

as per the approved MoA. During year-ends 2012 and 2013 

Brand South Africa’s accumulated surplus was R6 000 785 and 

R8 228 735 respectively, which was subsequently approved for 

retention. This retention of accumulated surplus was used to 

fi nance the disclosed defi cit of R10 523 522 (2013: R2 429 184).

10. CHANGES TO THE BUSINESS PLAN
During the period under review, there were no changes to the 

approved 2013/14 business plan.

__________________

Chichi Maponya

Chairman Board of Trustees

Date: 31 July 2014

__________________

Chichi Maponya
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO 
PARLIAMENT ON BRAND SOUTH AFRICA TRUST

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INTRODUCTION

1. I have audited the financial statements of Brand South Africa 

Trust set out on pages 72 to 128, which comprise the statement 

of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of 

financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 

cash flow statement and statement of comparisons of budget 

and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the 

notes, compromising a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. The board of trustees, which constitutes the accounting 

authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 

South African Standards on Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), 

and for such internal control as the accounting authority 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 

statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 

accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa. 2004 

(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms 

thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those 

standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the entity ’s preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the 

e�ectiveness of the entity ’s internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 

the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is su�cient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

OPINION

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of Brand South African 

Trust as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and 

cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA 

Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON THE LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

7. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in 

terms thereof, I report the following findings on the reported 

performance information against predetermined objectives 

for selected programmes presented in the annual performance 

report, non-compliance with legislation as well internal 

control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable 

findings as described under each subheading but not to gather 

evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I 

do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected programmes presented 

in the annual performance report of the trust for the year 

ended 31 March 2014

• Brand Strategy Development and Management on pages 

39 to 44

• Reputation Management on pages 45 to 49

9. I evaluated the reported performance information against the 

overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury ’s annual reporting 

principles and whether the reported performance was 

consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed 

tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well 

defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and 

relevant, as required by the National Treasury ’s Framework for 

managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and 

complete.

12. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information for the 

selected programmes.

ADDITIONAL MATTER

13. Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information for the 

selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matter.

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS

14. Refer to the annual performance report on page 130 to 162 

for information on the achievement of the planned targets for 

the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

15. I performed procedure to obtain evidence that the trust 

had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial 

matters, financial management and other related matters.

16. My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters 

in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in 

terms of the PAA, are as follows:

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not 

prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 

requirements of section 55(1) of the PFMA as material 

adjustments were identified during the audit. Material 

misstatements relating to payables and accruals identified 

by the auditors were subsequently corrected, resulting in the 

financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

INTERNAL CONTROL

18. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 

financial statements, annual performance report and 

compliance with legislation. The matters reported below 

under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to 

the significant deficiencies that resulted from the findings on 

compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.

LEADERSHIP

19. Management did not exercise adequate oversight 

responsibility regarding financial reporting, compliance with 

laws and regulations and related internal controls which 

resulted in instances of non-compliance with PFMA, Treasury 

Regulations.

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

20. Management did not prepare accurate and complete financial 

statements that are supported and evidenced by reliable 

information. The financial statements were subject to material 

amendments resulting from the audit.

GOVERNANCE

21. Management did not implement appropriate risk management 

activities to ensure that misstatements in financial statements 

and performance reports are reduced resulting in repeat 

findings identified by auditors.
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OTHER REPORTS
INVESTIGATIONS

22. The trust initiated one investigation into the irregular 

expenditure identified in the 2011-12 audit, in order to 

determine whether the expenditure was due to fraud or non-

compliance with SCM prescripts and Treasury Regulations. As 

at the date of this report the investigation was not finalised.

Johannesburg

31 July 2014
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STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION 
for the year ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND NOTES 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013  

RESTATED*

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments 10 153,756 85,730

Operating lease asset 8 - 33,132

Receivables from exchange transactions 11 10,329,870 5,411,076

Cash and cash equivalents 12 16,090,346 30,510,446

26,573,972 36,040,384

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 4 2,637,376 2,147,834

Intangible assets 5 72,160 179,304

Heritage assets 6 133,556 133,556

Deposits paid 7 638,828 608,139

Operating lease asset 8 20,991 567,542

3,502,911 3,636,375

TOTAL ASSETS 30,076,883 39,676,759

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 13 144,932 130,917

Operating lease liability 8 187,851 701,323

Payables from exchange transactions 15 33,054,029 31,868,405

Provisions 14 1,157,400 1,094,219

34,544,212 33,794,864

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Finance lease obligation 13 256,265 81,968

Total Liabilities 34,800,477 33,876,832

Net Assets (4,723,594) 5,799,927

Accumulated (deficit) / surplus  (4,723,594) 5,799,927
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STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
for the year ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND NOTES 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013  

RESTATED*

Revenue 16 160,434,000 154,779,000

Other income 17 34,085,630 5,948,555

Operating expenses (205,389,871 )  (163,272,219)

OPERATING DEFICIT (10,870,241 ) (2,544,664)

Investment income 20 395,762 319,657

Finance costs 21 (49,042) (204,177)

Deficit for the year (10,523,521 ) (2,429,184 )
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STATEMENT OF  
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
for the year ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND ACCUMULATED  

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Opening balance as previously reported 8,228,738  8,228,738

Adjustments

Prior year adjustments 373 373

Balance at 01 April 2012 as restated* 8,229,111 8,229,111

Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year (2,429,184) (2,429,184)

Total changes (2,429,184) (2,429,184)

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2013 5,799,927 5,799,927

Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year (10,523,521) (10,523,521)

Total changes (10,523,521) (10,523,521 )

Balance at 31 March 2014 (4,723,594) (4,723,594)
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CASH FLOW  
STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND NOTES 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013  

RESTATED*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants 160,434,000 154,779,000

Interest income 341,067 319,657

Other receipts 29,166,836 1,634,127

189,941,903 156,732,784

Payments

Employee costs (32,725,239) (25,804,636)

Suppliers (169,790,552) (98,379,049)

(202,515,791) (124,337,714)

Net cash flows from operating activities 23 (12,573,888) 32,395,070

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (1,702,614) (1,153,721)

Purchase of other intangible assets 5 (11,770) (168,885)

Purchases of heritage assets 6 - (133,556)

Deposits paid - (390,172)

Net cash flows from investing activities (1,714,384) (1,846,334)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments (106,894) (94,615)

Finance costs (24,934)  (25,074)

Net cash flows from financing activities  (131,828) (119,689)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (14,420,100) 30,429,047

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30,510,446 81,399

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12 16,090,346 30,510,446
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF  
BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

BUDGET ON ACCRUAL BASIS

FIGURES IN RAND APPROVED BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS FINAL BUDGET
ACTUAL AMOUNTS ON 

COMPARABLE BASIS
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN FINAL 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
REFERENCE

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Other income - - - 292,518 292,518

Partnership Income - - - 33,793,112 33,793,112 36

Interest received - investment - - - 395,762 395,762

Total revenue from exchange transactions - - - 34,481,392 34,481,392

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Taxation revenue

Government grants & subsidies 160,434,000 -  160,434,000  160,434,000

Total revenue 160,434,000 -  160,434,000  194,915,392  34,481,392

Expenditure

Personnel (31,728,806) -  (31,728,806)  (33,158,943)  (1,430,137)

Depreciation and amortisation (1,283,429) -  (1,283,429) (1,058,638)   224,791

Finance costs (8,390) -  (8,390) (49,042) (40,652)

Repairs and maintenance (173,910) -  (173,910) (164,313)  9,597

General Expenses (126,972,798) - (126,972,798) (168,632,483)  (41,659,685) 36

Total expenditure (160,167,333) -  (160,167,333) (203,063,419)  (42,896,086)

Operating deficit 266,667 -  266,667  (8,148,027)  (8,414,694)

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities - - - (134,953)  (134,953)

Loss on foreign exchange (266,667) - (266,667)  (2,240,541 )  (1,973,874)

(266,667) -  (266,667)  (2,375,494)  (2,108,827)

Surplus / (Deficit) - - - (10,523,521) (10,523,521)
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ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2014

1.  PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 

including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by 

the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91 (1) 

of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

These financial statements have been prepared on an accruals 

basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 

convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified 

otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have 

been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial 

statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous 

period, except for the changes set out in note 2 - Changes in  

accounting policy.

1.1  Going concern assumption

These financial statements have been prepared based on the 

expectation that Brand South Africa will continue to operate as a 

going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation 

uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, Brand South Africa made 

estimates and assumptions that a�ect the amounts represented in 

the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available 

information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 

formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could di�er from 

these estimates, which may be material to the financial statements. 

Significant judgements include:

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Brand South Africa assesses its trade receivables for impairment 

at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an 

impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the 

surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data 

indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 

flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on an individual 

debtor basis, based on historical performance, adjusted for 

current-specific economic conditions and other indicators present 

at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the debtor.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables 

and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair 

value of financial liabilities and deposits for disclosure purposes is 

estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the 

current market interest rate that is available to Brand South Africa 

for similar financial instruments.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING

Brand South Africa reviews and tests the carrying value of assets 

when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest 

level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of 

cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications 

that impairment may have occurred, recoverable amounts are 

calculated. This is based on estimated fair values and /or value in 

use for each asset or group of assets.

PROVISIONS

In all provisions raised and management determined an estimate 

based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these 

estimates of provisions are included in note 14 - Provisions.

USEFUL LIVES OF ASSETS

Brand South Africa’s management determines the estimated useful 

lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and 

equipment as well as intangible assets. Management adjusts the 

depreciation charge where useful lives are di�erent from previously 

estimated useful lives.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and 

deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 

impairment is measured as the di�erence between the debtors 

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 

flows discounted at the e�ective interest rate, computed at initial 

recognition.
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1.3  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that 

are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, 

for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during 

more than one reporting period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 

as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the item will flow to the trust; and

• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the 

purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 

in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 

rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, 

its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of properly, plant and equipment is acquired in 

exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination 

of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially 

measured at fair value (cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was 

not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the 

asset(s) given up.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the 

item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included 

in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the trust is 

obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation 

arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes 

other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, 

plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line 

basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have 

been assessed as follows:

ITEM AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Leasehold improvements 3 years

O�ce furniture 10 - 15 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

O�ce equipment 5 - 10 years

IT equipment 3 - 5 years

Finance leased o�ce equipment 3 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method 

of each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. If 

the expectations di�er from previous estimates, the change is 

accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not 

require Brand South Africa to amend the previous estimate unless 

expectations di�er from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 

cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus 

or deficit.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when 

the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of 

the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit 

when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the 

derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined as the di�erence between the net disposal proceeds, if 

any, and the carrying amount of the item.

ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2014
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1.4  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without 

physical substance. An asset is a resource that is controlled by 

Brand South Africa as a result of past events and from which future 

economic benefits are expected.

An asset is identifiable if it either:

• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from 

an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, 

identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity 

intends to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from 

contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable 

or separable from Brand South Africa or from other rights 

and obligations. 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers 

similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the 

form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or 

service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

Brand South Africa; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

 

Brand South Africa assesses the probability of expected future 

economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and 

supportable assumptions that represent management’s best 

estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the 

useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange 

transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at 

its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal 

project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 

amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life, 

based on all relevant factors, when there is no foreseeable limit to 

the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash 

inflows or service potential.

Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they 

are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 

indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible 

assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their 

useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for 

intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful 

life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset 

may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and 

the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer 

lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible 

assets.

The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in surplus 

or deficit in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a 

straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

ITEM AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Computer software 2 - 5 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:

• on disposal; or

• when no future economic benefits or service potential are 

expected from its use or disposal.
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1.5  Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, 

historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance 

and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future 

generations.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised 

after deducting accumulated impairment losses and accumulated 

amortisation and/or accumulated depreciation.

Class of assets means a grouping of assets of a similar nature or 

function in Brand South Africa’s operations that is shown as a single 

item for the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value 

of the other consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of 

its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount 

attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance 

with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable 

amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, 

or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 

arm’s length transaction.

An impairment loss of a cash-generating asset is the amount by 

which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 

amount.

An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount 

by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 

service amount.

A non-transferable item is an asset that Brand South Africa is 

required by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be 

disposed of without consent.

Recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating asset’s net 

selling price and its value in use.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating 

asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the 

future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-

generating unit.

Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of 

the asset’s remaining service potential.

RECOGNITION

Brand South Africa recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it 

is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the asset will flow to Brand South Africa, and the 

cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

INITIAL MEASUREMENT

Heritage assets are initially measured at cost.

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange 

transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of 

acquisition.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at 

its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

IMPAIRMENT

Brand South Africa assesses at each reporting date whether there 

is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication 

exists, Brand South Africa estimates the recoverable amount or the 

recoverable service amount of the heritage asset

TRANSFERS

Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular 

asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset.

Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets 

the definition of a heritage asset.

ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
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DERECOGNITION

Brand South Africa derecognises heritage asset on disposal, 

or when no future economic benefits or service potential are 

expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is 

determined as the di�erence between the net disposal proceeds, if 

any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such di�erence 

is recognised in surplus or deficit when the heritage asset is 

derecognised.

1.6  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 

asset of Brand South Africa and a financial liability or a residual 

interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the 

amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured 

at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus 

the cumulative amortisation using the e�ective interest method 

of any di�erence between that initial amount and the maturity 

amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of 

an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will 

cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge  

an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial 

asset or financial liability from Brand South Africa’s statement of 

financial position.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, 

or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an 

arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:

• cash;

• a residual interest of another entity; or

• a contractual right to:

• receive cash or another financial asset from another 

entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with 

another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favourable to Brand South Africa. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer 

to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it 

incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when 

due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 

instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under 

conditions that are potentially unfavourable to  

Brand South Africa.  

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by Brand South Africa in the 

event of di�culty in meeting obligations associated with financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial 

asset.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under 

pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term 

payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a 

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, 

interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 

risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 

84Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors a�ecting all 

similar financial instruments traded in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterpart has failed to make 

a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the 

assets of Brand South Africa after deducting all of its liabilities. A 

residual interest includes contributions from executive authority, 

which may be shown as:

• accumulated surplus or similar forms of unitised reserves;

• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of 

such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming 

part of an entity ’s net assets, either before the contribution 

occurs or at the time of the contribution; or

• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, 

establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the 

net assets of an entity. 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial 

liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been 

incurred if Brand South Africa had not acquired, issued or disposed 

of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative 

financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed 

or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

• Brand South Africa designates at fair value at initial 

recognition; or

• are held for trading. 

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests 

that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and 

whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or 

financial liabilities that are:

• derivatives;

• combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

• instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for 

trading if:

• it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of 

selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified 

financial instruments that are managed together and for 

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of  

short-term profit-taking;

• non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with 

fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair 

value at initial recognition; and

• financial instruments that do not meet the definition 

of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 

instruments at cost.

CLASSIFICATION

Brand South Africa has the following types of financial assets 

(classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto:

CLASS CATEGORY

Cash and cash equivalents Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Receivables from non-exchange 
transactions

Financial assets measured at 
amortised cost

Receivables from exchange 
transactions

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

 

Brand South Africa has the following types of financial liabilities 

(classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto:

CLASS CATEGORY

Payables from exchange 
transactions

Financial liabilities measured at 
fair value

Lease liabilities Financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost

INITIAL RECOGNITION

Brand South Africa recognises a financial asset or a financial liability 

in its statement of financial position when Brand South Africa 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Brand South Africa recognises financial assets using trade date 

accounting.

ACCOUNTING 
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SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Brand South Africa measures all financial assets and financial 

liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:

• Financial instruments at fair value.

• Financial instruments at amortised cost.

• Financial instruments at cost. 

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject 

to an impairment review.

GAINS AND LOSSES

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial 

asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised in 

surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised 

cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when 

the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, 

or through the amortisation process.

IMPAIRMENT AND UNCOLLECTIBILITY OF  

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Brand South Africa assesses at the end of each reporting period 

whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 

group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial 

assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount 

of the loss is measured as the di�erence between the asset’s 

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 

flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) 

discounted at the financial asset’s original e�ective interest rate. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of 

an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in 

surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 

recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance 

account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the 

financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have 

been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the 

impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised 

in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been 

incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not 

measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured 

reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the 

di�erence between the carrying amount of the financial asset and 

the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at 

the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such 

impairment losses are not reversed.

DERECOGNITION

Financial assets

The Brand South Africa derecognises financial assets using trade 

date accounting.

Brand South Africa derecognises a financial asset only when:

• the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, are settled or waived;

• Brand South Africa transfers to another party substantially all 

of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

• Brand South Africa, despite having retained some significant 

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 

transferred control of the asset to another party and the 

other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 

entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that 

ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional 

restrictions on the transfer. In this case, Brand South Africa:

• derecognises the asset; and

• recognises separately any rights and obligations created 

or retained in the transfer. 

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated 

between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred 

on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly 

created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at 
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that date. Any di�erence between the consideration received and 

the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus 

or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If Brand South Africa transfers a financial asset in a transfer that 

qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to 

service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing 

asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to 

be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately 

for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing 

obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received 

is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the 

servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an 

amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying 

amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its 

entirety but the transfer results in the trust obtaining a new financial 

asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, 

the trust recognises the new financial asset, financial liability or 

servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the di�erence 

between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 

received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the 

part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the 

previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated 

between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that 

is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, 

on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing 

asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The 

di�erence between the carrying amount allocated to the part 

derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the 

part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because Brand 

South Africa has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the transferred asset, Brand South Africa continues 

to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognises a 

financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent 

periods, Brand South Africa recognises any revenue on the 

transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. 

Neither the asset, and the associated liability, nor the revenue, and 

the associated expenses are o�set.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Brand South Africa removes a financial liability (or a part of a 

financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 

extinguished - i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is 

discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt 

instruments with substantially di�erent terms is accounted for 

as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new 

financial liability is recognised.

Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing 

financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having 

extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised 

a new financial liability.

The di�erence between the carrying amount of a financial liability 

(or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another 

party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 

transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another 

entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for 

in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-

exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

PRESENTATION

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is 

a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus 

or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component 

that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 

surplus or deficit in the period in which they were incurred.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only o�set and the 

net amount presented in the statement of financial position when 

Brand South Africa currently has a legally enforceable right to set 

o� the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net 

basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not 

qualify for derecognition, Brand South Africa does not o�set the 

transferred asset and the associated liability.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand-

deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are 

readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject 

to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and 

subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.7  Tax

TAX EXPENSES

Brand South Africa is exempt from taxation by the South African 

Revenue Services (SARS) in terms of Section 10(1)(ca)(1) of the 

Income Tax 58 of 1962 as amended.

1.8  Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all 

the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the trust 

assesses the classification of each element separately.

FINANCE LEASES - LESSEE

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the 

statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair 

value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the 

minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor 

is included in the statement of financial position as a finance  

lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the 

minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance 

charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 

charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 

produce a constant periodic rate of the remaining balance of the 

liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they  

are incurred.

OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. The di�erence between the 

amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments 

are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.9  Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by Brand 

South Africa in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an 

insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard of 

GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the 

proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund employee 

benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the 

reporting entity ’s own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot 

be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

• the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed 

for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit 

obligations; or

• the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse 

it for employee benefits already paid.  

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

• Brand South Africa’s decision to terminate an employee’s 

employment before the normal retirement date; or

• an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in 

exchange for those benefits. 

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other 

than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that are 

not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render the related service.
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Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not 

conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by 

legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-

employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not 

consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from 

Brand South Africa’s actions whereby an established pattern of 

past practice, published policies or a su�ciently specific current 

statement, the trust has indicated to other parties that it will accept 

certain responsibilities and as a result, the trust has created a valid 

expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge 

those responsibilities.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than 

termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render 

the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

• wages, salaries and social security contributions;

• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual 

leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the 

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the 

end of the reporting period in which the employees render 

the related employee service;

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable 

within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in 

which the employees render the related service; and

• non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free 

or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars and 

cellphones) for current employees. 

When an employee has rendered service to the trust during a 

reporting period, the trust recognises the undiscounted amount 

of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange 

for that service:

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount 

already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits, Brand South Africa 

recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the 

extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a 

reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits 

the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as 

an expense as the employees render services that increase their 

entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when 

the absence occurs. Brand South Africa measures the expected 

cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional 

amount that the trust expects to pay as a result of the unused 

entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The trust recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and 

performance related payments when the trust has a present legal 

or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result 

of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be 

made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic 

alternative but to make the payments.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than 

termination benefits) which are payable after the completion  

of employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal arrangements under 

which Brand South Africa provides post-employment benefits for 

one or more employees.

Umbrella Funds are defined contribution plans (other than state 

plans and composite social security programmes) or defined 

benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets 

contributed by various entities that are not under common control 

and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more 

than one entity, on the basis that contribution and benefit levels 

are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that 

employs the employees concerned.
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS: DEFINED CONTRIBUTION 

PLANS

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans 

under which Brand South Africa pays fixed contributions into a 

separate Old Mutual (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 

obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold 

su�cient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee 

service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to Brand South Africa 

during a reporting period, Brand South Africa recognises the 

contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange 

for that service:

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any 

contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid 

exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting 

date, Brand South Africa recognises that excess as an asset 

(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead 

to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash 

refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits 

the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset. 

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall 

due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 

period in which the employees render the related service, they are 

discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value of 

money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected 

to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency 

and estimated term of the obligation.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

Brand South Africa recognises termination benefits as a liability and 

an expense when the entity is demonstrably committed to either:

• terminate the employment of an employee or group of 

employees before the normal retirement date; or

• provide termination benefits as a result of an o�er made in 

order to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

Brand South Africa is demonstrably committed to a termination 

when the trust has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is 

without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes:

• the location, function, and approximate number of 

employees whose services are to be terminated;

• the termination benefits for each job classification or 

function; and 

• the time at which the plan will be implemented. 

Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time 

to complete implementation is such that material changes to the 

plan are not likely.

Where termination benefits fall due more than a year after the 

reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate discount 

rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of 

money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected 

to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency 

and estimated term of the benefit.

In the case of an o�er made to encourage voluntary redundancy, 

the measurement of termination benefits is based on the number 

of employees expected to accept the o�er.

1.10 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

A liability is a present obligation as a result of past events, settlement 

of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation depending on 

whether some uncertain future event occurs, or a present 

obligation but payment is not probable or the amount cannot be 

measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, 

and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 

wholly within the control of Brand South Africa.

Provisions are recognised when:

• Brand South Africa has a present obligation as a result of a 

past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 
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The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure 

expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 

reporting date.

Where the e�ect of time value of money is material, the amount of 

a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be 

required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 

the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision 

is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 

is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that 

reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 

The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount 

recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount 

of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 

reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 

no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle 

the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision 

increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 

increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision 

was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If the trust has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation 

(net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured 

as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer 

to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it 

incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when 

due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 

instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under 

pre-specified terms and conditions.

Brand South Africa recognises a provision for financial guarantees 

and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will 

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 

obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in 

relation to financial guarantees requires judgement.

Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:

• financial di�culty of the debtor;

• defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments 

by the debtor;

• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it 

being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of 

the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and

• a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high 

interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on 

the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

Where a fee is received by Brand South Africa for issuing a financial 

guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, 

it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount 

required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee 

is charged and Brand South Africa considers that an outflow of 

economic resources is probable, Brand South Africa recognises 

the obligation at the higher of:

• the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where 

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in 

accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from 

Exchange Transactions. 
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1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service 

potential during the reporting period when those inflows result 

in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to 

contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which Brand South Africa 

receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 

directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of 

goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, 

or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 

arm’s length transaction.

MEASUREMENT

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 

or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service 

potential received and receivable by Brand South Africa, which 

represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 

to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that 

the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the 

asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or 

future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to 

the transferor.

Control of an asset arises when Brand South Africa can use or 

otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can 

exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or 

receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law 

enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or 

regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange 

transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, Brand South Africa 

either receives value from another entity without directly giving 

approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another 

entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in 

exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or 

direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but 

do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential 

is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as 

specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, 

or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred 

asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that 

provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available 

to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or 

other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid 

or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and/or regulations, 

established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not 

include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service 

potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

RECOGNITION

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised 

as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a 

liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As Brand South Africa satisfies a present obligation recognised as a 

liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 

transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount 

of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue 

equal to that reduction.
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MEASUREMENT

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount 

of the increase in net assets recognised by Brand South Africa.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the Brand South 

Africa recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to 

the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of 

acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where 

a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the 

best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the 

reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, 

recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, 

because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the 

amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

GIFTS AND DONATIONS, INCLUDING GOODS IN-KIND 

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind, are recognised as 

assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic 

benefits or service potential will flow to Brand South Africa and the 

fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.13 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using 

the e�ective interest method.

1.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in 

which they are incurred.

1.15 Translation of foreign currencies

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition 

in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot 

exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign 

currency at the date of the transaction.

At each reporting date:

• foreign currency monetary items are translated using the 

closing rate;

• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 

cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 

rate at the date of the transaction; and

• non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a 

foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 

date when the fair value was determined. 

Exchange di�erences arising on the settlement of monetary items 

or on translating monetary items at rates di�erent from those at 

which they were translated on initial recognition during the period 

or in previous financial statements are recognised in surplus or 

deficit in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised 

directly in net assets, any exchange component of that gain or 

loss is recognised directly in net assets. When a gain or loss on a  

non-monetary item is recognised in surplus or deficit, any 

exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in surplus 

or deficit.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are 

recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the 

date of the cash flow.

1.16 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain 

and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance in the 12 months that the expenditure was incurred. 

The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 

expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 

revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.17 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is 

expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 

contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement 

of any applicable legislation, including:

a. this Act; or

b. the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any 

regulations made in terms of the Act; or

c. any provincial legislation providing for procurement 

procedures in that provincial government. 
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National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was 

issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the 

following (e�ective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the 

current financial and which was condoned before year-end and/

or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be 

recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such 

an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of 

updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the 

current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited 

at year-end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. 

No further action is required with the exception of updating the 

note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial 

year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 

register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must 

be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during 

the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 

National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded 

appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 

irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account 

must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate 

steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the 

person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting 

o�cer or accounting authority may write o� the amount as 

debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the 

financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also 

be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been 

condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related 

thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure 

item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements 

and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.18 Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is 

incurred.

1.19 Budget information

Brand South Africa is subject to budgetary limits in the form of 

appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which 

is given e�ect through authorising legislation, appropriation or 

similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entities provide information 

on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance with 

the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on an accrual basis and presented 

by programmes linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2013 to 

31/03/2014.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities’ 

approved budgets under its control.

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of 

accounting, therefore a comparison with the budgeted amounts 

for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of 

comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.20 Related parties

Brand South Africa operates in an economic sector currently 

dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the  

South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional 

independence of the three spheres of government in South 

Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government are 

considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing 

and controlling the activities of Brand South Africa, including those 

charged with the governance of Brand South Africa in accordance 

with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform 

such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be 

those family members who may be expected to influence, 

or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with  

Brand South Africa.
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2. Changes in accounting policy

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice on a basis 

consistent with the prior year except for the change in accounting 

policy of property, plant and equipment from the revaluation 

model to cost model.

The aggregate e�ect of the changes in accounting policy on the 

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (prior year) 

is nil since Brand South Africa carried the items of property, plant 

and equipment at cost in those financial statements despite the 

fact that its policy as disclosed was a revaluation model.
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3. New standards and interpretations

3.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

Brand South Africa has not applied the following standards and 

interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for 

the Brand South Africa’s accounting periods beginning on or after 

01 April 2014 or later periods:

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting

Segments are identified by the way in which information is reported 

to management, both for purposes of assessing performance and 

making decisions about how future resources will be allocated 

to the various activities undertaken by the entity. The major 

classifications of activities identified in budget documentation will 

usually reflect the segments for which an entity reports information 

to management.

Segment information is either presented based on service or 

geographical segments. Service segments relate to a distinguishable 

component of an entity that provides specific outputs or achieves 

particular operating objectives that are in line with the entity ’s 

overall mission. Geographical segments relate to specific outputs 

generated, or particular objectives achieved, by an entity within a 

particular region.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its e�ective 

date has not yet been determined by the Minister of Finance. The 

e�ective date indicated is a provisional date and could change 

depending on the decision of the Minister of Finance.

Directive 2 - Transitional provisions for public entities, municipal 

entities and constitutional institutions, states that no comparative 

segment information need to be presented on initial adoption of 

this Standard.

Directive 3 - Transitional provisions for high capacity municipalities 

states that no comparative segment information need to be 

presented on initial adoption of the Standard. Where items have 

not been recognised as a result of transitional provisions under the 

Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment, recognition 

requirements of this Standard would not apply to such items until 

the transitional provision in that Standard expires.

Directive 4 - Transitional provisions for medium and low capacity 

municipalities states that no comparative segment information 

need to be presented on initial adoption of the Standard. Where 

items have not been recognised as a result of transitional provisions 

under the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment and 

the Standard of GRAP on Agriculture, the recognition requirements 

of the Standard would not apply to such items until the transitional 

provision in that standard expires.

The e�ective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 April 2016.

The Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first 

time in the 2016 financial statements.

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.

GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not 

under common control

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles 

for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not 

under common control. It requires an entity that prepares and 

presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting 

to apply this Standard to a transaction or other event that meets 

the definition of a transfer of functions. It includes a diagram and 

requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether 

this Standard should be applied in accounting for a transaction or 

event that involves a transfer of functions or merger.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying a transfer of functions 

between entities not under common control the acquisition 

method, Recognising and measuring the di�erence between the 

assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the consideration 

transferred, Measurement period, Determining what is part of a 

transfer of functions, Subsequent measurement and accounting, 

Disclosure, Transitional provisions as well as the E�ective date of 

the standard.

NOTES TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

96Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



The e�ective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 April 2014.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on 

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 107: Mergers

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles 

for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not 

under common control. It requires an entity that prepares and 

presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting 

to apply this Standard to a transaction or other event that meets 

the definition of a transfer of functions. It includes a diagram and 

requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether 

this Standard should be applied in accounting for a transaction or 

event that involves a transfer of functions or merger.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying a transfer of functions 

between entities not under common control, The acquisition 

method, Recognising and measuring the di�erence between the 

assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the consideration 

transferred, Measurement period, Determining what is part of a 

transfer of functions, Subsequent measurement and accounting, 

Disclosure, Transitional provisions as well as the E�ective date of 

the standard.

The e�ective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 April 2014.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on 

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 20: Related parties

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity ’s 

financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw 

attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or 

deficit may have been a�ected by the existence of related parties 

and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.

An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under 

the accrual basis of accounting shall apply this standard in:

• identifying related party relationships and transactions;

• identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, 

between an entity and its related parties;

• identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items 

in (a) and (b) is required; and

• determining the disclosures to be made about those items.

 

This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, 

transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, in 

the consolidated and separate financial statements of the reporting 

entity in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Consolidated 

and Separate Financial Statements. This standard also applies to 

individual financial statements.

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, 

including commitments, and relationships with related parties may 

a�ect users’ assessments of the financial position and performance 

of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver agreed services, 

including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity.

This disclosure also ensures that the reporting entity is transparent 

about its dealings with related parties.

The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with 

the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise 

significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity 

that is subject to common control, or joint control. As a minimum, 

the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity:

• A person or a close member of that person’s family is related 

to the reporting entity if that person:

• has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

• has significant influence over the reporting entity;

• is a member of the management of the entity or its 

controlling entity.

• An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the 

following conditions apply:

• the entity is a member of the same economic entity 

(which means that each controlling entity, controlled 

entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);

• one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 

entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of an 
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economic entity of which the other entity is a member);

• both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

• one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other 

entity is an associate of the third entity;

• the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the 

benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity 

related to the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a 

plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity;

• the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person 

identified in (a); and

• a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over 

that entity or is a member of the management of that 

entity (or its controlling entity). 

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a 

transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting 

entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of:

• Close member of the family of a person;

• Management;

• Related parties;

• Remuneration; and

• Significant influence 

The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of:

• Control;

• Related party transactions; and

• Remuneration of management 

The e�ective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 

01 April 2014.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on Brand 

South Africa’s financial statements.

IGRAP 11: Consolidation - Special purpose entities

An entity may be created to accomplish a narrow and well-

defined objective (e.g. to e�ect a lease, research and development 

activities or a securitisation of financial assets). Such a special 

purpose entity (‘SPE’) may take the form of a corporation, trust, 

partnership or unincorporated entity. SPEs often are created with 

legal arrangements that impose strict and sometimes permanent 

limits on the decision-making powers of their management over 

the operations of the SPE. Frequently, these provisions specify that 

the policy guiding the ongoing activities of the SPE cannot be 

modified, other than perhaps by its creator or sponsor (i.e. they 

operate on so-called ‘autopilot’). The sponsor (or entity on whose 

behalf the SPE was created) frequently transfers assets to the SPE, 

obtains the right to use assets held by the SPE or performs services 

for the SPE, while other parties (‘capital providers’) may provide the 

funding to the SPE. An entity that engages in transactions with an 

SPE (frequently the creator or sponsor) may in substance control 

the SPE. A beneficial interest in an SPE may, for example, take the 

form of a debt instrument, an equity instrument, a participation 

right, a residual interest or a lease. Some beneficial interests may 

simply provide the holder with a fixed or stated rate of return, 

while others give the holder rights or access to other future 

economic benefits or service potential of the SPE’s activities. In 

most cases, the creator or sponsor (or the entity on whose behalf 

the SPE was created) retains a significant beneficial interest in 

the SPE’s activities, even though it may own little or none of the  

SPE’s net assets.

The Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial 

Statements requires the consolidation of entities that are controlled 

by the reporting entity. However, the Standard of GRAP does not 

provide explicit guidance on the consolidation of SPEs. The issue is 

under what circumstances an entity should consolidate an SPE. This 

interpretation of the Standards of GRAP does not apply to post-

employment benefit plans or other long-term employee benefit 

plans to which the Standard of GRAP on Employee Benefits applies.

A transfer of assets from an entity to an SPE may qualify as a sale by 

that entity. Even if the transfer does qualify as a sale, the provisions 

of the Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial 

Statements and this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP may 

mean that the entity should consolidate the SPE. This Interpretation 

of the Standards of GRAP does not address the circumstances in 

which sale treatment should apply for the entity or the elimination 

of the consequences of such a sale upon consolidation.

The e�ective date of this interpretation is dependent on/in 

conjunction with the e�ective date of GRAP105, 106 and 107. 

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the interpretation for the first 

time in the 2014 financial statements.

98Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



The impact of this interpretation is currently being assessed.

IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities - Non-monetary 

contributions by ventures

Paragraph .54 in the Standard of GRAP on Interests in Joint 

Ventures refers to both contributions and sales between a venturer 

and a joint venture as follows: ‘When a venturer contributes or 

sells assets to a joint venture, recognition of any portion of a gain 

or loss from the transaction shall reflect the substance of the 

transaction. In addition, paragraph 31 in the Standard of GRAP on 

Interests in Joint Ventures says that ‘a jointly controlled entity is 

a joint venture that involves the establishment of a corporation, 

partnership or other entity in which each venturer has an interest’. 

There is no explicit guidance on the recognition of gains and losses 

resulting from contributions of non-monetary assets to jointly 

controlled entities (‘JCEs’).

Contributions to a JCE are transfers of assets by venturers 

in exchange for an interest in the net asset in the JCE. Such 

contributions may take various forms. Contributions may be made 

simultaneously by the venturers either upon establishing the JCE 

or subsequently. The consideration received by the venturer(s) in 

exchange for assets contributed to the JCE may also include cash 

or other consideration that does not depend on future cash flows 

of the JCE (‘additional consideration’).

The issues are:

• when the appropriate portion of gains or losses resulting 

from a contribution of a non-monetary asset to a JCE in 

exchange for an interest in the net assets in the JCE should be 

recognised by the venturer in surplus or deficit;

• how additional consideration should be accounted for by the 

venturer; and

• how any unrealised gain or loss should be presented in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP deals with the 

venturer’s accounting for non-monetary contributions to a JCE 

in exchange for an interest in the net assets in the JCE that is 

accounted for using either the equity method or proportionate 

consolidation.

The e�ective date of this interpretation is dependent on/in 

conjunction with the e�ective date of GRAP105, 106 and 107.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the interpretation for the first 

time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the interpretation will have a material impact on 

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate 

Financial Statements

The definition of ‘minority interest’ has been amended to  

‘non-controlling interest’, and paragraph .60 was added by the 

Improvements to the Standards of GRAP issued in November 

2010. An entity shall apply these amendments prospectively for 

annual financial periods beginning on or after the e�ective date 

[in conjunction with the e�ective date to be determined by the 

Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 106 and 107). If an entity elects 

to apply these amendments earlier, it shall disclose this fact.

Paragraph .59 was amended by Improvements to the Standards 

of GRAP issued in November 2010. An entity shall apply these 

amendments prospectively for annual financial periods beginning 

on or after the e�ective date [in conjunction with the e�ective 

date to be determined by the Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 

106 and 107] from the date at which it first applied the Standard 

of GRAP on Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 

Operations. If an entity elects to apply these amendments earlier, 

it shall disclose this fact.

The Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Under Common Control, Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Not Under Common Control and Mergers amended paragraphs 

.03, .39, .47 to .50 and added paragraphs .51 to .58 and .61 to 

.62. An entity shall apply these amendments when it applies the 

for the year ended 31 March 2014
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Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Under Common Control, Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Not Under Common Control and Mergers.

An entity shall apply this amendment for financial statements 

covering periods beginning on or after the e�ective date [in 

conjunction with the e�ective date to be determined by the 

Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 106 and 107].

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the amendment for the first 

time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on 

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 7 (as revised 2010): Investments in Associates

Paragraphs .03 and .42 were amended by the Improvements 

to the Standards of GRAP issued in November 2010. An entity 

shall apply these amendments prospectively for annual financial 

periods beginning on or after the e�ective date [in conjunction 

with the e�ective date to be determined by the Minister of Finance 

for GRAP 105, 106 and 107]. If an entity elects to apply these 

amendments earlier, it shall disclose this fact.

The Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Under Common Control, Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Not Under Common Control and Mergers amended paragraphs 

.22, .28 and .38 and added paragraph .24. An entity shall apply 

these amendments and addition when it applies the Standards of 

GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under Common 

Control, Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under 

Common Control and Mergers.

An entity shall apply this amendment for financial statements 

covering periods beginning on or after the e�ective date [in 

conjunction with the e�ective date to be determined by the 

Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 106 and 107].

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the amendment for the first 

time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on 

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures

Paragraph .04 was amended by the Improvements to the Standards 

of GRAP issued in November 2010. An entity shall apply these 

amendments prospectively for annual financial periods beginning 

on or after the e�ective date [in conjunction with the e�ective date 

to be determined by the Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 106 

and 107J. If an entity elects to apply these amendments earlier, it 

shall disclose this fact.

The Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Under Common Control, Transfer of Functions Between Entities 

Not Under Common Control and Mergers added paragraph .50 

and amended paragraphs .51 and .52. An entity shall apply these 

amendments and addition when it applies the Standards of GRAP 

on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control, 

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common 

Control and Mergers.

An entity shall apply this amendment for annual financial 

statements covering periods beginning on or after the e�ective 

date [in conjunction with the e�ective date to be determined by 

the Minister of Finance for GRAP 105, 106 and 107J.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the amendment for the first 

time in the 2014 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on 

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for 

service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public sector entity.

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition and measurement 

of a service concession asset, recognition and measurement of 

liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent 

assets, other revenues, presentation and disclosure, transitional 

provisions, as well as the e�ective date.

The e�ective date of the standard is not yet set by the  

Minister of Finance.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

when the Minister sets the e�ective date for the standard.
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It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on Brand 

South Africa’s financial statements.

GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting 

requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 

disclosure of statutory receivables.

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition, derecognition, 

measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional provisions, 

as well as the e�ective date.

The e�ective date of the standard is not yet set by the  

Minister of Finance.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

when the Minister sets the e�ective date for the standard.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on Brand 

South Africa’s financial statements.

IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a 

Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance 

to the grantor where it has entered into a service concession 

arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, beneficial 

entitlement or otherwise, a significant residual interest in a service 

concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the 

arrangement does not constitute a lease. This Interpretation of the 

Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types 

of transactions or arrangements.

A service concession arrangement is a contractual arrangement 

between a grantor and an operator in which the operator uses 

the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on 

behalf of the grantor for a specified period of time. The operator 

is compensated for its services over the period of the service 

concession arrangement, either through payments, or through 

receiving a right to earn revenue from third party users of the 

service concession asset, or the operator is given access to another 

revenue-generating asset of the grantor for its use.

Before the grantor can recognise a service concession asset in 

accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession 

Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 

of this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP need to be met. In 

some service concession arrangements, the grantor only controls 

the residual interest in the service concession asset at the end 

of the arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service 

concession asset in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Service 

Concession Arrangements: Grantor.

A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of 

GRAP, on the recognition of the performance obligation and the 

right to receive a significant interest in a service concession asset.

The e�ective date of the standard is not yet set by the  

Minister of Finance.

Brand South Africa expects to adopt the standard for the first time 

when the Minister sets the e�ective date for the standard.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on  

Brand South Africa’s financial statements.
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 BRAND SOUTH AFRICA TRUST
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2014 2013

COST ACCUMULATED 
DEPRECIATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

COST ACCUMULATED 
DEPRECIATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

Leasehold improvements 235,468 (39,245) 196,223 – – –

Furniture and fixtures 1,351,834 (606,496) 745,338 1,208,530 (502,475) 706,055

Motor vehicles 245,000 (138,833) 106,167 245,000 (89,833) 155,167

O�ce equipment 1,226,899 (718,145) 508,754 1,185,757 (656,051) 529,706

IT equipment 1,448,281 (761,921) 686,360 1,113,092 (557,907) 555,185

Finance leased o�ce equipment 458,168 (63,634) 394,534 382,208 (180,487) 201,721

TOTAL 4,965,650 (2,328,274) 2,637,376 4,134,587 (1,986,753) 2,147,834

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2014

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS SCRAPPED DEPRECIATION TOTAL

Leasehold improvements – 235,468 – (39,245) 196,223

Furniture and fixtures 706,055 175,625 (10,726) (125,616) 745,338

Motor vehicles 155,167 – – (49,000) 106,167

O�ce equipment 529,706 233,737 (46,378) (208,311) 508,754

IT equipment 555,185 599,165 (88,392) (379,598) 686,360

Finance leased o�ce equipment 201,721 458,619 (116,781) (149,025) 394,534

2,147,834 1,702,614 (262,277) (950,795) 2,637,376
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2013

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS SCRAPPED DEPRECIATION TOTAL

Furniture and fixtures 516,251 369,349 (50,848) (128,697) 706,055

Motor vehicles 204,167 – – (49,000) 155,167

O�ce equipment 429,783 343,066 (19,652) (223,491) 529,706

IT equipment 340,466 441,306 (17,473) (209,114) 555,185

Finance leased o�ce equipment 329,124 – – (127,403) 201,721

1,819,791 1,153,721 (87,973) (737,705) 2,147,834

ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE (NET CARRYING AMOUNT)

 

O�ce equipment - PABX system 394,534 201,721

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2014 2013

COST ACCUMULATED 
AMORTISATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

COST ACCUMULATED 
AMORTISATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

Computer software 2,041,933 (1,969,773) 72,160 2,030,162 (1,850,858) 179,304

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2014

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS DEPRECIATION TOTAL

Computer software 179,304 11,770 (118,914)  72,160
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2013

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS DEPRECIATION TOTAL

Computer software 373,155 168,885 (362,736) 179,304

6. HERITAGE ASSETS

2014 2013

COST ACCUMULATED 
IMPAIRMENT 

LOSSES

CARRYING 
VALUE

COST ACCUMULATED 
IMPAIRMENT 

LOSSES

CARRYING 
VALUE

Art Collections 133,556 – 133,556 133,556 – 133,556

RECONCILIATION OF HERITAGE ASSETS 2014

OPENING 
BALANCE

TOTAL

Art Collections 133,556 133,556

RECONCILIATION OF HERITAGE ASSETS 2013

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS TOTAL

Art Collections – 133,556 133,556
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

7. DEPOSITS PAID

At amortised cost

Deposits paid on leased property – opening balance 608,139 397,070

E�ect of discounting (24,006) (179,103)

Interest earned 54,695 –

New deposits paid – 390,172

638,828 608,139

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

At amortised cost 638,828 608,139

FINANCIAL ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL

COLLATERAL

Deposits

The deposits represent amounts paid over by Brand South Africa as a collateral on the o�ce space rental. The counterparties have an obligation to return 
the deposits to Brand South Africa at the end of the lease on 31 July 2016. These are carried at amortised cost and have been discounted at 9% (2013: 9%). 
There are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the use of collateral.

638,828 608,139
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

8. OPERATING LEASE ASSET (ACCRUAL)

Non-current assets 20,991 567,542

Current assets – 33,132

Current liabilities (187,851) (701,323)

(166,860) (100,649)

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

It is the policy of Brand South Africa to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. Brand South Africa operates a defined contribution provident fund, which is subject to the Pensions Fund Act for this 

purpose.

Brand South Africa is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

The total economic entity contribution to such schemes 1,278,064 1,175,037

The amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution plans is 1,278,064 1,175,037

10. PREPAYMENTS

General expenses 153,756 85,730

Prepayments relates to certain expenditure paid for in advance at year-end for which services will only be provided in the following year. These include software licences, furniture and insurance fees, which 
Brand South Africa is contractually required to pay in advance.
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

11. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade receivable 10,077,881 5,025,567

Other receivables 251,989 385,509

10,329,870 5,411,076

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2014, 8,664,804 (2013: 5,025,567) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due 8,535,868 5,025,567

2 months past due 128,936 -

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances 16,084,346 30,504,446

Cash on hand 6,000 6,000

16,090,346 30,510,446
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

13. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS DUE

– within one year 173,558 144,764

– in second to fifth year inclusive 274,802 84,445

448,360 229,209

less: future finance charges (47,163) (16,324)

PRESENT VALUE OF MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS 401,197 212,885

PRESENT VALUE OF MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS DUE

– within one year 144,932 130,917

– in second to fifth year inclusive 256,265 81,968

401,197 212,885

Non-current liabilities 256,265 81,968

Current liabilities 144,932 130,917

401,197 212,885

It is Brand South Africa’s policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases.

The average lease term was three (3) years with no renewal option and the average e�ective borrowing rate was 8,5% (2013: 9%)

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.

Brand South Africa’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note 4.

During the year under review Brand South Africa concluded a new lease agreement for an upgraded PABX system.
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

14. PROVISIONS

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS – 2014

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS UTILISED 
DURING THE 

YEAR

TOTAL

Salary and related expense provision (Leave) 1,094,219 540,104 (476,923) 1,157,400

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS – 2013

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS TOTAL

Salary and related expense provision (Leave) 1,079,001 15,218 1,094,219

The provision relates to Brand South Africa’s best estimate for employees’ accumulated leave at year-end. The provision is based on assumption that employees will commute leave on demand and on 

resignation.

15. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade payables 14,354,729 24,875,436

Salary related payables 1,261,710 1,035,990

Accrued operating expenses 17,437,590 5,956,979

TOTAL 33,054,029 31,868,405
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

16. REVENUE

Government grant 157,934,000 148,779,000

AFCON grant – 6,000,000

CHAN grant 2,500,000 –

160,434,000 154,779,000

17. OTHER INCOME

Other income 292,518 519,351

Partnership income – related parties 33,793,112 5,429,204

34,085,630 5,948,555

18. GENERAL EXPENSES

Advertising 778,944 279,638

Auditors remuneration 1,443,811 1,374,391

Bank charges 97,201 86,945

Cleaning 3,935 24,916

Computer expenses 705,896 372,037

Consulting and professional fees 6,462,444 3,535,437

Consumables 557,296 424,880

Courier and delivery expenses 135,984 343,268

Insurance 274,383 283,696
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

18. GENERAL EXPENSES (CONT.)

Conferences and Seminars 74,277 13,347

Lease rentals on operating lease 3,397,469 2,369,766

Marketing 140,648,490 111,062,065

Motor vehicle expenses 101,506 84,172

Placement fees 2,090,280 1,249,485

Printing and stationery 808,466 1,402,958

Security 40,022 37,186

Sta� welfare 401,376 256,293

Subscriptions and membership fees 1,026,933 728,321

Telephone and fax 672,513 734,378

Sta� training and development 247,489 211,874

Travel and subsistence 2,966,265 3,293,316

Travel – overseas 3,683,129 4,145,164

Assets expensed 22,148 62,292

Electricity 969,747 568,107

Other operating expenses 322,148 173,586

Venue expenses 700,331 696,105

Other expenses – 147,196

168,632,483 133,960,819
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

19. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Basic 27,289,087 23,864,218

Bonus 1,700,462 36,661

Medical aid – company contributions 426,986 477,861

UIF 59,546 48,164

SDL 208,330 184,781

Defined contribution plans 1,278,064 1,175,037

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 1,320,655 707,674

Overtime payments 59,852 27,412

Acting allowances 132,592 82,120

Other non-pensionable allowance 538,566 239,618

33,014,140 26,843,546

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER – M MATOLA

Annual remuneration 2,107,971 1,926,679

Cell phone reimbursement 75,255 58,560

Travel allowance 24,000 24,000

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 228,597 175,993

Performance bonuses 255,201 –

Reimbursive expenses 55,164 77,937

Subsistence allowance 122,773 51,852

2,868,961 2,315,021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER – A PUOANE

Annual remuneration 974,156 887,302

Cell phone reimbursement 15,566 12,520

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 99,007 79,043

Performance bonuses 144,893 –

Reimbursive expenses 17,667 11,985

1,251,290 990,850

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR: CORPORATE SERVICES – L LESS

Annual remuneration 1,353,541 1,220,770

Cell phone reimbursement 23,309 21,252

Travel allowance 120,000 120,000

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 140,486 110,280

Performance bonuses 290,120 –

Reimbursive expenses 8,613 8,012

1,936,069 1,480,314

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR: STRATEGIC MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS – WM TLOU (APPOINTED 01 OCTOBER 2013) 

Annual remuneration 822,845 –

Cell phone reimbursement 38,893 –

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 16,848 –

Reimbursive expenses 10,065 –

Subsistence allowance 33,063 –

921,714 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR: MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS – N MAZIBUKO (RESIGNED 30 JUNE 2013) 

Annual remuneration 490,624 1,397,132

Cell phone reimbursement 10,766 –

Car allowance – 36,653

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 44,233 132,514

Performance bonuses 302,838 –

Reimbursive expenses 6,696 41,714

Subsistence allowance – 38,487

855,157 1,646,500

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR: STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS – I SATHEKGE (RESIGNED 31 JULY 2013)

Annual remuneration 427,377 902,046

Cell phone re-imbursement 2,460 –

Travel allowance 14,000 42,000

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 43,667 104,979

Reimbursive expenses 6,229 41,322

Subsistence allowance – 16,502

493,733 1,106,849

REMUNERATION OF ACTING DIRECTOR: STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS – NTJ MABUZA (01 AUGUST 2013) 

Annual remuneration 517,684 –

Cell phone reimbursement 40,217 –

Acting allowance 132,592 –

Contributions to Medical, UIF, SDL and pension funds 66,341 –

Performance bonuses 117,150 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the 12 months ended 31 March 2014

FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

REMUNERATION OF ACTING DIRECTOR: STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS – NTJ MABUZA (01 AUGUST 2013)  CONT.

Reimbursive expenses 31,144 –

Subsistence allowance 34,732 –

933,861 –

20. INVESTMENT INCOME

INTEREST REVENUE

Cash and bank deposits 341,067 319,657

Financial instruments held at amortised cost 54,695 –

395,762 319,657

The total interest income earned by Brand South Africa is from both current and call accounts at an average interest rate of 3.75% per annum. (2013: 3.25%) as well as interest earned from financial instruments 
carried at amortised cost whose average interest rate is 9% as disclosed in note 7.

21. FINANCE COSTS

Finance leases 25,036 25,074

Financial instruments held at amortised cost 24,006 179,103

49,042 204,177

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

22. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

External audit 817,718 849,323

Internal audit 626,093 525,068

1,443,811 1,374,391

23. CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Deficit (10,523,521) (2,429,184)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,058,638 1,100,439

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 134,953 87,973

Finance costs – Finance leases 25,036 25,074

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 66,211 (130,735)

Movements in provisions 63,181 15,218

Other non-cash items 402,811 154,404

Changes in working capital:

Prepayments (68,026) 1,326,625

Receivables from exchange transactions (4,918,794) 26,969,572

Payables from exchange transactions 1,185,623 5,275,684

12,573,888 32,395,070

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

24. COMMITMENTS

AUTHORISED AND APPROVED EXPENDITURE

ALREADY CONTRACTED FOR BUT NOT PROVIDED FOR

Administration and operations costs – 341,536

Research fees – 8,639,073

Internal audit fees 1,902,000 725,564

Media monitoring and analysis 4,900,000 3,999,531

Digital strategy implementation 18,000,000 13,768,230

Media partnerships 18,142,500 –

Travel management services 8,500,000 –

National perceptions study 5,000,000 –

International perceptions research study 13,000,000 –

Leasing IT equipment 800,000 –

Training TM 1,800,000 –

72,044,500 27,473,934

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 BRAND SOUTH AFRICA TRUST
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

117



FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

This committed expenditure will be financed by approved future transfers.

OPERATING LEASES – AS LESSEE (EXPENSE)

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS DUE – BUILDINGS

– within one year 2,997,599 2,803,987

– in second to fifth year inclusive 4,354,882 7,352,312

7,352,481 10,156,299

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS DUE – EQUIPMENT

– within one year 257,170 132,425

– in second to fifth year inclusive 385,755 34,222

642,925 166,647

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by Brand South Africa for its o�ce space located at 103 Central Street, Houghton and copier machines. The current lease expires on 31 July 2016 with a 
renewal option. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three (3) years. No contingent rent is payable.

25. CONTINGENCIES

Litigation is in process against Brand South Africa relating to three separate matters as follows:

Labour disputes

Two former employees separately citing unfair dismissals.

Termination of a contract

A former service provider citing unfair termination of contract.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

Brand South Africa’s lawyers and management consider the likelihood of the action against Brand South Africa being successful as unlikely, and the cases should be resolved within the next year. In the unlikely 
event that Brand South Africa loses all the cases, the financial obligations would be a maximum of R556,903.

26. RELATED PARTIES

Related party

Government Communication and Information System (GCIS) Research fees

The Presidency Executive authority

Department of Trade and Industry Strategic partner on trade related activities

Economic Development Department Strategic partner on trade related activities

Department of Mineral Resources Strategic partner on trade related activities

CSIR Entity controlled by a related party

Council for Geoscience Entity controlled by a related party

Mine Health and Safety Council Entity controlled by a related party

Mintek Entity controlled by a related party

State Diamond Trader Entity controlled by a related party

Technology Innovation Agency Entity controlled by a related party

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND - 31 MARCH 2013

Related parties

Amounts included in Trade Receivables regarding related parties

Department of Trade and Industry 4,260,959 1,343,265

Council for Geoscience 292,618 –

GCIS - O�ce automation – 149,531

CSIR 292,618 –

Economic Development Department 4,099,313 –

Mine Health and Safety Council 292,618 –

Mintek 292,618 –

Mining Qualifications Authority 120,000 –

State Diamond Trader 130,000 –

Technology Innovation Agency 292,618 –

10,073,362 1,492,796

Related party transactions

Payments to related parties

GCIS - Research 966,079 911,843

Amounts included in the Partnership Income regarding related parties

Department of Trade and Industry 4,051,099 1,343,265

Council for Geoscience 292,618 –

CSIR 292,618 –

Economic Development Department 26,815,768 –

Mine Health and Safety Council 292,618 –
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

Amounts included in the Partnership Income regarding related parties CONT.

Mintek 292,618 –

Mining Qualifications Authority 120,000 –

State Diamond Trader 130,000 –

Technology Innovation Agency 292,618 –

Department of Mineral Resources 920,537 –

33,500,494 1,343,265

27. TRUSTEES’ EMOLUMENTS

NON-EXECUTIVE

2014

ATTENDANCE 
FEES

TOTAL

Luyanda Mangquku 58,500 58,500

2013

ATTENDANCE 
FEES

TOTAL

Libby Lloyd 3,894 3,894

Matsotso Vuso 3,055 3,055

6,949 6,949
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

28. PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS

In previous year’s financial statement, the operating lease liability calculations were incorrectly performed resulting in the disclosure of an operating lease asset of 
R100,212 instead of an operating lease liability of R100,649.

The correction of the errors results in adjustments as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Operating lease liability – (200,861)

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit – 200,861

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

O�ce rental – 201,234

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit – (373)

29. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated.

The e�ects of the reclassification are as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Accumulated Surplus 5,799,927 6,000,785

Operating lease liability (701,323) (500,462)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Operating expenditure 163,272,219 163,070,985
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

30. RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Brand South Africa’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: market risks (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Brand South Africa’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse e�ects on Brand South Africa’s financial performance. 
Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the accounting authority. Brand South Africa identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with Brand South 
Africa’s operating units. The accounting authority provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit 
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Brand South Africa’s liquidity risk is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. Brand South Africa manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. Brand South Africa only deposits cash in a major bank with high quality credit standing.

Trade receivables are concentrated around few major government departments. These are assessed to be high quality as they usually pay up their accounts within thirty (30) days of invoicing.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year-end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2014 2013

Nedbank 16,090,346 30,510,446

Receivables from exchange transactions 11,401,623 5,025,567

Nedbank Limited has a Fitch rating of BBB with a stable outlook as of January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

Brand South Africa’s income and operating cash flows are largely independent of changes in market interest rates even though it generates investment revenue from excess cash deposited in the call account.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Brand South Africa operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar (USD), Chinese Yuan Renminbi (CNY), Swiss 
Franc (CHF) and the UK pound (GBP). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

Brand South Africa does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

Brand South Africa is considering short-term forward exchange contract to hedge the risk exposure during the volatile performance of the rand.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE AT STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

LIABILITIES

Current, USD 369,734 (2013: USD 1,568,280) 3,964,717 10,907,510

Current, GBP Nil (2013: GBP 2,212) – 30,995

Current, CHF 40,816 (2013: CHF 53,739) 494,712 552,302

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:

USD 10.7237 9.2251

GBP 17.5831 14.0123

CHF 12.1205 9.7093

CNY 1.7145 1.4686

Brand South Africa reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments, on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

31. GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2014, the entity has accumulated deficits of (4,723,594) and that the entity ’s total liabilities exceed its assets by (4,723,594).

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

32. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Opening balance 1,646,105 1,292,068

Add wasteful expenditure - current 73,544 354,037

Amounts recovered (4,318) –

1,715,331 1,646,105

33. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Labour settlement: J Burn-Hutchison – 171,769

Labour settlement: Moeletsi Mabuku – 170,832

Withdrawal notice from medical scheme on resignation 4,318 11,436

Cancellation of machine lease 29,758 –

Bus hire 5,650 –

SARS penalties 33,818 –

73,544 354,037
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

34. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Opening balance 10,738,795 10,738,795

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 393,071 370,468

Less: Amounts condoned (393,071) –

Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned) – (370,468)

10,738,795 10,738,795

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Prior years 10,738,795 10,738,795

Details of irregular expenditure – current year Disciplinary steps taken

Appointment of a supplier without obtaining three written quotations as 
required by supply chain management procedures

No disciplinary steps taken 393,071

35. RETENTION OF FUNDS

Brand strategy development and management – 1,476,955

Reputation Management – 2,989,300

Administration and operation costs – 927,833

CAPEX – 646,697

– 6,040,785
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIGURES IN RAND Notes 31 MARCH 2014 31 MARCH 2013

36. BUDGET DIFFERENCES

Material di�erences between budget and actual amounts

The variances of actual expenditure over the final budget are a consequence of a partnership agreement signed with the Economic Development Department, Department of Mineral Resources and the 
Department of Trade and Industry. Refer to note 26.
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
FIGURES IN RAND NOTES 12 MONTHS 

ENDED 
31 MARCH 2014

12 MONTHS 
ENDED 

31 MARCH 2013 
RESTATED*

REVENUE

Other income 292,518 519,351

Partnership income 33,793,112 5,429,204

Interest received - investment 20 395,762 319,657

Government grants and subsidies 16 160,434,000 154,779,000

TOTAL REVENUE 194,915,392 161,047,212

EXPENDITURE

Personnel 19 33,158,943 26,843,546

Depreciation and amortisation 1,058,638 1,100,439

Finance costs 21 49,042 204,177

Repairs and maintenance 164,313 173,505

General expenses 18 168,632,483 133,960,819

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 203,063,419 162,282,486

OPERATING DEFICIT (8,148,027) (1,235,274)

Loss on disposal of assets 134,953 87,973

Loss on foreign exchange 2,240,541 1,105,937

(2,375,494) (1,193,910)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR (10,523,521) (2,429,184)

* See Note 2 & 28

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited.
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PERFORMANCE 
RESULTS – IMPACT 
for the year ended 31 March 2014

IMPACT MEASURE / INDICATOR TOOL FOR MEASURING ACTUAL 2010/11 ACTUAL 2011/12 ACTUAL 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 ACTUAL Q4

1. Increased Competitiveness WEF-GCI Index 44 (54) 50 52 (45-55) 53

Institutions 47 45 43 (40 – 50) 41

Infrastructure 63 62 63 (55-65) 66

Macro-Economic Stability 43 55 69 (40-50) 95

Health and Primary Education 129 131 132 (126-136) 135

Higher Education & Training 75 73 84 (67-77) 89

Goods Market E�ciency 40 32 32 (35-45) 28

Labour Market E�ciency 97 95 113 (92-102) 116

Financial Market Sophistication 9 4 3 (4-10) 3v

Technological readiness 76 76 62 (72-82) 62

Market size 25 25 25 (22-32) 25

Business sophistication 38 38 38 (33-43) 35

Innovation 44 41 42 (36-46) 39

2. Improved International Reputation GfK Anholt Nation Brand Index 37 Overall ranking N/A Overall ranking N/A Overall ranking N/A Overall ranking N/A

Brazil* 31 34 34 25-29 31 

China 38 37 37 31-33 32 

Egypt 34 40 37 32-36 35 

Germany 35 29 34 30-34 29 

India 20 19 19 15-19 21 

Japan 49 47 47 43-47 45 

Russia 46 43 40 38-42 43 

South Africa 3 4 7 1-4 9 

United Kingdom 26 30 30 24-28 35 

United States of America 38 40 35 32-36 35 

France 34 27 29 28-32 30 

3. Increased Brand Equity Brand Finance Brand Valuation N/A ($135bn) $139bn $144 $150 Annual target
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PERFORMANCE 
RESULTS – IMPACT

AN OVERVIEW OF THE INDICES
The Anholt GfK-Roper Nation Brand Index tracks the perceptions 

of 50 panel countries among the general public within each of 

these nations on six key dimensions, namely People, Culture, 

Tourism, Governance, Exports, and Investment and Immigration. 

The annual survey has a total sample of approximately 20 000 

adults aged 18 years and up. Brand South Africa uses the study 

as a benchmark study to understand the perceptions of the 

general public within each of the nations to devise the appropriate 

communication strategy per market.

The World Economic Forum’s Global Competitiveness Index 

(WEF GCI), developed on the basis of Michael Porter’s analysis 

of national competitiveness, is based on an opinion survey and 

hard data sourced by each country. The index scores countries on 

a total of 131 variables grouped under 12 pillars. The pillars are:

1. Institutions

2. Infrastructure

3. Macroeconomic stability

4. Health and primary education

5. Higher education and training

6. Goods market e�ciency

7. Labour market e�ciency

8. Financial market sophistication

9. Technological readiness

10. Market size

11. Business sophistication

12. Innovation 

The WEF GCI forms the cornerstone of Brand South Africa’s 

understanding of South Africa’s competitiveness. This index, 

alongside other recognised indices, informs Brand South Africa’s 

proof points around the messaging framework. Brand South 

Africa compiles a brand barometer based on this index and other 

composite measures to inform and guide stakeholders on the 

performance of South Africa on the factors of competitiveness 

and its impact on the nation as an investment, trade and tourism 

destination.

The Media Reputation Index is based on the monitoring and 

analysis of major publications across 37 countries internationally 

in terms of amount of coverage and the rating of coverage, namely 

positive, negative or neutral. The media coverage graph shows the 

tracking of South Africa’s reputation in the media across these 

countries from January 2008 to March 2014. 

This reputation tracking tool assists Brand South Africa in 

identifying the key issues being reported within each market and 

allows the organisation to respond timeously and appropriately 

to the matters raised. This information is incorporated into the 

planning process and the critical issues are fed into the monthly 

response plans.
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PERFORMANCE RESULTS 
OUTCOMES
for the year ended 31 March 2014

OUTCOME 1: BRAND ALIGNMENT BY STAKEHOLDERS 
OUTCOME MEASURE TOOL FOR MEASURING BASELINE 2010/11 TARGET 2011/12 TARGET 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE

Brand compliance by 
stakeholders in all provinces in 
terms of the ‘Look and Feel’ of 
the brand.

Brand Compliance Audit Develop Audit Tool Develop Audit Tool Set benchmark and target 
(domestic and international 
tracking tools) (two complied 
out of five key stakeholders)

Ongoing stakeholder 
engagements - 60% 
compliance.

Not met Interbrand, Brand South Africa 
Compliance Study found 58% 
compliance.

Develop an audit tool to track 
international compliance.

Not met Audit tool to be developed in 
the new financial year.

Alignment in terms of 
positioning and messaging – 
Africa and South Africa 

Track number of articles Not applicable Not applicable Implement round table 
programmes in Africa.

Develop a media tracking tool 
for Africa (Africa Reputation 
Study) tracking reports

Not met Africa Reputation Study 
Tracking reports not 
developed. 

OUTCOME 2:  INCREASED PRIDE AND PATRIOTISM AMONG SOUTH AFRICANS
OUTCOME MEASURE TOOL FOR MEASURING ACTUAL 2010/11 ACTUAL 2011/12 TARGET 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT  2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

Pride levels Domestic Tracker 90% 87% (88%) 88% 85% 90% Target exceeded.

Commitment levels Domestic Tracker 71% 75% (84%) 75% 80% 88% Target exceeded.

Social Cohesion National Perceptions Audit 72% 75% 77% 79% 66.7% Target not met.

Active citizenship National Perceptions Audit 69% 72% 74% 77% 66.7% Target not met.

Awareness levels about active 
citizenship campaign (PYP   
campaign)

Not applicable 7% 12% 16% 34% National Perceptions Audit 
finds 34% awareness levels.

Number of stakeholders 
actively involved in the active 
citizenship campaign

Not applicable Six national government 
departments. 

Six additional government 
departments.

Six government departments. Target met.

Not applicable Secured participation by FBOs 
and Youth Formations.

Faith Based Organisations 
(FBOs) in four provinces.

FBO sessions in four 
provinces. 

Target met.

OUTCOME 3:  ARTICULATION AND CONTEXTUALISATION OF SOUTH AFRICAN POLICY FOR COMPETITIVENESS 
OUTCOME MEASURE TOOL FOR MEASURING ACTUAL 2010/11 TARGET 2011/12 TARGET 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

Awareness by stakeholders 
of policy impacts on 
competitiveness

Specific questions within 
Stakeholder Satisfaction survey

 Not done Select policies targets by 
November 2011

Select policies targets by 
November 2011 (Study 
completed with limited 
competitiveness questions 
covered in questionnaire)

Insert competitiveness and 
set benchmark (National 
Perception Audit study)

Questions inserted in 
Domestic Tracker – results 
expected in April 2014

Results expected in April 2014 
from GCIS.

High level engagements on 
competitiveness indicators for 
the country

Not applicable Not applicable Hosted Competitiveness 
Forum

Hosted Competitiveness 
Forum

Target met SACF hosted on 5 November 
2013.
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OUTCOME 4A:  POSITIVE PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONG INTERNATIONAL TARGET AUDIENCES 
OUTCOME MEASURE TOOL FOR MEASURING ACTUAL 2010/11 TARGET 2011/12 ACTUAL 2011/12 TARGET 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

Reputation Ranking Media Reputation Index 2010 YTD 50.28 55 50 55 52 38.21  
(Cumulative April 13 – March 14)

Increased negative sentiment

Positive feelings towards 
South Africa

Global Citizens Survey Project plan to set up 
survey and establish 
baselines developed

Baseline: 44% 44% 46% 50% 50% No variance

Willingness to speak 
positively about South 
Africa

67% 67% 67% 70% 70% No variance

Not applicable Not applicable Africa Diaspora Research 
initiated

FAMILIARITY

Brazil

Project  Thrive  Surveys

6.2 6.2 6.4 6.6 4.0 Decreased positive disposition.

China 5.8 5.0 6.0 6.1 4.9 Stable

France 4.2 3.1 4.2 4.3 0.0 Decreased positive disposition.

Germany 4.2 6.3 4.2 4.3 0.0 Decreased positive disposition

India 8.0 7.5 8.0 8.0 13.3 Improved positive disposition

UK 7.3 4.2 7.3 7.4 0.3 Decreased positive disposition

US 3.2 3.9 3.6 3.8 0.0 Decreased positive disposition

Russia To be established 0.4 To be established 0.6 2.1 Improved positive disposition

Spain To be established 2.7 To be established 2.9 No data Not included in sample

Japan To be established 1.5 To be established 1.7 4.2 Improved positive disposition

UAE To be established 10.2 To be established 10.3 3.3 Decreased positive disposition

Angola To be established 4.2 To be established 4.3 6.3 Improved positive disposition

Egypt To be established 6.3 To be established 6.4 6.7 Improved positive disposition

Kenya To be established 14.2 To be established 14.3 10.7 Decreased positive disposition

Nigeria To be established 11.3 To be established 11.4 8.7 Decreased positive disposition

DRC To be established No data To be established To be established No data Not included in sample

Zimbabwe To be established 31 To be established 31.5 14.3 Improved positive disposition
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OUTCOME 4B:  POSITIVE PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONG DOMESTIC TARGET AUDIENCES
OUTCOME MEASURE TOOL FOR MEASURING ACTUAL 2010/11 TARGET 2011/12 ACTUAL 2011/12 TARGET 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

Awareness of the Brand 
South Africa pillars

Tracker (Domestic)

Diversity 79% 80% 80% 80% 80% 79%

Ubuntu 75% 77% 75% 79% 76% 73%

Possibility 76% 78% 76% 80% 77% 74%

Sustainability 74% 76% 70% 76% 74% 66%

Innovation 65% 67% 69 69% 71% 65%

 Media Reputation Index Tender to deliver on 
domestic and social 
media monitoring 

services

Domestic Media 
Reputation Index.
Establish baseline.

50.54 (2011/12 average) Domestic Media 
Reputation Index.
Establish baseline.

Domestic Media 
Reputation Index.
Establish baseline.

(48-58)

35% Decreased positive sentiment.

PERFORMANCE RESULTS 
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OUTCOME 5:  SUSTAINABLE ORGANISATION 
OUTCOME MEASURE TOOL FOR MEASURING ACTUAL 2010/11 TARGET 2011/12 ACTUAL 2011/12 TARGET 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

5.1 Joint Funding Funds raised as a 
percentage of total 
marketing budget

R4m: 12% R2.980 million 15% 
(R8 mill)

3% 
R3m

R28.5m Target exceeded.

5.2 Sustainable organisation Implementable funding 
model

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Develop and approve a 
funding model.

Implement a funding 
model. 

Target not met Non-responsive Request For 
Proposal (RFP) in Q3. Re-
advertised in Q4 with deadline 
in Q1 2014/15.

5.3 Leveraging Resources: 
Sponsorship and partnership 
value over and above Brand 
South Africa spend

Value-add as a percentage 
of total marketing budget

R9,3m R10m R5.4m R10m R9m R12.6m Target exceeded.

5.4 Organisational Sustainability Annual report with 
complete Sustainability 
Report

Governance, Risk and 
Compliance Frameworks 
in place.

Governance, Risk 
and Compliance 
Frameworks in place.

Governance, Risk 
and Compliance 
Frameworks in place.

Maintenance and 
review of frameworks. 
Reduce inherent risks 
by 15%.

Target met

Unqualified audit report Unqualified audit report Unqualified audit report Unqualified audit report 
and no matters of 
emphasis.

Pending statutory audit

100% compliance: 
Employment Equity 

100% compliance: 
Employment Equity 

100% compliance: 
Employment Equity 

100% compliance: 
Employment Equity. 
Focus on disabled 
employees.

Target met One disabled employee. 
Aligned to national 
demographics.

5.5 Social and environmental 
contribution

CSI Programme CSI Programme CSI Programme CSI Programme 
implemented

Target exceeded Supported Ebenezer Hannah 
Home for the Destitute; 
awarded two bursaries to 
Lekoa Shandu High School 
and sponsored the Vega Brand 
Challenge 2014/15.

5.6 BEE spend Compliance with BEE 
spend targets

Compliance with BEE 
spend targets

Compliance with BEE 
spend targets

Compliance with BEE 
spend targets 60-70%

Target met Exceeded 60%.

5.7 Implement a Corporate A�airs 
programme

Project Pride survey Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Achieve a 60% 
familiarity level amongst 
stakeholders 

Target met Achieved 58%.
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OUTCOME 1: BRAND ALIGNMENT BY STAKEHOLDERS 
STRATEGY: BRAND DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT 

TARGET AND STAKEHOLDERS SEGMENT: GOVERNMENT 

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES / MEASURES OUTPUTS / KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

1.1 Seed the new positioning Brand alignment and 
compliance 

1.1.1 Trained communicators and marketers 
within all Trade and Investment and 
Tourism Agencies.

Developed an on-line Brand 
Academy platform.

Train 100% of all communicators and 
marketers within the 18 Trade and 
Investment and Tourism Agencies.

Target exceeded A total of 18 Trade and Investment 
and Tourism Agencies were trained. 
Two additional agencies, namely SAT 
and ACSA, were also trained.

Civil society bodies trained on 
messaging framework.

Target met Four institutions of higher learning, 
namely WBS, GBS, GIBS and PRISA, 
were trained on messaging framework.

Brand alignment and 
compliance 

1.1.2 Development of concepts, design and 
elements for international ITI’s.

Messaging and branding frameworks. Development of concepts, design 
and elements for international for all 
the dti trade initiatives.

Target met in Benin, 
Equatorial Guinea, 
Ghana, Qatar, 
Algeria, Tunisia, DRC, 
Mozambique, Turkey, 
Russia, China expo 
(CIFIT), IAC, India, 
Poland, Kazakhstan, 
Angola

Concepts, designs and elements 
for 16 of the dti International Trade 
Initiatives.

Brand Strategy 
Development

1.1.3 Entrench the new positioning Inspiring New Ways TV commercial Flighting of Inspiring New Ways 
TV commercial

Target met Inspiring New Ways TV commercial in 
all quarters

Brand Compliance tracker 
report – (Domestic and 
International Media 
monitoring analysis)

1.1.4 Monitor, evaluate and audit brand 
compliance.

Launch of pay-o� line and 
stakeholder training

Achieve 60% brand compliance by 
all 18 Trade and Investment and 
Tourism Agencies.

Target met Brand compliance survey formed 
significant aspect of the annual target, 
and this was met. This survey set the 
baseline for compliance monitoring 
and achieved 58% compliance.

for the year ended 31 March 2014
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OUTCOME 2: INCREASED PRIDE AND PATRIOTISM AMONG SOUTH AFRICANS
STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT 

TARGET AND STAKEHOLDERS SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC (GOVERNMENT, BUSINESS, CIVIL SOCIETY AND MEDIA) 

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES / MEASURES OUTPUTS / KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

2.1 Domestic mobilisation 
and active citizenship 
campaign. (Living the 
Brand through Active 
Citizenship)

Pride and active citizenship 
(Commitment Levels) (GCIS 
tracker report)

2.1.1 Implemented Active Citizenship campaign 
(PYP campaign).

Play your Part SABC series and print 
support. (DSCM)

Implement the PYP campaign and 
achieve an increase in awareness 
levels to 10%; Pride levels to 85%; 
and Active Citizenship to 74-77%.

Target met ATL and ATL PYP campaign executed. 
34% awareness levels; 90% pride 
levels; 66, 7% active citizenship.

Implemented PYP provincial activations 
with stakeholders across all provinces

Two provincial activations. Target met Outreach programme executed 
in four provinces. 2nd Interfaith 
Dialogue hosted in Q2.

Arrive Alive partnership with DOT. Target met DoT – ‘Arrive Alive’ Campaign during 
Easter and the Festive Season.

Implement strategic PYP programme 
with business.

Target not met Target not met. TATA project cancelled 
due to financial constraints and 
AMCHAM project due to municipal 
buy-in.

Establish and implement PYP 
Schools Club Programme with 
Government; Business and Civil 
Society pr 

Target met

Domestic mobilisation 
and active citizenship 
campaign

Pride and active citizenship 
(Commitment Levels) 
(GCIS tracker report)

2.1.2 Implemented PYP on National
         Development Plan (PYP campaign). 

Not applicable Develop and implement an NDP 
PYP programme in partnership with 
the National Planning Commission 
in nine provinces.

Target partially met NDP PYP youth programme 
implemented in partnership with 
the NPC: Youth dialogue in two 
provinces; youth outreach programme 
in four provinces. 
Activations were dependent on 
NPC partnership and as a result five 
provinces were reached. 

Implemented PYP provincial activations 
with stakeholders across all provinces.

Three provincial activations. Target met Business Dialogues in three provinces 
hosted.

Formula finalised and announced. Activate and popularise the Formula 
– DNA to all South Africans.

Formula messaging 
incorporated in all PYP 
activities

Formula messaging incorporated in all 
PYP activities. 

14 000 Facebook fans. Facebook fans increased by 46%. Target exceeded 400% increase with 81 596 Facebook 
fans. Increased focus on PYP 
Facebook programme.

138Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



3A.  POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST DOMESTIC TARGET AUDIENCES
STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT / BRAND KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

TARGET AND STAKEHOLDERS SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC (GOVERNMENT, BUSINESS, CIVIL SOCIETY AND MEDIA) 

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES / MEASURES OUTPUTS / KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1a Creating and leveraging 
strategic relationships 
to strengthen the brand 
strategy delivery in defined 
markets and with defined 
stakeholders (Drive the 
competitiveness narrative)

Positively changing 
perceptions and favourably 
positioned South Africa 
with domestic target 
audiences. (Domestic 
Media Reputation Index)

3.1.1 Established thematically focused reference 
groups on South Africa’s competitiveness.

Communication of reference group 
outcomes. One position paper 
delivered.

Implement inter-disciplinary research 
reference groups.

Target met Four reference groups concluded 
in Q3.

3.1.2 Created and leveraged thought leadership 
platforms and driving advocacy.

One thought leadership platform 
(Nigeria).

Develop and implement a thought 
leadership programme.

Target met Thought leadership programmes: 
Pan Africa Dialogue; Mining Indaba 
Investor Dialogue.

3.1.3 Generated media content on 
competitiveness and policies.

Two positive press releases per Brand 
South Africa engagement.  
Two OPEDs per quarter.

Communicate two positive articles 
per quarter.

Target exceeded 18 articles published.

3.1.4 Leveraged media to communicate South 
Africa’s competitiveness and business 
opportunities

Four media tours  
(1 outbound, 3 inbound)

Host media tours to  
leverage media.

Target met One outbound media tour and three 
South African media houses hosted 
at Davos.
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3B. POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST INTERNATIONAL TARGET AUDIENCES 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT / BRAND KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

TARGET AND STAKEHOLDERS SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC (GOVERNMENT, BUSINESS, CIVIL SOCIETY AND MEDIA) 

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES / MEASURES OUTPUTS / KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1b Creating and leveraging 
strategic relationships 
to strengthen the brand 
strategy delivery in defined 
markets and with defined 
stakeholders
(Drive competitiveness 
narrative)

Positively changing 
perceptions and favourably 
positioned South Africa 
in International target 
audiences.
(International Media 
Reputation Index)

3.1.1 Establish thematically focused reference 
groups on South Africa’s competitiveness.

Not applicable Implement inter-disciplinary 
research reference groups.

Target not met Partner was unable to deliver required 
stakeholders and the programme. 
Refocused to implementation of WEF 
Africa programme. 

3.1.2 Creating and leveraging thought leadership 
platforms and driving advocacy.

One thought leadership platform 
(Nigeria).

Develop and implement a thought 
leadership programme.

Target exceeded Three thought leadership sessions 
hosted.
Brand Ghana Dialogue; Mo Ibrahim 
Report Dialogue and WEF Davos 
Thought Leadership.

3.1.3 Media content on competitiveness and 
policies.

Two positive press releases per 
Brand South Africa engagement. 
Two OPEDs per quarter

Communicate two positive articles per 
quarter.

Target met Eight articles published.

3.1.4 Leverage international media to 
communicate South Africa’s competitiveness 
and business opportunities.

Four media tours (1 outbound, 3 
inbound).

Host media tours to leverage media. Target exceeded Five media tours:
Q1 BRICS; Q2 Africa; Q3 BRICS; Q4 US, 
China, UK and Hollywood Executives.

3.1.5 Leverage strategic international platforms 
to profile and position South Africa as a 
competitive business destination.

Media  programme: WEF Africa
WEF Middle East
WEF China
WEF Davos
WEF Africa

Implement media and stakeholder 
programmes in select platforms.

Target met WEF Africa, WEF China and WEF Davos 
executed. BRICS Summit postponed to 
July 2014; Content developed for St. 
Petersburg forum and WEF Turkey; WEF 
India cancelled by WEF.

Structured strategic 
engagement programmes 
to deliver on brand 
competitiveness and 
reputation

Positively changing 
perceptions and favourably 
position South Africa on 
the Continent.
(International media 
reputation index)

3.1.6 Implement outreach programmes in 
collaboration with key stakeholders.

One WOSA programme in China. Support South Africa week 
programmes in four key markets.

Target not met No relevant stakeholder programme 
to support. Activity removed from the 
Business Plan in Q3.

Not applicable Positively influence key stakeholders 
from select African markets.  

Target met Two Dialogues with African Diplomatic 
corps hosted in partnership with 
DIRCO and the dti. 

Familiarity of South Africa 
as a business destination 
(Thrive Survey)

3.1.7 Implement media programmes for 
international trade initiatives.

Developed a media programme for 
six International Trade initiatives. 

Implement media programme for 
select key trade initiatives.

Target met Four media programmes in support of 
the dti ITI’s.
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3B. POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST INTERNATIONAL TARGET AUDIENCES 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT / BRAND KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

TARGET AND STAKEHOLDERS SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC (GOVERNMENT, BUSINESS, CIVIL SOCIETY AND MEDIA) 

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES / MEASURES OUTPUTS / KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1b Structured strategic 
engagement programmes 
to deliver  on brand 
competitiveness and 
reputation

Familiarity of South Africa 
as a business destination 
(Thrive Survey)

3.1.8 Leveraged the GSA and Diaspora 
networks to e�ect perception change and 
favourable awareness.

GSA programme launched in US, UK, 
UAE & Australia; 1590 subscriptions.

Activations and increase 
subscriptions by 10%. 

Target exceeded GSA Activations in: 
UAE; Australia (Melbourne and Sydney)

2 cities were done in Australia instead of 
New Zealand due to limited  
GSA network 

1819 subscribers

Structured strategic 
engagement programmes 
to deliver on brand 
competitiveness and 
reputation

Positive perception of SA’s 
Business opportunities 
(Thrive Survey)

3.1.9 Establish a key opinion leaders forum & 
decision makers to support FDI attraction 
& position SA as a business destination.

Not Applicable. Launch the Key Opinion Leaders 
(KOL) Forum to support initiatives for 
marketing SA as business destination 

Target not met KOL’s identified. Awaiting decision 
from the Executive Authority on the 
appointment of nominated candidates.   

3.1.10 Identify and develop and grow a Brand 
SA Ambassadors Programme worldwide

Not Applicable. Identify and select Brand 
Ambassadors in Target Markets.

Target met The Presidency appointed four Brand 
Ambassadors on the 5th of December 2013.

3.2 Structured engagements 
based on: Monitoring 
and evaluation of brand 
image and competitiveness 
through the development 
and analysis of key 
reputation studies  
and indices

Generation of research 
analytical reports

3.2.1 Analysis and development of content from 
key competitiveness indices.

Anholt GfK -Nation Brand Index.
Domestic Tracker.
International Media Reputation.

Anholt GfK Roper – Nation Brand 
Index. Domestic Tracker.
International Media Reputation.

Target met Analysis and content generated for 
Anholt GfK Roper – Nation Brand Index; 
Domestic Tracker and 
International Media Reputation.

3.2.2 Analysis and development of content from 
key competitiveness indices.

Analysis and sharing of insights of 
key indices with stakeholders.

Target met Analysis concluded for NPA; Domestic 
Tracker and Business Elite (Thrive) and 
City Brand Index. WEF WTTC Index not 
released by end of Q4; Boom Survey no 
longer required as Thrive Survey data is 
su�cient. 

3.3 Online reputation 
management

Increased users and 
followers 
(Webmaster reports)

3.3.1 Online stakeholder engagement. 42 209 Increase  to 50 000 mobile users. Target exceeded
1.7 million users

The redesign of the sites has meant 
there is no longer a need for a dedicated 
mobile site. These figures represent all 
mobile unique users on southafrica.info 
(does not include tablet devices).

5 162 045 Increase unique users on  
southafrica.info to 5 678 250.

Target met 5 124 578 users

48 000 Increase twitter followers by  
81% annually.

Target not met
76 111

58.5% increase. 76 111 twitter followers.

3.3.2 Online content development. Develop and implement online 
reputation management strategy.

Target met Online Reputation Management 
strategy developed and implementation 
in progress.
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4. ARTICULATED AND CONTEXTUALISED SOUTH AFRICAN POLICY RELATING TO COMPETITIVENESS 
TARGET AND STAKEHOLDER SEGMENT: BUSINESS; GOVERNMENT

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT I BRAND KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

NO KEY RESULT  AREA OUTCOMES / MEASURES OUTPUTS / KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION 

4.1 Structured strategic 
engagement programmes 
with and through 
stakeholders to deliver on 
brand competitiveness and 
reputation

Improved rating on 
competitiveness factors: 
(WEF GCI)

4.1.1 Hosted National Competitiveness Forum. Six Round tables. Host a National Competitiveness 
Forum.

Target met Hosted an SACF.

4.1.2 Support Government and Business 
programmes.

Developed a media programme for 
six State visits and three o�cial visits. 

Implement media support 
programmes for State and 
o�cial visits and key policy 
pronouncements.

Target exceeded. Target exceeded. Ten State visits: Ghana 
State visit; Senegal State visit; DRC 
outgoing State visit; Malaysia State visit; 
Namibia State visit; French State visit; 
India State visit; Nigeria inbound State 
visit; US inbound State visit and Polish 
O�cial visit.

Structured feedback loop: 
Targeted at, and escalating 
appropriately to, relevant 
stakeholders to strengthen 
Brand Strategy delivery 

Stakeholder audit 4.2.1 Engage stakeholders on South Africa’s 
competitiveness drivers.

SALGA, the JCT cluster, Marketing 
Forum.

Feedback sessions on 
competitiveness drivers.
Target met.

Target met Targeted stakeholder platforms not 
available, however engagements 
concluded with: SAT, the dti, GCF, 
NAMC, DIRCO

Target met Q1 & Q2 newsletters not done, 
however Brand South Africa introduced 
a daily and weekly newsletter in Q1 
and Q2

Target met Provincial Government engagement: 
Gauteng x2; Eastern Cape x2; North 
West and Western Cape (WESGRO)

BUSA, AMCHAM, BLA, BBC, BLSA, 
BBEC.

Target met. AMCHAM; French Chamber; Swedish 
Investor Delegation; ABSA Executive 
outbound mission; Sanlam Provincial 
stakeholder engagement; Mining 
Sector Chairman’s Forum.

Meet with ANC and DA Target not met DA unavailable to meet, therefore 
UDM was prioritised. 
Auti-Forum was not available to meet.

Two Diplomatic Trade O�cers 
Briefings 

Target met EU briefing and
Africa briefing.
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5. SUSTAINABLE ORGANISATION – CORPORATE AFFAIRS
TARGET AND STAKEHOLDER SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC

STRATEGY: CORPORATE REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES MEASURES OUTPUTS KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION 

5.1
 

Building and nurturing 
key relationships with 
stakeholders to enhance 
and manage the business 
reputation (Public A�airs)

Successful hosted annual Golf Day 5.1.1 Create corporate platforms for 
relationship building.

Not applicable Annual corporate Golf day. Target met Golf Day in partnership with 
GCIS.

Brand South Africa newsletter/
magazine developed

Not applicable Approved Brand South Africa 
newsletter.

Target met
Fortnightly Board Bulletin

Sta� Communiqué; Board 
Bulletin.

5.2 Create a high performance 
organisation

Approved Human Capital plan. 
Progress reports stating reduced 
attrition. Identified HIPO’s. Approved 
Reward and Recognition policy

5.2.1 Implement the Human 
Capital plan: Implement talent 
management and host twice per 
annum TM Forums. Introduce 
bi-annual awards.

Not applicable 70% of the 10% HIPO’s must 
be retained. 20% reduction in 
attrition.

Target not met Awards ceremony hosted; 
Developed a Talent Management 
implementation plan.  Attrition 
has increased - 23% as compared 
to 16% 2012/13. 

Compliance to performance system 5.2.2 Implement revised performance 
management system. Train all 
sta� on the new system. Go live 
on performance module on 
SmartHR.

Current PM system in place. BI 
reports o� SmartHR.

100% compliance to the new 
policy. All sta� migrated onto 
SmartHR.

Target met. 100% compliance 
to new policy. All sta� migrated 
onto SmartHR phase II. Quarterly 
BI reports enabled. Reports only 
available end of April 14

Phase II online performance 
management deployed to all 
sta�. Training implemented.

Quarterly wellness reports 5.2.3 Implement an Employee 
Wellness programme: Work 
life balance programmes 
implemented.  
Executive health programme 
introduced. Teambuilding.

ICAS on site. Seven sta� used the 
service.

Ensure a happy and healthy sta� 
complement. 
Two health days per annum and 
two teambuilding sessions.

Target exceeded Two Health days concluded. Two 
satisfaction / engagement surveys 
conducted (Elephants on Main and 
True Confidence). Two teambuilding 
sessions as well as a golf clinic for 
sta� at the GCIS Golf day.

Reduced HR risks by 20% 5.2.4 Review of HR risk register. 
Ensure reduced AG findings 
Mitigate all identified HR Risks.

16 HR audit findings. 20% reduction in HR risks. No 
matters of emphasis relating 
to HR. 

Target met
Await the final AG HR audit 
report

More than 10% HR risks and 
audit findings mitigated. Audited 
all personnel files.

100% fully functional HRIMS.
Monthly BI reports on all new 
functions

5.2.5 Implement and ‘go live’ with 
phase 2 of SmartHR.

BI reports on phase 1. 100% implemented phase 2 
SmartHR. Production of monthly 
BI reports. PM on line.

Target met Phase 2 of SmartHR deployed; 
Monthly BI reports extracted 
and submitted on a Q basis 
to EXCO; Online performance 
management deployed.

100% sta� trained according to PDPs 5.2.6 Human Resource Development 
programme implemented. 
Approved new Training strategy and 
policy (incl. bursary) WSP and AR 
submitted to MICTSETA 30th June.

WSP and AR submitted.  
Mandatory grant received.  
Skills audit, R40k income.

Approved HRD plan. 100% 
compliance with HRD plan. 
Submitted WSP and AR, Income 
from MictSETA

Target met
HRD plan concluded; 100% 
compliance with HRD plan; WSP 
and AR submitted. Payment from 
MictSETA is pending

EBLAP launched Q3. Submitted WSP 
and AR. Income not received from 
MICTSETA due to administrative 
issue. Skills audit review concluded 
in Q1 2014/15 on 02/04/14.

VOIP three-month trial assessment 
results tabled at Manco

5.2.7 Investigate VOIP telemetry service. Not applicable Reduce telephone bills by 10%. Target exceeded Achieved savings of R37 447.20 
(19.8%)
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5. SUSTAINABLE ORGANISATION – CORPORATE AFFAIRS
TARGET AND STAKEHOLDER SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC

STRATEGY: CORPORATE REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES MEASURES OUTPUTS KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION 

5.2 Create a high performance 
organisation

Access reduced electricity rates. 
Income from sale of waste

5.2.8 Reduce the carbon footprint of 
Brand South Africa. Approved 
greening policy.

Not applicable Develop and implement a green 
(eco) policy. Assess baseline for 
income from waste.

Target not met Developed and implemented 
aspects (energy and water) of 
green policy. Baseline established. 
Increased usage because of new 
wing acquisition in Q2.

5.3 Ensure an innovative, 
enabling and e�cient IT 
infrastructure and support 
environment

Reduced risks 
IT audit report
Six monthly compliance and monthly 
IT reports
Reviewed MSP

5.3.1 Monitor the implementation 
of the IT Master Systems Plan 
(MSP).

Approved MSP. Clean IT audit – reduce IT 
findings 50%.

Target met. IT findings on Internal 
Audit report reduced by more 
than 50%.

MSP reviewed, submitted to 
EXCO and ARCO.

5.3.2 Scoping IT environment to 
assess new operating system: 
Business Requirements towards 
an ERP.

Not applicable Completed scoping report. 
Recommendations to Manco.

Target met 
IT Scoping report concluded. 
Relevant recommendations are 
being implemented

IT Scoping report concluded. 
Relevant recommendations are 
being implemented.

5.4 Ensure an optimised and 
compliant Corporate 
Governance environment

Annual self-assessments. Annual 
Board evaluation. Accurate Board 
minutes produced within 48 hours

5.4.1 Ensure e�ective and accurate 
Board administration.

Accurate minutes produced on time Annual calendar. 
Accurate Board minutes 
produced within 48hrs.

Trust Deed King III and PFMA 
compliance.

Target met
Target not met Board self-
evaluation not yet applicable; 
Annual calendar concluded and 
implemented; Minutes produced 
within seven days; action steps 
produced within 48hrs. Trust 
Deed compliance checklist 
produced

Board self-evaluation not yet 
applicable due to the Board 
being new.

Complete the evaluation 
questionnaire and CEC attendance

5.4.2 Implement Board Remuneration 
project.

Not applicable Implement Board remuneration. Target not met Pending EA approval.

5.5 Ensure Brand South Africa 
is a good Corporate Citizen

Two projects supported per annum 5.5.1 Implement CSI policy and 
support two projects per 
annum.

To be confirmed (Two Ebenezer, 
Bring a girl-child to work).

Two CSI projects funded. Target exceeded. Supported Ebenezer home for 
the destitute; Two bursaries to 
Lekoa Shandu High School for 
top 10 students; VEGA Brand 
Challenge.

5.6 Planning Completed and approved Annual 
Plan

5.6.1 Annual Report. Complied with PFMA. Completed, approved and 
submitted to parliament on 
deadline.

Target met Annual Report concluded 
and submitted 60 copies to 
Parliament on specified date.

Completed and approved Strategic 
and Business plans

5.6.2 Strategic and Business planning. Draft completed Sept 2012. Compliance to MOU. Target met Final draft submitted to EA on 
21/02/14.
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5. SUSTAINABLE ORGANISATION – CORPORATE AFFAIRS
TARGET AND STAKEHOLDER SEGMENT: SOUTH AFRICAN PUBLIC

STRATEGY: CORPORATE REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO KEY RESULT AREA OUTCOMES MEASURES OUTPUTS KEY ACTIVITIES BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION 

5.7 Ensure a legally compliant 
organisation

A sound contract management 
system in place; Electronic Alerts

5.7.1 Contract management. Produced three SLA’s. Ten contracts; 
terminated one contract and 
reviewed two contracts.

Ensure all contracts are legally 
binding and sound. Ensure 
annual reviews of performance.

Target met Monthly contracts register and 
alerts updated and sent to all 
HODs as well as EXCO.

New pay-o� line successfully 
registered in all countries

5.7.2 Registration of pay-o� line. 46 countries in progress. 55 countries registration in 
progress.

Target met and on track 37 (62%) countries successfully 
registered. All 60 lodged. Progress 
reports regularly to EXCO  
and Marco.

Managed all Brand South Africa TM’s 5.7.3 Monitoring of trade marks 116 Trade Marks. Appoint a legal company to 
manage all Trade Marks.

Target met DM Kisch appointed to manage 
all TM’s. Recent request by 
EXCO to terminate inactive TM’s. 
Conveyed to DM Kisch. The dti 
submission concluded reuse of 
South African flag in our logo. 

5.8 Financial and performance 
reporting

Auditor General’s reports 5.8.1 Implementation of a fully 
integrated financial and supply 
chain management system.

Unqualified audit report. Clean audit report. Target not met Received unqualified finding on 
emphasis of matter.

5.9 Compliance to legislation Approved and Implemented 
Compliance Risk Management Plans 
(CRMP)

5.9.1 Develop a holistic compliance 
to legislation risk register.

CRMP - PFMA 3 CRMP
(OSH; PFMA and labour).

Target met: Two CRMP
(OSH; PFMA and labour)

Only two CRMP required.

5.10 Risk Management Mitigated risk register to ensure 
sustainability

5.10.1 Monitor legislation risk register. To be extended Approved and managed risk 
register.

 Target met Risk register approved and 
managed quarterly. 

5.11 Joint funding/ Additional 
funds

Developed sustainable funding 
model

5.11.1 Develop and implement an 
approved funding model to 
ensure sustainability.

To be extended Develop funding model. Target not met Non responsive RFP in Q3.  
Re-advertised in Q4 with 
deadline in Q1 2014/15.

5.12 Joint Funding/ Additional 
funds

Funds raised as % of total Brand 
South Africa marketing budget

5.12.1. Raise additional funding to 
augment marketing budget.

12% 3% of marketing budget
R3 million

Target met The dti funding to the value of 
R3.5 million.

5.13 Leveraging resources: 
Sponsorships and 
Partnership Value Add

Value-add as a % of total Brand South 
Africa marketing budget

5.13.1. Collaborate with Media 
partners for incremental 
value in Brand South Africa 
programmes.

R12m Achieve R9m of value add. Target met R12.5 million in added value for 
media partnerships. 
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UK 

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – UK

STRATEGY: BRAND KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI / MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION 

3.1 Promoting positive 
awareness of South Africa’s 
competitiveness

Media reputation index
 
Structured engagements 
with key stakeholders on 
South Africa policy and 
competitiveness

3.1.1 Create thought pieces / thought leadership 
platforms to promote South Africa as a 
hub for deal making and raising capital 
in Africa.

One thought piece.
One press release per month.

Four thought pieces per annum. Target met Four thought pieces.

3.1.2 Platforms to articulate South Africa’s 
investment policy and build confidence 
with investors.

Four investor round tables. Quarterly round table on four 
themes above.

Target met Quarterly round tables.

3.1.3 Develop GSA outreach programme in 
conjunction with Play your Part.

Two GSA engagements per annum. 
Content, compilation and 
distribution of weekly GSA 
e-newsletter.

Target met Two GSA engagements; Content, 
compilation and distribution of weekly 
GSA e-newsletter.

3.1.4 Implement media programmes and round 
tables with key UK publications to support 
themes in 3.1 above.

Four engagements. Target met Four engagements with key UK 
publications.

3.2 Promoting South Africa as 
a business destination

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Survey

3.2.1 Develop platforms to build relationships 
and dialogue with UK business elite.

3.2.3 Business reputation media programme on 
key sectors highlighting innovation.

Two platforms. Two platforms. Target met Two platforms:
UK business elite; Business reputation 
media programme. 

146Brand South Africa Annual Report 2013 | 2014



USA 

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – USA

STRATEGY: BRAND KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Promoting positive 
awareness of South Africa’s 
competitiveness

Media Reputation Index 3.1.1 Content management strategy with PR 
Newswire and brandsouthafrica.us to 
engage target audiences on a continuous 
basis.

Not applicable Quarterly disseminated articles via 
PR newswire

Target exceeded 60 content items disseminated via PR 
newswire.

Unique visits per month on 
brandsouthafrica.us

Target not met Tra�c redirected to www.
globalsouthafricans .com.

3.1.2 GSA outreach programme deepened Four GSA engagements per annum. Four GSA engagements per annum. Target exceeded Nine GSA engagements.

3.1.3 “Team South Africa” aligned and 
empowered to promote value proposition.

Four partnerships (conferences, 
seminars, national days) per annum.

Six partnerships per annum.
Including one South Africa Week 
activation.

Target exceeded Nine partnerships.

3.2 Improved understanding 
of South Africa trade and 
investment opportunities

Consideration of South 
Africa: 
(Thrive Survey)

3.2.1 Support trade and investment initiatives. Two partnerships per annum within 
market of the dti o�ces, businesses, 
trade groups (e.g. WOSA)

Four partnerships plus support for 
the dti ITI (if required).

Target exceeded Five partnerships.

3.3 Promoting South Africa as 
a business destination

Familiarity Index: 
(Thrive Survey)

3.3.1 Establish endorsement programme from 
leading business figures. 

Two interviews published/broadcast. Target not met Resource constraints in New York o�ce.

3.3.2 Platforms to build relationships and 
dialogue with US business elite.

Four business round tables per 
annum.

Four business round tables per 
annum.

Target exceeded Six business round tables.

3.3.3 Organise inbound innovation tour for US 
technology bloggers.

One tour, 250 000 views of content 
generated on tour.

Target met Resource constraints in New York o�ce.

PERFORMANCE RESULTS 
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BRAZIL 

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – BRAZIL 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Communicate shared 
BRICS values

Familiarity Index:  
Thrive Study

3.1.1 BRICS Summit media programme – 
interviews with media and South Africa 
delegation at summit.

One press release, four top tier 
interviews.

One piece of content, four 
interviews.

Target met. BRICS Summit postponed, however 
four interviews and one piece of 
content were generated.

3.1.2 By-line around BRICS summit on South 
Africa’s role as the voice of Africa in the 
bloc and why it deserves a seat at the table.

One thought leader. One piece of content. Target met. Opinion piece on ‘Renewable energy” 
delivered. 

3.1.3 Media content on next phase of the BRICS 
and why it is a valuable group.

One thought leader. No applicable. Target met. One piece of content.

3.2 Demonstrate South Africa’s 
leadership in hosting  
global events

Media reputation index; 
Familiarity Index:  
Thrive study

3.2.1 Thought-leader or interviews with Sports 
and Recreation on key learnings from the 
World Cup in advance of the 2014 Cup.

Two thought leaders and two 
interviews.

Two pieces of content and two 
interviews.

Target met. Two pieces of content and two 
interviews.

3.2.2 Arrange photo opportunity for World Cup. 
2010 Mascot to meet 2014 Mascots.

One photo shoot event. One photo shoot event. Target met. Photo shoot replaced with two pieces 
of content to enhance the country ’s 
reputation with regards to the hosting 
of the World Cup.

3.3 Boost understanding of 
business opportunities in 
South Africa

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Survey; Media 
Reputation Index

3.3.1 Business round table with South Africa 
and Brazilian businesses / investors / fund 
managers.

One per year. One per year. Target met. One business round table with South 
African and Brazilian businesses.

3.3.2 Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. One interview per quarter. Target met. Four quarterly business interviews.

3.3.3 Media programme around IBSA (TBC 
if event moves ahead; if not, alternative 
activity will be proposed). 

One press release and One thought 
leader.

One piece of content. Target not met. Given that IBSA did not take place 
Brand South Africa developed one 
piece of content focusing on SADC.

3.3.4 Media programme and high-level media 
interviews at WEF with South African 
business/ government leaders about trade 
and investment opportunities.

Two press releases, two interviews, 
one thought leader.

Two pieces of content and two 
interviews.

Target met. Two pieces of content, two interviews 
around South Africa’s participation at 
WEF Davos.

3.3.5 St. Petersburg Media programme. One thought leader and two 
interviews.

One piece of content and two 
interviews.

Target met. Low South Africa participation at St 
Petersburg Forum. Activity replaced 
with one piece of content and two 
interviews on agro-processing and 
Heritage Day.
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BRAZIL
OUTCOME 4: ARTICULATION AND CONTEXTUALISATION OF SOUTH AFRICA POLICY 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION 

4.1 Boost perception of 
South Africa governance 
on key issues such as 
labour, political stability, 
unemployment, healthcare 
and media policy

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Anholt - GfK

4.1.1 Media interviews with Senior South African policy 
makers or Ambassador/CG around Freedom Day to 
highlight where South Africa has come from and where 
it is going.

Two interviews. Two interviews. Target met Two interviews.

4.1.2 Media programme on how South Africa is moving up 
social indices (e.g. Poverty Index, Welfare Index) through 
increased consumerisation and closing the wealth gap.

One thought leader. One piece of content. Target met Two pieces of content.

4.1.3 Media programme on South Africa’s government 
polices to highlight as a benchmark for emerging 
countries.

One press release and one thought 
leader.

Two pieces of content. Target met Two pieces of content.

4.1.4 Media content about key areas on South Africa’s development 
such as Health Care, Engineering, and Technology.

One thought leader. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

4.2 Demonstrate emerging 
market leadership on key 
global governance issues

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Anholt

4.2.1 By-lined on new economic models for growth and the 
role of south-south collaboration.

One thought leader. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

4.2.2. Economic and emerging market leadership: articulate 
key South African economic policies and leadership for 
emerging markets.

Not applicable. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

4.2.3 Science and Technology focus: showcase key programmes 
/ initiatives in South Africa.

Not applicable. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

4.2.4 Media Round Table – Embassy Events – South African 
Week in Brasilia/Federal District – One-on-One 
interviews and Meetings with two key opinion leaders.

One event. One event. Target met One media round table.

4.2.5 WEF AFRICA. One piece of content and one 
interview.

One piece of content and one interview. Target met One piece of content and one 
interview.

4.3 Articulation  / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.3.1 Media content distribution. 17 press releases, 10 by-lines. 24 media content (18 central and 6 local). Target met 24 pieces of media content. 

4.3.2 Background media briefings. 12 background briefings. 12 background briefings. Target met 12 background media briefings.

4.3.3 Press trips. One press trip. To be confirmed based on Brand 
South Africa market priorities.

Target met Participation in Media Tour.

4.4 Embassy engagement Not applicable 4.4.1 Monthly meetings and engagement with South Africa’s 
Embassy in Brasilia. Aligning information, arranging 
media opportunities and developing local events. 

Bi-monthly meetings (six per year). Bi-monthly meetings (six per year). Target met Bi-monthly meetings with the 
Embassy.
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RUSSIA
OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – RUSSIA

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/ MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Communicate shared 
BRICS values

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study

3.1.1 BRICS Summit media programme – 
coverage generation and placement 
opportunities with Russian media and 
South African delegation at Summit.

One press release and four top tier 
interviews. 

One press release and four pieces of 
content (interview or written).

Target met One piece of content and one press 
release.

3.1.2 Thought leadership opportunities around 
BRICS summit on South Africa’s role as 
the voice of Africa in the bloc and why it 
deserves a seat at the table.

One press release and four top 
interviews.

One piece of content (interview or 
written).

Target met One piece of content.

3.1.3 Thought leadership opportunities around 
bilateral ITEC meeting between Russia and 
South Africa (Intergovernmental Committee 
on Trade and Economic Co-operation).

One thought leader. One piece of content (interview or 
written).

Target not met Activity realigned to ITI as the ITEC did 
not take place.

3.2 Demonstrate South Africa’s 
leadership in hosting 
global events

Media reputation index 3.2.1 Coverage generation opportunities around 
Sports and Recreation, large-scale events 
experience and legacy of South Africa in the 
anticipation of World Cup 2018, Universidad 
2013, and Olympic Games 2014.

Two thought leaders and one 
interview. 

Three pieces of content (interview 
or written).

Target met Three pieces of content.

3.2.2. Media programme around WEF Africa Not applicable Two pieces of content (interview or 
written).

Target met Two pieces of content around WEF 
Africa.

3.3 Promoting South Africa 
as a business destination, 
increasing awareness and 
reporting of South Africa’s 
business environment and 
priority sectors

Media reputation 
index; Anholt - GfK; 
Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study

3.3.1 Annual business round tables and business 
collaboration between the Russian 
Federation and South Africa. Potential to 
invite corporates, fund managers, investors. 

One per annum. One per annum. Target met One business round table.

3.3.2 Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. One interview per quarter. Target met Four interviews. 

3.3.3 Coverage opportunities around major 
trade events in Moscow (Prodexpo, World 
Food, Rusnanotech, etc.)

Not applicable Four press releases and two pieces 
of content.

Target met Four press releases and two pieces of 
content.

3.3.4 Coverage opportunities around St. 
Petersburg Economic Forum.

Not applicable Three pieces of content and one 
press release.

Target met Limited South Africa presence at St. 
Petersburg Forum. Activity realigned to: 
three pieces of content and one press 
release.
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RUSSIA 

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – RUSSIA

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/ MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.1 Manage perceptions of 
societal issues

Media reputation index; 
Anholt - GfK; 
Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study

4.1.1 Coverage opportunities to communicate 
the South African vision for the future (on 
the occasion of Nelson Mandela Day).

One thought leader. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

4.2 Promoting positive 
awareness of South Africa 
and shaping perceptions

4.2.1 Press release and thought leaders on 
SONA and budget.

One press release and one thought 
leader.

One press release and one piece of 
content.

Target met One press release and one piece of 
content.

4.2.2 Coverage opportunities around the events 
and round tables of Russian NGOs on the 
topic of South Africa.

Not applicable Two pieces of content. Target met Two pieces of content.

4.3 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

Press releases. Five press releases. Two locally generated and three 
centrally generated.

Target met Five pieces of content.

4.4 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

Pieces of content. Three pieces of content. Two locally generated and one 
centrally generated

Target met Three pieces of content.

4.5 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

Background media briefings. Four (one briefing and three media 
attendees).

Four (one briefing and three media 
attendees)

Target met Four briefings.

4.6 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

Press trips. One press trip. TBC based on BSA market priorities Target met One journalist was part of the Q1 
media tour to South Africa.

4.7 Embassy engagement Not applicable Monthly update meetings. Four per year. Four per year. Target met Four updates. 

PERFORMANCE RESULTS 
OUTPUTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

151



INDIA

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – INDIA

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/ MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Boost understanding of 
business opportunities in 
South Africa

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Survey

3.1.1 Business round tables with an industry 
body / association such as CII / FICCI / 
Indo-African Chamber of Commerce for 
stakeholder engagement.

Two round tables per year (local 
generation).

One media engagement (round 
table / written content).

Target met One piece of written content.

3.1.2 Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. Six interviews. Target met Six interviews.

3.1.3 Media programme around South Africa-
India Business Leaders Forum 

One press release, one round table, 
four one on one interviews.

Four media outputs (interview / 
written content).

Target met Four media outputs.

3.1.4 WEF Media Programme. Two press releases, two interviews, 
one thought leader and four 
meetings per annum.

Three pieces of content. Target met Three pieces of content.

3.1.5 Stakeholder advocacy programme, 
focused on finance, industry and trade 
associations.

Not applicable. Four meetings per year. Target met Four meetings.

3.1.6 Trade Event occasion / media based 
program – Such as IIFT, Annapoorna, and 
Melting Pot

One press release and one media 
event.

Three pieces of content. Target met Three pieces of content.

3.1.7 Profiling South African business entering 
India.

One media event and one piece of 
content. 

Target met One media event and one piece of 
content.

3.1.8 Inbound delegate visit. Not applicable Five media outputs (interview/ 
written content). 

Target met Five media outputs.
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INDIA

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – INDIA

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULTS 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.2 Communicate shared 
BRICS (and IBSA) values

Familiarity Index: 
Thrive Study; Anholt - GfK

3.2.1 CG + High Comm. Interviews. Not applicable Six media interviews. Target met Six media interviews.

3.2.2 Content generation around BRICS summit. India was host country so activity 
was high. One round table.

Four media outputs. Target met Two media outputs on BRICS Summit.
Two outputs realigned to bilateral 
political and economic relations 
between the two countries.

3.2.3 Activity in Mumbai with Consul General 
around shared histories and vision for the 
future.

One round table. One media activity (e.g. group 
interview, round table).

Target met One media activity.

3.2.4 Activity in Delhi with High Commissioner 
around the progress of South Africa /India 
bilateral business.

Not applicable. One media activity
(E.g. group interview, round table).

Target met One round table.

3.2.5 Nelson Mandela Day celebrations in 
Mumbai and Delhi.

Two media activities (one in Mumbai 
and one in Delhi).

Target met Two media activities.

3.2.6 WEF Africa.  Content and one interview. Target met One content and one interview.

3.3 Promoting positive 
awareness of South Africa’s 
competitiveness

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media reputation 
index

3.3.1 Leverage World Bank Ease of Doing 
Business Report.

One content. Target met. Target met One piece of content.

3.3.2 Success of Business story of doing business 
in South Africa / KOL article promoting 
South Africa. 

Four features. Four pieces of content. Target met Four pieces of content.

3.4 Boost perception of 
South Africa’s governance 
on key issues such as 
labour, political stability, 
unemployment, healthcare 
and media policy

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Anholt - GfK

3.4.1 Women’s equality. How women in South 
Africa are becoming the leading business 
women and managing businesses with 
male counterparts in South Africa.

Not applicable. Two pieces of content. Target met Two pieces of content.

3.4.2 Women’s Day event in Mumbai and Delhi. Two city media activity – On ground 
event, interviews and photograph 
opportunities.

Target met One media activity profiling women in 
leadership.
One activity realigned to ITI in February 
2014.
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INDIA

OUTCOME 4: ARTICULATION AND CONTEXTUALISATION OF SOUTH AFRICAN POLICY 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.1 Demonstrate emerging 
market leadership on key 
global governance issues

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Anholt - GfK

4.1.1 Host media round table around bilateral 
trade with visiting minister level delegates.

One media activity. Target met One media round table.

4.1.2 Content generation around new economic 
models’ (IH+K to produce).

By-line. One content. Target met One piece of content.

4.1.3 High Comm. visit to tier 2 cities in India Two media activities. Target met Two media activities.

4.2 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.2.1 Content creation and distribution. 16 press releases and 16 by-lines. Six additional – three centrally 
generated and three locally 
generated.

Target met Six pieces of content.

4.3 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.3.1 Background media briefings. 12 background briefings Host 12 background briefings. Target met 12 background briefings.

4.4 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.4.1 Press trips. One press trip. One FAM visit. Target not met Suitable journalist could not be 
identified.
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CHINA

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Communicate shared 
BRICS values

Familiarity Index: 
Thrive Study

3.1.1 BRICS Summit media programme. One press release and four top tier 
interviews.

One piece of content (e.g. by-line, 
press release, case study, written Q & 
A) and four interviews coordination.

Target not met BRICS Summit postponed. South Africa 
Hosted BRICS STI. 
Two teleconference interviews failed due 
to technical problems. Questions sent to 
Minister Hanekom for email interview.

3.1.2 One piece of content on next phase of the 
BRICS and why it is a valuable group.

One thought leader. Two pieces of content. Target not met To be re-aligned with 6th BRICS summit 
likely to be held in July, Q2.

3.1.3 Interviews / Feature story on the launch of 
cross listing BRICS.

One interview and one article. One interview and one piece of 
content.

Target not met Replaced with one piece content for 
State Diamond Trading Company and 
one interview with SDT CEO.

3.1.4 St. Petersburg Media Programme. One interview and one article. One interview and one piece of 
content.

Target met One interview and one piece of 
content.

3.1.5 WEF Africa (May) One press release. One piece of content and one interview. Target met One piece of content and one interview.

3.2 Awareness of South Africa 
as a business destination

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

3.2.1 Media content following release of GCI on 
South Africa as the gateway to Africa.

One thought leader. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

3.2.2 Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. One interview per quarter. Target met Four interviews.

3.2.3 High-level media interviews at WEF with 
South Africa bus / government leaders 
about trade and investment opportunities.

Four interviews, two press releases, 
one thought leader

Four interviews, two pieces of 
content.

Target met Two interviews and two pieces of 
content. 

3.2.4 Business round tables with South Africa and 
Chinese businesses, investors, fund managers.

Two per year. Two round tables. Target met Two round tables.

3.2.5 Summer Davos To be confirmed Two group interviews, one piece of 
content, one media partnership.

Target met Two groups of interviews, one piece of 
content, one media partnership.

3.3 Manage sectorial 
perceptions (Trade and 
FDI)

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study

3.3.1 Mining conference (Nov) Two group interviews (target three 
media per time)

Two group interviews (target three 
media per time)

Target met Two group interviews.

3.3.2 WOSA Wine Expo ( June) One group interviews (target three 
media) in S�; One group interviews 
(target three media) in Yantai.

Two group interviews (target three 
media)

Target met Two group interviews. 
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CHINA

OUTCOME 4: ARTICULATION AND CONTEXTUALISATION OF SOUTH AFRICAN  POLICY 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULTS 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.1 Highlight political stability, 
regulatory framework and 
contribution to global 
governance

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.1.1 Content of South Africa’s Vision for the 
Future to coincide with Freedom Day

One thought leader One piece of content Target met One piece of content

4.1.2 Media programme to highlight South 
Africa’s policies that are leading South 
Africa into the future 

Two interviews One interview, one piece of content Target met One interview, one piece of content

4.2 Highlight social stability 
and e�orts to fight crime

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.2.1 Content on SONA and budget One press release, one thought 
leader

Two pieces of content Target met Two pieces of content

4.2.2 FAM trip Two FAM trips Two FAM trips – securing journalists
NOTE: dates to be confirmed

Target met Two journalists part of Q4 media tour 
to South Africa

4.3 Highlight political stability, 
regulatory framework and 
contribution to global 
governance

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.3.1 Content of South Africa’s Vision for the 
Future to coincide with Freedom Day

One thought leader One piece of content Target met. One piece of content

4.3.2 Media programme to highlight  
South African policies that are leading 
South Africa into the future 

Two interviews One interview, piece of content Target met. One interview, one piece of content

4.3.3 Content on SONA and budget One press release, one thought 
leader

Two pieces of content Target met Two pieces of content

4.4 Highlight social stability 
and e�orts to fight crime

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.4.1 FAM trip Two FAM trips Two FAM trips – securing journalists
NOTE: dates to be confirmed

Target met

4.5 Articulation  / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.5.1 Content generation 12 releases, 15 thought leaders 24 pieces of content per year (all 
centrally generated)

Target met 24 pieces of content

4.6 Articulation  / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.6.1 Background media briefings 24 per year 24 per year Target met 24 per year

4.7 Articulation  / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.7.1 Press trips As budgets allow As budgets allow Target not met Budget did not allow for activations 
beyond 4.4.1
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GERMANY

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – GERMANY

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/ MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Generate awareness of 
South Africa as a business 
destination and trade 
partner

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

3.1.1 Membership at Africa Veering (German-African 
Business Association), hosting one event / year and as 
resource for case studies.

One event per year One event per year (if membership 
costs agreed

Target met One event

3.1.2 Biannual business interviews showcasing the ease 
of doing business and opportunities in South 
Africa.

Two interviews Two interviews per year Target met Two interviews

3.1.3 Interviews with key business leaders around the 
German South African Business Forum (Oct 2013: 
to be confirmed. Event may take place in the 
spring but October more likely).

Three interviews Two interviews Target met Two interviews

3.1.4 Thought leadership on key trade sectors (e.g. 
Mining, manufacturing or agriculture).

Not applicable Two interviews, one piece of 
content (German team to draft)

Target met Two interviews, one piece of content

3.1.5 St Petersburg media programme (delivery is 
TBC based on BSA presence and relevance of 
spokespeople).

One thought leader, two interviews. Target met Delivery realigned due to minimal 
participation by South African delegation 
in St Petersburg.
Two interviews, one piece of content.

3.1.6 WEF Africa: “One Year, One change”. Piece on the 
changes that happened in the past year in Africa and 
involvement of South Africa.

One interview, one piece of 
content.

Target met Two interviews, one piece of content.

3.2 Position South Africa as a 
leader in innovation and 
technology

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

3.2.1 Continue to raise awareness of South Africa as leader 
in innovation and technology in relation to the SKA. 
Work with topics around the SKA such as capacity 
building (education), industry partnerships and 
involvement and other topics.

Not applicable. Two pieces of content. Target met Two pieces of content.

3.2.2 Women’s Day activity: showcase leading South 
Africa women in business, innovation and 
leadership (locally drafted).

Not applicable. One interview
One piece of content.

Target met One interview, one piece of content.

3.2.3 After the Year of Science: the role of economy and 
technology in the cooperation of South Africa and 
Germany – (locally drafted).

Not applicable. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

3.3 Promoting positive 
awareness of South Africa’s 
competitiveness

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media reputation 
index

3.3.1 Develop an endorsement programme to deliver 
positive stories about South Africa.

One stakeholder briefing per 
quarter.

One stakeholder briefing per 
quarter.

Target met Four briefings.
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GERMANY

OUTCOME 4: ARTICULATION AND CONTEXTUALISATION OF SOUTH AFRICAN POLICY 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY PERFORMANCE AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.1 Manage perceptions of 
societal issues

Media reputation index; 
Anholt - GfK

4.1.1 Thought leadership around Freedom Day. One piece of content. One piece of content. Target met One piece of content.

4.1.2 Annual stakeholder round table to discuss 
key issues including poverty alleviation, 
the NGP and health (potential to link with 
World AIDS Day, Intl Human Rights Day, 
etc.).

One per year. One per year. Target met One annual stakeholder round table.

4.1.3 Round table with African associations 
and interest groups in Germany to discuss 
where South Africa has come from and 
where it is going in the future.

One round table. One round table. Target met One round table.

4.2 Highlight social stability 
and e�orts to fight crime

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media reputation 
index; Anholt - GfK

4.2.1 FAM trips: one focusing on the South 
African export sector and one focusing on 
the Year of Science.

One media tour (for two journalists, 
excluding travel costs and costs  
on site).

Target met Two journalists were part of the June 
2013 media tour.

4.3 Articulation  / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.3.1 Press release distribution (incl. translations 
and adaption if needed).

12 additional press releases to be 
distributed.

12 press releases. Target met 17 press releases issued.

4.4 Articulation  / Context of 
South Africa’s policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.4.1 Placing by-lined articles / placing only if 
topics relevant to the German market (incl. 
translation and adaption).

Six additional. Six pieces of content. Target met Six pieces of content.

4.5 Articulation  / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

4.5.1 Background media briefings / as 
appropriate.

Host four background briefings. Four background briefings. Target met Four background briefings.

4.6 Embassy engagement Not applicable 4.6.1 Maintaining relationship with embassy and 
stakeholders (consulate, SAT and SAA).

Biannual meetings with the embassy 
(two per year) 
Biannual meetings with stakeholders 
(two per year)

Two meetings. Target met Two meetings.
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EGYPT (MARKET NOT ACTIVATED DUE TO POLITICAL INSTABILITY)

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTION ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY PERFORMANCE AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULTS 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Highlight South Africa as 
the gateway to Africa

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

3.1.1 Focus on regional economic integration. Two pieces of content (one centrally 
generated, one locally generated).

Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.1.2 Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. One interview/ quarter. Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.1.3 BRICS media programme on South Africa’s 
role as the voice of Africa in the bloc and 
why it deserves a seat at the table.

One thought leader. One piece or content or interview 
quarter.

Not applicable  Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.1.4 Host regular South Africa Business 
Luncheon with local embassy reps and 
Egyptian business leaders / investors 
/ fund managers (Note: this is project 
activity – see note on closing slide).

Two lunches per year. Two lunches / year 
(Timing dependent on DTI visits).

Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.1.5 WEF Africa (May): support through 
centrally generated press releases and 
exploring which local media will be 
travelling to set up interviews .

Not applicable. Two pieces of content, one interview 
(if Egyptian media are onsite). 

Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.2 Position South Africa as a 
leader in innovation and 
technology

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

3.2.1 Continue to raise awareness of SKA in 
the media to support South Africa’s bid 
for the telescope and highlighting the 
impact it will have on African science and 
technology.

One interview, one press release, one 
case study.

One interview, two pieces of content 
(one piece to be locally generated).

Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.3 Continue to raise 
awareness of South Africa 
as an investment /business 
destination

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

3.3.1. Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. One interview per quarter. Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.3.2 South Africa Business Luncheon with 
local embassy reps and Egyptian business 
leaders.

Two lunches per year. Two lunches per year. Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.4 Position South Africa as 
a leader and example 
for Egypt, highlighting 
political stability, 
regulatory framework and 
contribution to global 
governance

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Anholt - GfK

3.4.1 Media interviews with Ambassador 
around Freedom Day to highlight where 
South Africa has come from and how it 
can support Egypt through transition.

Two interviews. Two interviews. Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

3.4.2 Media programme on SONA and budget. One press release, one thought 
leader.

One piece of content. One piece of content Market not activated due to political 
instability.
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EGYPT - (MARKET NOT ACTIVATED DUE TO POLITICAL INSTABILITY)

OUTCOME 4: ARTICULATION AND CONTEXTUALISATION OF SOUTH AFRICAN POLICY 

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.1 Articulation / Context of 
South African policy

Consideration Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.1.1 Distribution of content. Eight releases, eight by-lines. 12 additional pieces of content. Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

4.1.2 Background media briefings. Eight background briefings. Host three background briefings 
(Note: done in round table format 
per local custom).

Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

4.1.3 Press trips. To be confirmed. To be confirmed based on Brand 
South Africa market priorities.

Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.

4.2 Embassy engagement Not applicable 4.2.1 Quarterly meetings with Embassy to 
discuss upcoming plans and activities.

Four meetings. Four meetings. Not applicable Market not activated due to political 
instability.
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UAE 
OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – UAE

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/ MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1 Build and reinforce 
awareness of business and 
trade opportunities with 
South Africa

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media  
Reputation Index

3.1.1 Quarterly business interviews showcasing 
the ease of doing business and 
opportunities which exist in South Africa.

One interview per quarter. One interview per quarter.
One piece of content (e.g. by-line, press 
release, case study), four interviews.

Target met Four Interviews in Doing Business on 
South Africa done in Q3.

3.1.2 BRICS Summit Media Programme -  
UAE based interviews – Ambassador.

One press release, four top tier 
interviews.

One interview. Target not met BRICS Summit postponed until  
July 2014.

3.1.3 Interviews / Feature story on  
WEF AFRICA (May).

Not applicable. One piece of content. Target met One Interview plus one piece  
of content.

3.1.4 Interviews / Feature story on World Future 
Energy Summit– What does the future 
hold for emerging Africa and Green Energy.

Not applicable. One interview, one piece of content. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources  
in mind.  

3.2 Profile business elite of 
the South African diaspora 
within UAE for business 
relationships

Familiarity Index:  
Thrive Study

3.2.1 Launch support of SABCO Business 
Awards – Third party costs of branding/
photography etc. included.

Not applicable. One press conference and one press 
release.

Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources in 
mind.  

3.2.2 Interviews and press release of shortlisted 
candidates for South Africa Business 
Awards.

Not applicable. Two interviews, one press release. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources in 
mind.  

3.2.3 Event support, media attendance to 
South Africa Business Awards Gala Event – 
branding and photography.

Not applicable. One press event, press release. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources  
in mind.  

3.2.4 Case study of South Africa’s Business 
Awards and winner interview.

Not applicable Written piece and Interview. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources  
in mind.  

3.2.5 During Ramadan, host an Iftar meal – 
invite media and leading business figs to 
raise profile of South African business in 
UAE *All SABCO materials will be  
locally drafted.

One annually. One annually. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources  
in mind.  
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UAE 

OUTCOME 3: POSITIVELY CHANGED PERCEPTIONS ABOUT SOUTH AFRICA AMONGST TARGET AUDIENCE – UAE

STRATEGY: REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

NO. KEY RESULT AREA KPI/ MEASURES KEY ACTIVITIES (ACTIVATIONS) BASE LINE 2012/13 TARGET 2013/14 RESULT 2013/14 VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.3 Communicate shared 
values, collaborations and 
alignment via existing trade 
relationship

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media  
Reputation Index

3.3.1 Quarterly business/industry round tables 
with business leaders, media, Ambassador 
and/or visiting ministers for Middle East 
showcase Events – Food, Defence,  
IT, Health.

One meeting per quarter. One meeting per quarter. Target not met One round table concluded.
Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources  
in mind. 

3.4 Highlight South Africa’s 
innovation in priority 
sectors of interest to UAE 
(finance, healthcare, energy, 
agriculture, resources)

Consideration Index: 
Thrive Study; Media 
Reputation Index

3.4.1 Case study on South Africa’s automotive 
industry – timed in advance on 
Automechanika.

Two interviews and one case study. Two interviews and one case study. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources  
in mind.  

3.4.2 – Interview on South African Food and 
Drink Industry supporting  
SIAL Middle East.

One interview, one press release. One interview and one press release. Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources 
in mind.  

3.4.3 Raise awareness of South Africa’s Industry 
and Infrastructure projects delivered for 
World Cup 2010 – pan regional relevance 
for Qatar 2022.

Two interviews and one case study. Two interviews, piece of content. Target met

4.1 SA Progress on Social 
Indices

Familiarity Index: Thrive 
Study; Media Reputation 
Index

4.1.1 Country reports and NGP progress reports 
using SA as a case example against the 
backdrop of the Arab Spring and move for 
democracy in the Middle East

2 written pieces (drafted by UAE 
team)

2 written pieces (drafted by UAE 
team)

Target not met Country agency services terminated 
due to cost constraints. Business plan 
developed with agency resources in 
mind.  

4.1.2 Media interviews with Ambassador 
around Freedom Day to highlight where 
SA has come from and how it can  
support transition

2 interviews 2 interviews Target met
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as at 31 March 2014

TACTICAL 
OPPORTUNITIES 

PROJECT/OPPORTUNITY REFERRED BY/SOURCE PROJECT/OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS COURSE OF ACTION TAKEN/DECISION

1. Youth dialogue session in partnership with 
 One Young World

Invitation by One Young World A partnership with One Young World in hosting a youth 
and business dialogue on BRICS in Cape Town.

R255 000 - for travel costs The global Chairman of Goldman Sachs, Jim O’Neal, led a discussion with 
One Young World, focusing on the role of South Africa in BRICS.

2. One Young World Conference Invitation by One Young World Participation at the Johannesburg conference to drive 
active citizenship through the Play Your Part Programme.

Participation at the conference to drive active citizenship through the Play 
Your Part Programme.

3. Child Protection Week campaign in 
 partnership with the Department of Social 
 Development

Brand South Africa Stakeholder 
Relations

To partner with the Department of Social Development 
on the ‘Child Protection Week’ programme and 
implementing a below-the-line marketing campaign.

None Implemented a below-the-line marketing campaign aimed at advocating 
children’s rights to reduce incidents of child abuse.

4. Partnership with the Gauteng Provincial 
 Legislature in an active citizenship 
 campaign

Brand South Africa Stakeholder 
Relations

To partner with the Gauteng Provincial Legislature in an 
active citizenship campaign.

None A three-year ‘Citizens Responsibility ’ campaign, aimed at renewing 
partnerships with communities and instilling pride and patriotism.

5. Government stakeholder workshop to 
 support the rebranding and positioning
 of the North West province

North West Premier’s o�ce To support the North West province on their rebranding 
process to ensure alignment.

R5 000 - for travel costs Brand South Africa was invited to provide input on the strategic approach to 
the rebranding and repositioning strategy of the North West province.

6. Mercedes-Benz New York Fashion Week Brand South Africa and the New 
York Consulate General

To profile the South African design industry as well as 
fashion designer David Tlale at the Mercedes-Benz New 
York Fashion Week.

R585 000 The event provided a branding and reputation management platform for 
Brand South Africa, through sponsorship and hosting of a media and fashion 
buyers event.

7. 500 African Journalists Conference held in 
 Grahamstown

Highway Africa Hosted a workshop for African journalists on South 
Africa’s role within BRICS.

R25 000 Brand South Africa secured a partnership with Highway Africa to execute the 
workshop.

8. Visit to Brand South Africa o�ces by the 
 Gert Sibanda FET College

CEO Hosted a workshop for 2nd and 3rd year students studying 
Marketing and Communications to expose them to 
nation branding.

R7 000 Created exposure of the work of Brand South Africa and exposed the youth to 
nation branding.

9. One Humanity, One Justice feature  
 documentary film

Tony Hollingsworth/Peter Hain
Brand South Africa CEO and UK 
Country Manager

Opportunity to articulate the South African story, to 
ensure positive coverage of 20 years of freedom and 
democracy of South Africa.

Brand South Africa to provide media content and assist in 
marketing of the anti-apartheid film.

R500 000 Partnership in the production of the feature documentary in association with 
IDC, SAA, the dti and Tribute - Producers of Nelson Mandela events in 1990 
and 1995.

10. Reputation Institute - Release of 2013 
 Reputation Track - Country Reputation 
 Report

Manager: Research Brand South Africa participated in the launch of the 2013 
South Africa Reputation study results.

None Brand South Africa CEO presented the keynote speech and participated in a 
panel discussion on South Africa’s reputation.
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PROJECT/OPPORTUNITY REFERRED BY/SOURCE PROJECT/OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS COURSE OF ACTION TAKEN/DECISION

11. Round table and follow-up meetings with 
 key South African arts and culture players 
 in the UK to provide inputs for the 20 years 
 of democracy celebrations

Brand South Africa
UK Country Manager

Brand South Africa initiated round table in response to 
arts and culture practitioners.

None Brand South Africa UK Country Manager provided inputs to SAHC, DAC and 
Head O�ce. The second round table to follow in October 2014.

12. Devised and executed a two-day programme 
 for the Development Planning Department 
 and the Finance Minister to engage with 
 investors in the UK

Brand South Africa CEO Brand South Africa was invited to partner/collaborate on 
a two-day programme for the Development Planning 
Department and the Finance Minister to engage with 
investors in the UK.

None Brand South Africa UK Country Manager set up media interviews and investor 
engagements in the UK.

13. Visit by the ANCYL Task Force Chairperson 
 to the UK to reassure investors

Honorary Consul for Midlands, 
Avi Lasarow

Developed a programme for the visit on the ANCYL Task 
Force Chairperson to the UK to reassure investors and 
hosted a round table with the High-Commissioner and 
key GSA’s (UK).

R6000 for round table
sponsorship by Old Mutual

Organised think-tank, media and round table with investors.

14. Launch of the GSA German Chapter in 
 Berlin

Initiated by Brand South Africa 
in conjunction with local GSA 
partner in Berlin

Launch of GSA Chapter in Berlin with event, speakers and 
South African music and artists.

R120 000 Brand South Africa identified partner and key players in Berlin for the building 
of the GSA network in the future.

15. Rising Stars event to celebrate South African 
 youth achievers

Initiated by Brand South Africa 
UK Country Manager

Support Rising Stars event to inspire South African 
community and encourage active participation.

None (Sponsor: Old Mutual) Brand South Africa identified the Rising Stars event for involvement in future 
events and to inspire others in the South African community.

16. Briefing to ABSA Executives Programme Manager: Business Engage with ABSA Executives, pre and during their travels 
to the USA.

None Briefing session hosted by Brand South Africa in Johannesburg prior to travel 
and a round table discussion hosted in the USA during travel.

17. Premiere of Long Walk to Freedom NMCF/Brand South Africa CEO To enhance South Africa’s image, consolidate perceptions 
with the Mandela story and build the GSA network.

Partnership to profile the film on various Brand South 
Africa communication platforms.

Provide access to the film premiere for targeted GSA’s.

18. Oprah partnership Associated Magazines Profiling of Brand South Africa female executive through 
advertorials.

Presentation of a Play Your Part recognition certificate to 
Oprah.

None Profile Brand South Africa female executives in Oprah magazine and presented 
Oprah Winfrey with A Play Your Part recognition certificate.
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PROJECT/OPPORTUNITY REFERRED BY/SOURCE PROJECT/OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS COURSE OF ACTION TAKEN/DECISION

19. WEF Global Outlook Agenda meeting in 
 Nigeria

Brand South Africa Networking platform targeting East African WEF members 
to positively change perceptions amongst targeted 
shareholders.

R400 000 Implemented a networking event in Nigeria at WEF Global Outlook Agenda 
meeting.

20. Goldman Sachs 20-year Review report Colin Coleman, Head of 
Goldman Sachs in South Africa

The Goldman Sachs 20-year review created the 
opportunity for a series of high-level dialogues about the 
achievements of and challenges facing South Africa in the 
next two decades and also provided an opportunity to 
lead the 20th anniversary debate on achievements and 
the way forward.

None Hosted a series of high-level dialogues about the achievements of and 
challenges facing South Africa in the next two decades.

Hosted a series of high-end meetings for Goldman Sachs’ Colin Coleman.

Enhanced South Africa’s image and stimulated constructive debate around 
achievements and shortcomings of first 20 years.

21. Nelson Mandela death Not applicable Hosted a memorial service at St Martins and Westminster.

Contributed two major tributes (CNN, Africa Report) and 
ten TV interviews on CNN, BBC and Sky News.

None Hosted a memorial service at St Martins and Westminster, in conjunction 
with key GSA’s and UK players, and utilised the media interest to celebrate 
the values and achievements of Nelson Mandela and capture the essence 
of  Mandela’s life achievements and consolidate this with the South African 
nation brand.

22. Times CEO Africa Summit The Times/Michael Holman Provided an opportunity to associate the South African 
brand with a prestige event and provide key thought-
leaders with a platform for messaging.

 Raised South Africa’s profile and advantages as a tourism and investment 
destination.

23. Financial Times CEO Africa Summit in
 October 2014

Financial Times (FT) contact Partnership between Brand South Africa and the Financial 
Times to host the 2014 FT CEO Africa Summit in London.

 Ongoing

24. ‘2014 Year of South Africa in China’
 logo development

Brand South Africa Asia 
Programme Manager/DIRCO

Celebrating the “country years” based on the consensus 
reached by President Xi Jinping and President Zuma 
during President Xi Jinping’s state visit to South Africa in 2013.

None Logo was approved by DIRCO and has been used on various communication 
platforms.

25. Partnership with International Sites of 
 Conscience African Network for Gala 
 Dinner at Constitution Hill

Constitution Hill CEO,
Petal Thring

African Union Human Rights Memorial networking 
opportunity and speaking platform.

 Partnership at the African Union Human Rights Memorial networking event 
provided a speaking platform.

26. Homecoming Revolution Angel Jones Opportunity to build perceptions of South Africa as a 
major player in African context and build GSA network.

 Re-positioned South Africa as key player with five other African countries to 
bring professionals and entrepreneurs back to the continent, in order to drive 
growth and development.

TACTICAL
OPPORTUNITIES
as at 31 March 2014
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RECOGNITION AND  
MESSAGES OF SUPPORT
Brand South Africa shares messages of support from some of the 

stakeholders and target audiences.

“…the Australia Africa Business Council 

(Victoria) is planning a Trade Mission to 

South Africa ( Johannesburg 4-7 July) and 

Ghana ( Accra 7-11 July).  The mission is 

endorsed by Austrade and the Victoria Govt 

Department of Business and Innovation. This is 

to ask if you will partner with us on developing 

the South Africa programme. This involves working 

the detail plan for the 3 days, and facilitating business introductions before 

and during the visit. Austrade in South Africa and Australia Business 

Council South Africa have agreed to participate. In Ghana we are working 

with the Ghana Investment Promotion Centre.” 

Nana Owusu-Agyemang, Chief Executive 
Australia Africa Business Council (VIC)

Presentation to Central Bankers tomorrow at 
Nelson Mandela Foundation

“Thank you for a great event in Melbourne last week. All the speakers did 

a great job of promoting South Africa and it was a very special occasion 

for South Africans living in Melbourne. 

I unfortunately did not get contact details for Minister Collins Chabane, 

so please pass on my sincere thank you for his major contribution to 

the success of the night. His ability to talk about the di� erent issues, 

then to respond to questions from the fl oor without a predetermined 

written speech was noted by many attendees and his well-timed humour 

was always perfectly timed.  During my last fi ve years serving on the 

committee of the AABC (Vic) we have had access to many politicians and 

dignitaries from various parts of Africa and the Australian government and 

I am proud to say that the South African team, by comparison, performed 

exceptionally well.” 

Mark Gree� , Vice President 
Australia Africa Business Council (Vic)

AABC (Vic) Trade Mission to South Africa and Ghana

Department of Business and Innovation. This is 

to ask if you will partner with us on developing 

the South Africa programme. This involves working 

 “I feel very proud – and very informed - to be able to share 
with my PGA o�  cers and Board of Directors about all the 

opportunities and production capabilities available to producers 
wishing to produce in South Africa. Due to my extensive 

experience with Familiarity Trips, I can tell you that yours was 
the most informative and all encompassing. Yes, the days did 
get a bit long and I could have done without that late “wrap” 

dinner, but I do appreciate that you were able to have us meet 
with countless experienced producers, production companies, 

facilities and infl uential govt. representatives.”  Vance Van Petten - Executive Director Producer’s Guild of America

Council South Africa have agreed to participate. In Ghana we are working 

“Thank you again to Brand South Africa for 

hosting SARB and our delegation on Friday. The 

delegation comprised of heads of communication 

from the European Central Bank, IMF, Bank of 

England, Bank of Mozambique to mention a few. 

We appreciated Brand South Africa’s hospitality. 

Please convey our appreciation to the team and 

the management of Brand South Africa.” 

Leo Makgamathe 

Stakeholder Relations Manager; 

South African Reserve Bank
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ACR  Africa Competitiveness Report

ACSA Airports Company of South Africa

AG Auditor General

AIDC Automotive Industrial Development Centre

AMCHAM American Chamber of Commerce

ANC African National Congress

ARCO Audit and Risk Committee

ART Antiretroviral Therapy

BCM Business Continuity Management

BEE Black Economic Empowerment

BLSA Business Leadership South Africa

Bn Billion

BRICS Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa

BUSA  Business Unity South Africa

CBI City Brand Index

CEO Chief Executive O�cer

CFO Chief Financial O�cer

CGICTPF Corporate Governance of Information and Communication Technology Policy Framework

CI Corporate Identity

CIFIT China International Fair for Investment and Trade

CRMP Compliance Risk Management Plans

CSI Corporate Social Investment

CSIR Council for Scientific and Industrial Research

DA Democratic Alliance

DIRCO Department of International Relations and Cooperation

DMR Department of Mineral Resources

DOT Department of Transport

DRC Democratic Republic of Congo

DST Department of Science and Technology

the dti The Department of Trade and Industry

EBLAP Employee Brand Loyalty Awards Programme

ECOWAS Economic Community of West African States

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning

EU European Union

EXCO ex Manco Committee - comprising all Executives

FAM Familiarity Trips (Media Tours)

FBO Faith Based Organisation

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FET Further Education and Training

GCI Global Competitiveness Index

GCIS Government Communications and Information System

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GGDA Gauteng Growth and Development Agency

GIBS Gordon Institute of Business Science

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

GSA Global South Africans

GSB Graduate School of Business

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus

HIPO High Potential Employees 

HOD Head of Department

HR Human Resources

HR/REMSECO Human Resources and Remuneration and Social Ethics Committee

HRD Human Resources Development

IIAG Ibrahim Index of African Governance

IMD International Institute for Management Development

IMF International Monetary Fund

IT Information Technology

ITI International Trade Initiative

KOL Key Opinion Leaders

KZN KwaZulu-Natal

ACRONYMS
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MARCO Marketing Committee

MDG Millennium Development Goal

MTSF Medium Term Strategic Framework

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

MPRDA Mineral and Petroleum Resource Development Act

MSP Master Systems Plan

NAMC National Agricultural Marketing Council

NBI Nation Brands Index

NDP National Development Plan

NEPAD New Partnership for Africa’s Development

NFVF National Film and Video Foundation

NPA National Perceptions Audit

NPC National Planning Commission

OECD Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

OPED Opinion Editorial

OYW One Young World

PDI Previously Disadvantaged Individuals

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PM Performance Management

PWC PriceWaterhouse Coopers

PYP Play Your Part

SABCO South African Business Council

SADC South Africa Development Community

SACF South African Competitiveness Forum

SAFRI Southern Africa Initiative of German Business

SALGA South African Local Government Association

SIP Strategic Infrastructure Projects

SOE State Owned Enterprises

SONA State of the Nation Address

TM Trade Mark

UAE United Arab Emirates

UDM United Democratic Movement

USA United States of America

USD United States Dollars

UK United Kingdom

WBS Wits Business School

WEF World Economic Forum

WOSA Wines of South Africa

WSP Workplace Skills Plan

WTTC  World Travel and Tourism Council
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Anholt-GfK Nation Brand Index – a perceptions-based 

survey among 20 000 respondents across 35 countries, with 

50 countries ranked in six categories: Exports, Immigration and 

Investment, Governance, Culture, People and Tourism

BrandFinance® Brand Valuation – the BrandFinance® Nation 

Brands Index is the world’s first index that ranks the value of country 

brands. It is calculated by applying the same methodology that 

is used to value intangible assets in a commercial context using 

the generally accepted Royalty Relief methodology. It uses a 

combination of data sources: Forecast GDP from the IMF, Brand 

Strength as per the IMD yearbook and the WEF GCI.

Domestic Tracker Study – a continuous domestic tracker study 

with a robust annual sample, representative of the South African 

demographics. The quarterly sample size is 2 400 and, annually, 

the sample seeks opinions from 9 600 respondents representative 

of the South African population.

International Tracker Study (Project Thrive) –  

an international study conducted during August and September 

across 29 countries in seven regions. These countries are selected 

on the basis of their interest in football and importance to South 

Africa, with a sample size of 400 respondents for each country.

Media Reputation Index – a media perception measure that 

tracks the perceptions of 199 opinion-leading media outlets, in 

37 countries.

 

National Perceptions Audit (futurefact) – an annual tracking 

study, representative of the South African population (excluding 

rural areas with fewer than 500 residents). The research vehicle 

for the NPA is the ‘Futurefact’ survey, which has surveyed the 

underlying attitudes, values and beliefs of South Africans since 

1998 with the goal of:

• identifying trends that are shaping South African society, and

• predicting how these trends are likely to play out in the future. 

World Economic Forum’s Global Competitiveness Index 

– the world’s most recognised competitiveness indicator, which 

covers perceptions among 11 000 business leaders and includes 

actual data. The study is holistic, covering 12 pillars, namely: 

Institutions, Infrastructure, Macroeconomic factors, Health 

and Primary education, Higher education and training, Goods 

market e�ciency, Labour market e�ciency, Financial market 

sophistication, and the Technological readiness market.

SOURCES AND  
DEFINITIONS
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